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PART I

Item 1. Business
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statemaiitieh constitute “forward-looking statements” with
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatioridR@ Act of 1995. These statements appear through@iRepor
including this Item 1. “Business — Business Operati” Item 1A. “Risk Factors,” and Item 7. “Managemtis
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions &wesults of Operations.” These forward-lookingesta¢nts can
be identified by the use of forward-looking termigy such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “estireat” “will,”
“should,” “plans,” or “anticipates,br the negative of the foregoing or other variaion comparable terminology,
by discussions of strategy.

Readers are cautioned that any such forward-lookiiaiggments are not guarantees of future perforenand
involve significant risks and uncertainties, anattactual results may vary from those in the fodsaoking
statements as a result of various factors. Thederfainclude: the effectiveness of managementiegies and
decisions; general economic and business condjtioalsiding cyclicality and other conditions in therospace and
other end markets we serve; developments in teoggphew or modified statutory or regulatory reguients;
changing prices and market conditions; and othetofa discussed in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and wisere in this
Report.

Readers are urged to consider these factors clgrefidvaluating any forward-looking statements anel
cautioned not to place undue reliance on thesedahlooking statements. The forward-looking statetméncluded
herein are made only as of the date of this Repad,we undertake no obligation to update any métion
contained in this Report or to publicly release eawisions to any forward-looking statements thayrhe made to
reflect events or circumstances that occur, orileabecome aware of, after the date of this Report.

Availability of Information

We will make available our Annual Reports on FrobaKl, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Report
on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, fitddrnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(dhefSecurities
Exchange Act of 1934, free of charge through oterhret website at www.kaiseraluminum.camder the heading
“Investor Relations” as soon as reasonably prdufécafter we electronically file such material withfurnish it to
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Business Overview

We are an independent fabricated aluminum produetsufacturing company with 2006 net sales of
approximately $1.4 billion. We were founded in 196l operate 10 production facilities in the Uni&dtes and
one in Canada. We manufacture rolled, extrudedymiend forged aluminum products within three engl us
categories consisting of aerospace and high stigargducts (which we refer to as Aero/HS produdsjeral
engineering products (which we refer to as GE petsjiand custom automotive and industrial prod(wtsch we
refer to as Custom products).

We produced and shipped approximately 523 millionrs of fabricated aluminum products in 2006 which
comprised 85% of our total net sales. We have ktagding relationships with our customers, whiatiude leadin
aerospace companies, automotive suppliers and distabutors. We strive to tightly integrate thamagement of
our fabricated products operations across mulppbgluction facilities, product lines and target keds in order to
maximize the efficiency of product flow to our coisters. In our served markets, we seek to be thaisupf choice
by pursuing “best-in-class” customer satisfactiod affering a broad product portfolio.

In order to capitalize on the significant growthdemand for high quality heat treat aluminum pfateducts in
the market for Aero/HS products, in the third geadf 2005 we began a major expansion at our TrewdwWacility
in Spokane, Washington. We anticipate that the flreod expansion will significantly increase ourrainum plate
production capacity and enable us to produce thigkage aluminum plate. The $105 million expanssdoeing
completed in phases. One new heat treat furnaantetully operational in the fourth quarter of 2086




second such furnace is expected to become fullyatipaal during the first quarter of 2007 and adsuch furnace
is expected to become operational in early 2008e¥ heavy gauge stretcher, which will enable ysrtaluce
thicker gauge aluminum plate, is also expectecetmine operational in early 2008.

In addition to our core fabricated products operatj we have a 49% ownership interest in Anglesey
Aluminium Limited (which we refer to as “Anglesey’d company that owns an aluminum smelter based in
Holyhead, Wales. Anglesey has produced in exce88@mmillion pounds of primary aluminum for eachtloé last
three fiscal years, of which 49% is available tolsring 2006, sales of our portion of Angleseylsput
represented 15% of our total net sales. Becaussdseepurchase primary aluminum for our fabricatestipcts at
market prices, Anglesey’s production acts as arabhedge for our fabricated products operatioeg Eem 1A.
“Risk Factors —The expiration of the power agreement for Anglesey adversely affect our cash flows and af
our hedging programs” for a discussion regardimgphtential closure of Anglesey, which could ocasisoon as
20009.

Between the first quarter of 2002 and the firstrtpreof 2003, Kaiser and 25 of our then-existingsdiaries
filed voluntary petitions for relief in the Unitestates Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delagémwhich we refe
to as the “Bankruptcy Court”) under chapter 11hef United States Bankruptcy Code (which we referstthe
“Bankruptcy Code”). Pursuant to our Second Amenfekesh of Reorganization (which we refer to as odatiP), we
emerged from chapter 11 bankruptcy on July 6, Z00Bich we refer to as the “Effective Date”). Oua allowed
us to shed significant legacy liabilities, inclugilbng-term indebtedness, pension obligationsieetmnedical
obligations and liabilities relating to asbestod ather personal injury claims. In addition, priorour emergence
from chapter 11 bankruptcy, we sold all of our iags in bauxite mining operations, alumina refesand
aluminum smelters, other than our interest in Asgje in order to focus on our fabricated aluminundpcts
business, which we believe has a stronger comygeetitbsition and presents greater opportunitiegfowth.

Business Operations

» Fabricated Products Business Unit

Overview. Our fabricated products business unit producksdicextruded, drawn, and forged aluminum
products used principally for aerospace and defengemotive, consumer durables, electronics, ibattand
machinery and equipment end-use applications. heigd, the fabricated products business unit mahwuifas
products in one of three broad categories: Aerggktflucts; GE products; and Custom products. Dby, 2005
and 2006, our eleven North American fabricated petg&lmanufacturing facilities produced and shipped
approximately 459, 482 and 523 million pounds diriigated aluminum products, respectively, whichoarted for
approximately 86%, 86% and 85% of our total ne¢s&br 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Types of Products Produced

The aluminum fabricated products market is broagifined as the markets for flat-rolled, extrude@dwh,
forged and cast aluminum products, which are usedviariety of end-use applications. We participateertain
portions of the markets for flat-rolled, extrude@gn and forged products focusing on highly engieeg@roducts
for aerospace and high strength, general engirgeanid custom automotive and industrial applicatidine portion:
of markets in which we participate accounted fqeragimately 20% of total North American shipments o
aluminum fabricated products in 2006.

Aerospace and High Strength Product®ur Aero/HS products include high quality heattrplate and sheet,
as well as cold finish bar, seamless drawn tubebdted that are manufactured to demanding spedtifics for the
global aerospace and defense industries. Thesstimeuuse our products in applications that denagiad tensile
strength, superior fatigue resistance propertigisexxceptional durability even in harsh environmehty instance,
aerospace manufacturers use high-strength alloys Variety of structures that must perform coesity under
extreme variations in temperature and altitude. ®eno/HS products are used for a wide variety af eses. We
make aluminum plate and tube for aerospace apiplitatand we manufacture a variety of specialinedand bar
products that are incorporated in goods as divesdsaseball bats and racecars. The aerospacefandalemarket’s
consumption of fabricated aluminum products isehiby overall levels of industrial production, dgal airframe
build rates and defense spending, as well as ttempal availability of competing materials such as




composites. Demand growth is expected to increarsinick plate with growth in “monoalithic” constrtion of
commercial and other aircraft. In monolithic constion, aluminum plate is heavily machined to fdaha desired
part from a single piece of metal (as opposedéatarg parts using aluminum sheet, extrusions irigs that are
affixed to one another using rivets, bolts or wltis addition to commercial aviation demand, raitjt applications
for heat treat plate and sheet include aircrafbéa and skins and armor plating to protect growtdcles from
explosive devices. Products sold for Aero/HS ajpiims represented 31% of our 2006 fabricated mtsdu
shipments. Aero/HS net sales in 2006 were apprdrim&8% of our 2006 fabricated products net sales.

General Engineering ProductsGE products consist primarily of standard catalems sold to large metal
distributors. These products have a wide rangee$umnany of which involve further fabrication loé$e products
for numerous transportation and industrial endapgaications where machining of plate, rod andibantensive.
Our GE products consist of 6000-series alloy raud, tube, sheet, plate and standard extrusions6U0@-series
alloy is an extrudable medium-strength alloy tisateat treatable and extremely versatile. Our @Euymts have a
wide range of uses and applications, many of wineblve further fabrication of these products fanmerous
transportation and other industrial end uses. kample, our products are used in the specializetufaaturing
process for liquid crystal display screens, angveeluce aluminum sheet and plate that are usdiaacuum
chambers in which semiconductors are made. Wepatshice aluminum plate that is used to further eoba
military vehicle protection. Our rod and bar prothuare manufactured into rivets, nails, screwststanid parts of
machinery and equipment. Demand growth and cydlycfdr GE products tend to mirror broad econormadterns
and industrial activity in North America. Demandhlso impacted by the destocking and restockingwentory in
the full supply chain. Products sold for GE applmas represented 43% of our 2006 fabricated prisdstipments.
GE net sales in 2006 were approximately 39% of20@6 fabricated products net sales.

Custom Automotive and Industrial Product®ur Custom products consist of extruded/drawnfargked
aluminum products for many North American autom®iind industrial end uses, including consumer desab
electrical, machinery and equipment, automobifghtliruck, heavy truck and truck trailer applicasoExamples of
the wide variety of custom products that we supplthe automotive industry are extruded produatsfi-lock
braking systems, drawn tube for drive shafts amgifigs for suspension control arms and drive tyaikes. A
significant portion of our other Custom productesain recent years has been for water heater anidels trailers
and electrical/electronic exchangers. For someoougiroducts, we perform limited fabrication, indlugl sawing
and cutting to length. Demand growth and cycliyakind to mirror broad economic patterns and indalsictivity
in North America, with specific individual marketgments such as automotive, heavy truck and tradkt
applications tracking their respective build ratducts sold for custom automotive and industgdlications
represented 26% of our 2006 fabricated producfmstits. Custom automotive and industrial net sale@®06 wer:
approximately 23% of our 2006 fabricated produetsales.

End Markets In Which We Do Not Participat&V/e have elected not to participate in certain radkets for
fabricated aluminum products, including beverage fand cans, building and construction materiatsl fil used
for packaging. We believe our chosen end marketsgmt better opportunities for sales growth anchjpune pricing
of differentiated products. The markets we havetetkto participate in represented approximatelydb¥e North
American flat rolled products market and 55% of Heeth American extrusion market in 2006.

Types of Manufacturing Processes Employed
We utilize the following manufacturing processegtoduce our fabricated products:

Flat rolling. The traditional manufacturing process for aluminflat-rolled products uses ingot, a large
rectangular slab of aluminum, as the starter naltéFhe ingot is processed through a series ahgpll
operations, both hot and cold. Finishing steps melpyde heat treatment, annealing, coating, sthegch
leveling or slitting to achieve the desired metaioal, dimensional and performance characterisfasminum
flat-rolled products are manufactured using a warié alloy mixtures, a range of tempers (hardnegaliges
(thickness) and widths, and various coatings amdtfes. Flat-rolled aluminum semi-finished produnes
generally either sheet (under 0.25 inches in théskh or plate (up to 15 inches in thickness). Tast majority
of the North American market for aluminum flat-edl products uses “common alloy” material for camsion
and other applications and beverage/food can sHeetever, these are products and markets in




which we have chosen not to participate. Rathehawe focused our efforts on “heat trepitdducts. Heat tre:
products are distinguished from common alloy praslby higher strength and other desired produgbates.
The primary end use of heat treat flat-rolled staeet plate is for Aero/HS and GE products.

Extrusion. The extrusion process typically starts with a tétet, which is an aluminum cylinder of
varying length and diameter. The first step infihecess is to heat the billet to an elevated teatpsr whereby
the metal is malleable. The billet is put into airesion press and pushed, or extruded, through thdt gives
the material the desired two-dimensional cross@@cthe material is either quenched as it leakietess, or
subjected to a post-extrusion heat treatment cyeleontrol the material’'s physical properties. Ex¢rusion is
then straightened by stretching and cut to lengfbre being hardened in aging ovens. The largabusas of
extruded products are in the construction, gerergineering and custom markets. Building and canstm
products represents the single largest end-useatiankextrusions by a significant amount. Howeweg,have
chosen to focus our efforts on GE and Custom prsduecause we believe we have strong production
capability, well-developed technical expertise aigh product quality with respect to these products

Drawing. Drawing is a fabrication operation in which exted tubes and rods are pulled through a die, or

drawn. The purpose of drawing is to reduce the dtamand wall thickness while improving physicaderties
and dimensions. Material may go through multiplavdng steps to achieve the final dimensional spetibns
Aero/HS products is a primary end-use market amdiifocus.

Forging. Forging is a manufacturing process in which mistaressed, pounded or squeezed under great

pressure into high-strength parts known as forgiRgsged parts are heat treated before final shipthocthe
customer. The end-use applications are primarityansportation, where high strength-to-weightostn
products are valued. We focus our production otagetypes of automotive applications.

A description of the manufacturing processes ategoay of products at each of our 11 productionlifaes is
shown below:

Manufacturing

Location Proces: Types of Product:
Chandler, Arizon: Drawing Aero/HS
Greenwood, South Carolit Forging Custom
Jackson, Tenness Extrusion/Drawing Aero/HS, GE
London, Ontaric Extrusion Custom

Los Angeles, Californii Extrusion GE, Custorr
Newark, Ohic Extrusion/Rod Rolling Aero/HS, GE
Richland, Washingto Extrusion Aero/HS, GE
Richmond, Virginia Extrusion/Drawing GE, Custon
Sherman, Texe Extrusion Custom
Spokane, Washingtc Flat Rolling Aero/HS, GE
Tulsa, Oklahomi Extrusion GE

As can be seen in the table above, many of thétiesiemploy the same basic manufacturing proeess
produce the same type of end use products. Overatsieseveral years, given the similar economicatner
characteristics at each location, we have madgréfisiant effort to more tightly integrate the mgeanent of our
fabricated products business unit across multidaufacturing locations, product lines, and targatkats to
maximize the efficiency of product flow to customePurchasing is centralized for a substantialiqof the
fabricated products business usigrimary aluminum requirements in order to tryrtaximize price, credit and ott
benefits. Because many customers purchase a nwhbferent products that are produced at diffeggdants, ther
has also been substantial integration of the $atee and its management. The Company believesritegfration o
its operations will allow the Company to capturéicégncies while allowing the plant locations tarrain highly
focused.




Raw Materials

We purchase substantially all of the primary alwminand recycled and scrap aluminum used to make our
fabricated products from third-party suppliersalmajority of the cases, we purchase primary alumiingot and
recycled and scrap aluminum in varying percentaggending on various market factors including paind
availability. The price for primary aluminum purceal for the fabricated products business unitgeajly based o
the Average Midwest Transaction Price (or “Midwiste”), which typically ranges between $.03 to/s.per
pound above the price traded on the London MetahBmge (or “LME”) depending on primary aluminum
supply/demand dynamics in North America. Recycled scrap aluminum are typically purchased at a stode
discount to ingot prices but can require additigrrakcessing. In addition to producing fabricatagr@hum products
for sale to third parties, certain of our produetfacilities provide one another with billet, logaher intermediate
material in lieu of purchasing such items fromdhparty suppliers. For example, a substantial nitgjof the
product from the Richland, Washington facility sed as base input at the Chandler, Arizona factlity Sherman,
Texas facility is currently supplying billet andg®to the Tulsa, Oklahoma facility; the Richmondéginia facility
typically receives some portion of its metal supjpym either (or both of) the London, Ontario ondék, Ohio
facilities; and the Newark, Ohio facility also slipp billet and log to the Jackson, Tennesseeitigeihd extruded
forge stock to the Greenwood, South Carolina figcili

Pricing

The price we pay for primary aluminum, the printigav material for our fabricated aluminum products
business, consists of two components: the pricéegluior primary aluminum ingot on the LME, and t&lwest
Transaction Premium, a premium to LME reflectingnéstic market dynamics as well as the cost of smipand
warehousing. Because aluminum prices are volatdemanage the risk of fluctuations in the pric@fary
aluminum through a combination of pricing policiegernal hedging and financial derivatives. Ouethprincipal
pricing mechanisms are as follows:

« Spot price. Some of our customers pay a product price thetrporates the spot price of primary aluminum
in effect at the time of shipment to a customeiisicing mechanism typically allows us to passowdity
price risk to the custome

* Index-based price. Some of our customers pay a product price tlwarporates an index-based price for
primary aluminum such as Platt’s Midwest pricefoamary aluminum. This pricing mechanism also
typically allows us to pass commodity price riskiie custometl

» Firm price. Some of our customers pay a firm price. We bearrodity price risk on firm-price contracts,
which we normally hedge though a combination oéficial derivatives and production from Anglesey. Fo
internal reporting purposes, whenever the fabretateducts business unit enters into a firm prmeti@act, it
also enters into an “internal hedge” with the priyn@uminum business unit, so that all the metedeprisk
resides in the primary aluminum business unit. Re$tom internal hedging activities between the tw
business units are eliminated in consolidat

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Industry sales margins for fabricated productstflate in response to competitive and market dynariales
are made directly to customers by our sales pesdocated in the United States, Canada and Eusykby
independent sales agents in Asia, Mexico and tiielMiEast. Our sales and marketing efforts aresedwn the
markets for Aero/HS, GE, and Custom products.

Aerospace and High Strength Productdpproximately 50% of our Aero/HS product shipneeate sold to
distributors with the remainder sold directly testamers. Sales are made either under contracts {gvins spannir
from one year to several years) or on an order+dgiobasis. We serve this market with a North Aosrisales
force focused on Aero/HS and GE products and dga&lets representatives in Western Europe. Key ctitivpe
dynamics for Aero/HS products include the levetofmmercial aircraft construction spending (whichum is ofter
subject to broader economic cycles) and defensedspg




General Engineering ProductsA substantial majority of our GE products areddol large distributors in
North America, with orders primarily consistingstindard catalog items shipped with a relativetyrsleac-time.
We service this market with a North American sébese focused on GE and Aero/HS products. Key cditine
dynamics for GE products include product price dpici-line breadth, product quality, delivery penfance and
customer service.

Custom Automotive and Industrial ProductQur Custom products are sold primarily to fifst automotive
suppliers and industrial end users. Sales conteaettypically medium to long term in length. Alnhadl sales of
Custom products occur through direct channels usiNgrth American direct sales force that workselg with oul
technical sales organization. Key demand driver®fw automotive products include the level of Modmerican
light vehicle manufacturing and increased use wingthum in vehicles in response to increasinglycstri
governmental standards for fuel efficiency. Dem#ordndustrial products is directly linked to thigength of the
U.S. industrial economy.

Customers

In 2006, our fabricated products business unitdggtoximately 600 customers. The largest, Reli&teel &
Aluminum, and the five largest customers for fabtiéc products accounted for approximately 18% d9d,4
respectively, of our net sales in 2006. The losRafance, as a customer, would have a materiaradweffect us.
However, we believe that our relationship with Bete is good and the risk of loss of Reliance, asstomer, is
remote.

Research and Development

We operate three research and development ce@erdfkolling and Heat Treat Center and our Metaltaly
Analysis Center are both located at our Trentwamilify in Spokane, Washington. The Rolling and HEaat
Center has complete hot rolling, cold rolling amdttreat capabilities to simulate, in small Ipigmcessing of flat-
rolled products for process and product developroerdn experimental scale. The Metallurgical AnialyZenter
consists of a full metallographic laboratory angtanning electron microscope to support researeglal@ment
programs as well as respond to plant technicaicErequests. The third center, our Solidificatéod Casting
Center, is located in Newark, Ohio and has a sstmke experimental caster with ingot cast rollvagabilities for
the experimental rolling mill and for extrusionlbtlused in plant extrusion trials. Due to our egsh and
development efforts, we have been able to introgmoducts such as our unique T-Fd?Prsheet which provides
aerospace customers with high formability as weleruisite strength characteristics.

¢ Primary Aluminum Business Unit

Our primary aluminum business unit, after excluditigcontinued operations, contains two primary elets:
(a) activities related to our interests in andteglao Anglesey and (b) primary aluminum hedgingtesl activities.
Our primary aluminum business unit accounted faraximately 14%, 14% and 15% of our total net sé&e004,
2005 and 2006, respectively.

Anglesey. We own a 49% interest in Anglesey, which ownslaminum smelter at Holyhead, Wales. Rio
Tinto Plc owns the remaining 51% ownership inteiregtnglesey and has day-to-day operating respditigb for
Anglesey, although certain decisions require unansrapproval of both shareholders. Anglesey hadused in
excess of 300 million pounds for each of the lasté fiscal years. We supply 49% of Anglesey’s aham
requirements and purchase 49% of Anglesey’s alumioutput, in each case based on a market-relaieidgr
formula. Anglesey produces billet, rolling ingotdasow for the United Kingdom and European markegl&Ve sel
our share of Anglesey’s output to a single thirdyat market prices. The price received for safgsroduction
from Anglesey typically approximates the LME prid&e also realize a premium (historically betweedbdand
$.12 per pound above LME price depending on thdymrt) for sales of value- added products suchlt bnd
rolling ingot.

To meet our obligation to sell alumina to Anglegeproportion to our ownership percentage, we paseh
alumina under contracts that extend through 20Q@tieg¢s that are tied to market prices for primaminum. We
will need to secure a new alumina contract forgéieod after 2007. We can give no assurance ragguir ability




to secure a source of alumina on comparable tdfws are unable to do so, the results of our prir@uminum
operations will be affected.

Anglesey operates under a power agreement thaideosufficient power to sustain its operationfubit
capacity through September 2009. The nuclear faegilhich supplies power to Anglesey is scheduleddse
operations in late 2010. Angleseability to operate past September 2009 is depengon finding adequate pov
at an acceptable purchase price. We can give mwaas® that Anglesey will be able to do so. If Assgly cannot
obtain sufficient power, Anglesey’s operations Wikkly be shut down. Given the potential for fieighutdown and
related costs, dividends from Anglesey have bespended while Anglesey studies future cash reqeinésn The
shutdown process may involve significant costs mglasey which would decrease or eliminate its kit pay
future dividends. The process of shutting down afi@ns may involve transition complications whichyrprevent
Anglesey from operating at full capacity until tivepiration of the power agreement.

Hedging. Our pricing of fabricated aluminum products, &dssed above, is generally intended to lock-in a
conversion margin (representing the value added fte fabrication process(es)) and to pass meta psk on to
our customers. However, in certain instances werder into firm price arrangements. In such instanwe do hav
price risk on our anticipated primary aluminum fhase in respect of the custonseorder. Total fabricated produ
shipments during 2004, 2005 and 2006 for whichGbepany had price risk were (in millions of poundi$®, 155,
and 200 respectively.

For internal reporting purposes, whenever our &ateid products business unit enters into a firmeprontract,
our primary aluminum business unit and fabricatexipcts business unit segments enter into an fiatdredge” so
that all the metal price risk resides in our priynaluminum business unit. Results from internaldieg activities
between the two segments eliminate in consolida’amore fully discussed in Item 7A. “Quantitatiaed
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk”, duritige last three years, our net exposure to primiamiaum price
risk at Anglesey substantially offset the volumdaiddricated products shipments with underlying tiynaluminum
price risk. As such, we consider our access to ésey production overall to be a “natural” hedgerzgany
fabricated products firm metal-price risk. Howew&@nce the volume of fabricated products shippedeufirm
prices may not match up on a month-to-month bagtsexpected Anglesey-related primary aluminum stépts,
we may use third party hedging instruments to elaté any net remaining primary aluminum price expes
existing at any time.

Primary aluminum-related hedging activities are aggd centrally on behalf of our business segments t
minimize transaction costs, to monitor consolidatetiexposures and to allow for increased respensss to
changes in market factors. Hedging activities argdacted in compliance with a policy approved by lmoard of
directors, and hedging transactions are only edtiete after appropriate approvals are obtainethfour hedging
committee (which includes our chief executive adfiand key financial officers).

* Discontinued Operations

Prior to 2004, we were a more significant produafgsrimary aluminum and sold significant amount®of
alumina and primary aluminum production in domeatid international markets. Our strategy was ticasel
substantial portion of the alumina and primary ahum available to us in excess of our internal nements to
third parties. As part of our reorganization, wedea strategic decision to sell all of our commgdéiiated
interests, other than our interests in and releie®hglesey, as summarized below.

Entity/Facility Location Product Period of Dispositior

Queensland Alumina Limite Australia Alumina Second Quarter 20(
Gramercy refinen Louisiana Alumina Fourth Quarter 200
Kaiser Jamaica Bauxite Compa Jamaice Bauxite Fourth Quarter 200
Volta Aluminium Company Limitet Ghana Primary Aluminum Fourth Quarter 200
Alumina Partners of Jamai Jamaice Alumina Third Quarter 200:

Mead Smelte Washingtor  Primary Aluminum Second Quarter 20(

We refer to Queensland Alumina Limited and Alumiertners of Jamaica herein as QAL and Alpart,
respectively.




Segment and Geographical Area Financial Information

The information set forth in Note 11 of Notes tonGolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” diggrour segments and geographical areas in whichperate
is incorporated herein by reference.

Competition

The fabricated aluminum industry is highly compe¢it We concentrate our fabricating operationselacted
products for which we believe we have productiopatality, technical expertise, high product qualiynd
geographic and other competitive advantages. Catigpein the sale of fabricated aluminum produstsliiven by
quality, availability, price and service, includidglivery performance. Our primary competition letfrolled
products is Alcoa, Inc. and Alcan Inc. In the estoan market, we compete with many regional paréintp as well ¢
larger firms with national reach such as the Safga#\joint venture, Norsk Hydro ASA and Indalex. iWeof our
competitors are substantially larger, have grdatancial resources, and may have other stratebiartages,
including more efficient technologies or lower ravaterial and energy costs.

Our fabricated aluminum products facilities aregli@d in North America. To the extent our compesitoave
production facilities located outside North Amerittzey may be able to produce similar productslatner cost. W
may not be able to adequately reduce cost to campight these products. Increased competition coaltse a
reduction in our shipment volume and profitabilityincrease our expenditures, any one of whichcchalve a
material adverse effect on our results of operation

In addition, our fabricated aluminum products cotepeith products made from other materials, sucttesl
and composites, for various applications, includiirgraft manufacturing. The willingness of custas® accept
substitutions for aluminum and the ability of lagestomers to exert leverage in the marketplacedace the
pricing for fabricated aluminum products could adety affect our results of operations.

For the heat treat plate and sheet products, newpetition is limited by technological expertisettbaly a few
companies have developed through significant imrest in research and development. Further, ustat# pnd
sheet in safety critical applications make quaityl product consistency critical factors. Supplietst pass a
rigorous qualification process to sell to airframanufacturers. Additionally, significant investméminfrastructure
and specialized equipment is required to supply tieat plate and sheet.

Barriers to entry are lower for extruded and forgeaducts, mostly due to the lower required investtin
equipment. However, the products that we produessamewhat differentiated from the majority of prot sold b
competitors. We maintain a competitive advantagedigg application engineering and advanced process
engineering to distinguish our company and our petel Our metallurgical expertise and controlledhofacturing
processes enable superior product consistencyrardaifficult for competitors to offer, limiting thieability to
effectively compete in many of our product niches.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, we employed approximatel22 @ersons, of which approximately 2,370 were
employed in our fabricated products business urdtapproximately 55 were employed in our corpogateip, mos
of whom are located in our offices in Foothill RAn€alifornia.




The table below shows each manufacturing locatteprimary union affiliation, if any, and the esqtion dat:
for the current union contract.

Contract
Location Union Expiration Date
Chandler, AZ Non-union —
Greenwood, S( Non-union —
Jackson, TN Non-union —
London, Ontaric USW Canad: Feb 200!
Los Angeles, C# Teamster: May 200¢
Newark, OH usw Sept 201
Richland, WA Non-union —
Richmond, VA USW/IAM Nov 201(
Sherman, TX 1AM Dec 200°
Spokane, W£ usw Sept 201
Tulsa, OK uUsw Nov 201(

As part of our chapter 11 reorganization, we etémto a settlement with the United Steelworkerd)J8W,
regarding, among other things, pension and refiregical obligations. Under the terms of the setdeinwe agreed
to adopt a position of neutrality regarding theamization of any of our employees.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous environmental laws agdlations with respect to, among other thingsaad
water emissions and discharges; the generatiomggptreatment, transportation and disposal @ sold hazardot
waste; and the release of hazardous or toxic sutes$apollutants and contaminants into the envientm
Compliance with these environmental laws is andlagihtinue to be costly.

Our operations, including our operations condugtéok to our emergence from chapter 11 bankruptcjuly
2006, have subjected, and may in the future subjedb fines or penalties for alleged breachesnefronmental
laws and to obligations to perform investigationglean up of the environment. We may also be stilbjeclaims
from governmental authorities or third parties tetato alleged injuries to the environment, humealth or natural
resources, including claims with respect to waspakal sites, the clean up of sites currenthoamerly used by us
or exposure of individuals to hazardous materiais; investigation, clean-up or other remediatiostspfines or
penalties, or costs to resolve third-party clainas/rbe costly and could have a material adversetedfe our
financial position, results of operations and ciaivs.

We have accrued, and will accrue as necessargpgis relating to the above matters that are redbpn
expected to be incurred based on available infaaomaHowever, it is possible that actual costs midfgr, perhaps
significantly, from the amounts expected or accraendl such differences could have a material adwffect on oL
financial position, results of operations and césivs. In addition, new laws or regulations or cgas to existing
laws and regulations may occur, and we cannot asgur as to the amount that we would have to speodmply
with such new or amended laws and regulationseeffects that they would have on our financialifas, results
of operations and cash flows.

Emergence From Reorganization Proceedings

Background. Between the first quarter of 2002 and the fitsrger of 2003, Kaiser and 25 of our then existing
subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for religider chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. While iapthr 11
bankruptcy, we continued to manage our businetirdinary course as debtors-in-possession dithjéice
control and administration of the Bankruptcy Court.

We and 16 of our subsidiaries filed the chaptebddkruptcy in the first quarter of 2002 primarilgdause of
our liquidity and cash flow problems that aroséaite 2001 and early 2002. We were facing significeaar-term
debt maturities at a time of unusually weak alumirindustry business conditions, depressed alumintices and




a broad economic slowdown that was further exatedday the events of September 11, 2001. In additi@ had
become increasingly burdened by asbestos litigathgrowing legacy obligations for retiree medaadl pension
costs. The confluence of these factors creategrtspect of continuing operating losses and negatash flows,
resulting in lower credit ratings and an inabilityaccess the capital markets.

In the first quarter of 2003, nine of our other sidiaries filed chapter 11 bankruptcy in order totect the
assets held by those subsidiaries against possétigory liens that might have otherwise arisethlagen enforced
by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (orRB&C).

On December 20, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court entaneorder confirming two separate joint plans of
liquidation for four of our commodityelated subsidiaries. On December 22, 2005, thleses pf liquidation becan
effective and all restricted cash and other agsdtson behalf of or by the subsidiaries, consistinmarily of
approximately $686.8 million of net cash proceedsifthe sale of interests in and related to QAL Ahhrt, were
transferred to a trustee for subsequent distributicholders of claims against the subsidiariescicordance with th
terms of the plans of liquidation. In connectioriwthe plans of liquidation, these four subsidiafere dissolved
and their corporate existence was terminated.

On February 6, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court enteredréder confirming the Plan for us and 21 of our
subsidiaries that had filed chapter 11 bankrupfzyMay 11, 2006, the District Court for the Distrié Delaware
entered an order affirming the confirmation orded adopting the Bankruptcy Court’s findings of faod
conclusions of law regarding confirmation of ouaflOn July 6, 2006, our Plan became effectiveveansl
substantially consummated, whereupon we emerged dr@apter 11 bankruptcy.

Pursuant to our Plan, on July 6 2006, the preipetiiwnership interests in Kaiser were cancelletthovit
consideration and approximately $4.4 billion of-petition claims against us, including claims ispect of debt,
pension and postretirement medical obligationsasimbstos and other tort liabilities, were resoledbllows:

» Claims in Respect of Retiree Medical ObligatiorBursuant to settlements reached with represeasatif
hourly and salaried retirees in early 20

e an aggregate of 11,439,900 shares of our commak stere delivered to the voluntary employees’
beneficiary association trust, or VEBA, that pra@sdenefits for certain eligible retirees represeity
certain unions and their spouses and eligible digoas (which we refer to herein as the “Union VEBA”
and entities that prior to July 6, 2006 acquirenhfithe Union VEBA rights to receive a portion otbu
shares; an

* an aggregate of 1,940,100 shares of our commok stee delivered to the VEBA that provides benefits
for certain other eligible retirees and their suiri spouses and eligible dependents (which we tefe
herein as the “Salaried VEBA") and entities thabpto July 6, 2006 acquired from the Salaried VEBA
rights to receive a portion of such shares;

« we became obligated to make certain contingentaroash payments of up to $20 million annuallyhe t
VEBASs that fluctuate based on earnings, adjusteddadain cash flow items (see Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in 18" Financial Statements and Supplementary ).

« Priority Claims and Secured Clairr All pre-petition priority claims, pre-petition iprity tax claims and pre-
petition secured claims were paid in full in ce

» Unsecured Claims.With respect to pre-petition unsecured claimbd€bthan the personal injury claims
specified below)

« all pre-petition unsecured claims of the PBGC agjaour Canadian subsidiaries were satisfied by the
delivery of 2,160,000 shares of common stock an8 &2llion in cash; an

« all pre-petition general unsecured claims agaiasbther than our Canadian subsidiaries, includiagns
of the PBGC and holders of our public debt, wetesfed by the issuance of 4,460,000 shares of our
common stock to a third-party disbursing agenthwsiich shares to be delivered to the holders df suc
claims in accordance with the terms of our Plarti{oextent that such claims do not constitute
convenience claims that have been or will be satisfith cash payments). Of such 4,460,000 shdr
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common stock, approximately 197,000 shares arewtlyrbeing held by the thirdarty disbursing agent
a reserve pending resolution of disputed claimsthioextent a holder of a disputed claim is noitledtto
shares reserved in respect of such claim, sucleskah be distributed to holders of allowed clait

« Personal Injury Claims Certain trusts (which we refer to herein as tAeTrusts”) were formed to receive
distributions from us, assume responsibility frosnfor present and future asbestos personal injaigns,
present and future silica personal injury claimrespnt and future coal tar pitch personal injugymak and
present but not future noise-induced hearing pedsajury claims, and to make payments in respéstioh
personal injury claims. We contributed to the Pusks:

« the rights with respect to proceeds associated pathonal injury-related insurance recoveries cédie on
our consolidated financial statements at June G06 s a receivable having a value of $963.3 mil

* $13 million in cash (less approximately $.3 milliadvanced prior to July 6, 200t

« the stock of a subsidiary whose primary asset \wpsoximately 145 acres of real estate located in
Louisiana and the rights as lessor under a leaseagnt for such real property that produces modest
rental income; an

» 75% of a pre-petition general unsecured claim againe of our subsidiaries in the amount of
$1,106 million, entitling the PI Trusts to a shafehe 4,460,000 shares of common stock distribtdged
unsecured claimholder

The PI Trusts assumed all liability and responiibibr present and future asbestos personal injlayns,
present and future silica personal injury clainrespnt and future coal tar pitch personal injugaimob and present
but not future noise-induced hearing personal yngiaims. As of July 6, 2006, injunctions were eatkprohibiting
any person from pursuing any claims against uswprodé our affiliates in respect of such matters.

In general, the rights afforded under our Plan thedreatment of claims under our Plan are in cetapl
satisfaction of and discharge all claims arisingbobefore July 6, 2006. However, our Plan doedimit any rights
that the United States of America or the individsialtes may have under environmental laws to seekforce
equitable remedies against us, though we may aageand all available defenses in any action toreefsuch
equitable remedies. Further, with regard to cenmaim-owned sites specified in the environmentdlesaent
agreement entered into in connection with our B&to which we and the United States of Americartmdeached
settlement by the confirmation date, all our rigdatsl defenses and those of the United States ofiéanare
preserved and not affected by our Plan. With resjoesites owned by us after the confirmation dspecified
categories of claims of the United States of Anmeednd the individual states party to the envirorialesettlement
agreement are not discharged, impaired or afféntady way by our Plan, and we maintain any andefénses to
any such claims except for any defense alleging slaims were discharged under our Plan.

Cash payments made on July 6, 2006 for prioritysewired claims, payments to the PI Trusts, badk an
professional fees totaled approximately $29 milkom were funded using existing cash resources.
Legal Structure

In connection with our Plan, we restructured amopdified our corporate structure. The result of siraplified
corporate structure is summarized as follows:

* We directly own 100% of the issued and outstandimyes of capital stock of Kaiser Aluminum Invegtise
Company, a newly formed Delaware corporation (“KAlQvhich is intended to function as an intermeeiat
holding company

» KAIC owns 49% of the ownership interests of Angleaad 100% of the ownership interests of eacl

» Kaiser Aluminum Fabricated Products, LLC, a nevdgnied Delaware limited liability company
(“KAFP"), which holds the assets and liabilitiesasiated with our fabricated products business unit
(excluding those assets and liabilities associadéuthe London, Ontario facility’
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« Kaiser Aluminum Canada Limited, a newly formed Qiat&orporation (“KACL"), which holds the assets
and liabilities of our London, Ontario operatiomslaertain former KACC Canadian subsidiaries thaitew
largely inactive

» Kaiser Aluminum & Chemical Corporation, LLC, a ngvibrmed Delaware limited liability company
(“KACC, LLC"), which, as a successor by merger taiser Aluminum & Chemical Corporation, holds our
remaining no-operating assets and liabilities not assumed by K

« Kaiser Aluminium International, Inc., Trochus Inance Co., Ltd., and Kaiser Bauxite Compe

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This Item may contain statements which constitédesfard-looking statements” within the meaning loé t
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1996e$tem 1“Business — Forward Looking Statements” for
cautionary information with respect to such forwdodking statements. Such cautionary informationusdhde reac
as applying to all forward-looking statements whenrethey appear in this Report. Forward-lookingtstaents are
not guarantees of future performance and involgaificant risks and uncertainties. Actual resultaynvary from
those in forward-looking statements as a result ofimber of factors including those we discussim Iitem and
elsewhere in this Report.

In evaluating us or our common stock, you shouteftdly consider the following risks. The risks ddbed
below are those which we believe are the matdgksmwe face. The occurrence of any of the eveistsidsed belo
could significantly and adversely affect our busgerospects, financial condition, results of apens and cash
flows as well as the trading price of our commarckt

We recently emerged from chapter 11 bankruptcy, @austained losses in the past and may not be tble
maintain profitability.

Because we recently emerged from chapter 11 batdyramd have in the past sustained losses, we tanno
assure you that we will be able to maintain profitty in the future. We sought protection undeapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code in February 2002. We emerged frankhuptcy as a reorganized entity on July 6, 260®r to
and during this reorganization, we incurred suli@hnet losses, including net losses of $788.3ioni)
$746.8 million and $753.7 million in the fiscal ye@nded December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, regpkyctif we
cannot maintain profitability, the value of an istrment in Kaiser may decline.

A reader may not be able to compare our historifiakncial information to our future financial information,
which will make it more difficult to evaluate an irestment in our company.

As a result of the effectiveness of our chapteplah of reorganization, our Plan, on July 6, 2006 are
operating our business under a new capital strectaraddition, we adopted fresh start reportingdoordance with
American Institute of Certified Public Accounta@stement of Position 90-7, or SOP 9(~inancial Reporting by
Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy €as of July 1, 2006. Because SOP 90-7 requires ascount
for our assets and liabilities at their fair valassof the effectiveness of our Plan, our financtaddition and results
of operations from and after July 1, 2006 will betcomparable in some material respects to thadiabhcondition
or results of operations reflected in our histdrfagancial statements at dates or for periodsrgonaluly 1, 2006.
This may make it difficult to assess our futuregmects based on historical performance.

We operate in a highly competitive industry whicbudd adversely affect our profitability.

The fabricated products segment of the aluminumstrg is highly competitive. Competition in the esalf
fabricated aluminum products is based upon qualitgjlability, price and service, including deliygrerformance.
Many of our competitors are substantially largemthive are and have greater financial resourceswhaito, and
may have other strategic advantages, including reffi@ent technologies or lower raw material ame:gy costs.
Our facilities are primarily located in North Ameai. To the extent that our competitors have pradudacilities
located outside North America, they may be ablertmluce similar products at a lower cost. We maybeacable to
adequately reduce costs to compete with these pi®duacreased competition could cause a redudtionr
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shipment volumes and profitability or increase exppenditures, any one of which could have a matadzerse
effect on our financial position, results of op&as and cash flows.

We depend on a core group of significant customers.

In 2006, our largest fabricated products custofReliance Steel & Aluminum, accounted for approxiehat
18% of our fabricated products net sales, andigarlérgest customers accounted for approximatédp 4f our
fabricated products net sales. If our existingtrefships with significant customers materiallyeteirate or are
terminated and we are not successful in replac@sghbusiness, our financial position, results afragions and cash
flows could be materially and adversely affectelde Toss of Reliance as a customer could have aialaddverse
effect on our financial position, results of operas and cash flows. In addition, a significant déwvn in the
business or financial condition of any of our sfgaint customers could materially and adverselgefbur financia
position, results of operations and cash flows.

Some of our current and former international custiamparticularly automobile manufacturers in Eerapd
Japan, were reluctant to do business with us wigleinderwent chapter 11 bankruptcy reorganizaficgsumably
because of their unfamiliarity with U.S. bankruptaws and the uncertainty about the strength otbasiness.
Although we believe our emergence from chapterdrkhuptcy should mitigate such reluctance, we de@ go
assurance that this will be the case.

Our industry is very sensitive to foreign economiegulatory and political factors that may advergeadffect our
business.

We import primary aluminum from, and manufacturerfeated products used in, foreign countries. Ve al
own 49% of Anglesey, which owns and operates amialum smelter in the United Kingdom. We purchaseraha
to supply to Anglesey and we purchase aluminum fAarglesey for sale to a third party in the Uniteishgddom.
Factors in the politically and economically divecsgintries in which we operate or have customersippliers,
including inflation, fluctuations in currency amtérest rates, competitive factors, civil unrest Etor problems,
could affect our financial position, results of cgtéons and cash flows. Our financial positionpiesof operations
and cash flows could also be adversely affected by:

« acts of war or terrorism or the threat of war ordgsm;

< government regulation in the countries in whichaperate, service customers or purchase raw masg
« the implementation of controls on imports, exportgrices;

« the adoption of new forms of taxatic

« the imposition of currency restrictior

« the nationalization or appropriation of rights ¢her assets; ar

* trade disputes involving countries in which we @jey service customers or purchase raw mate

The aerospace industry is cyclical and downturnstire aerospace industry, including downturns resot
from acts of terrorism, could adversely affect orgvenues and profitability.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue frpmducts sold to the aerospace industry, whidtighkly
cyclical and tends to decline in response to oVdradlines in industrial production. As a resuliy business is
affected by overall levels of industrial productiand fluctuations in the aerospace industry. Theroercial
aerospace industry is historically driven by thendad from commercial airlines for new aircraft. Dard for
commercial aircraft is influenced by airline indysprofitability, trends in airline passenger tiaffby the state of
the U.S. and world economies and numerous oth&sriadncluding the effects of terrorism. The nailif aerospace
cycle is highly dependent on U.S. and foreign gorent funding; however, it is also driven by thizefs of
terrorism, a changing global political environmdutS. foreign policy, regulatory changes, the estient of older
aircraft and technological improvements to newraittceengines that increase reliability. The timidgration and
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severity of cyclical upturns and downturns canr@phkedicted with certainty. A future downturn oduetion in
demand could have a material adverse effect ofimamcial position, results of operations and céaivs.

In addition, because we and other suppliers arareipg production capacity to alleviate the cursmply
shortage for heat treat aluminum plate, heat pkede prices may eventually begin to decrease@duption capacit
increases. Although we have implemented cost rémluand sales growth initiatives to minimize thepamnt on our
results of operations as heat treat plate pridesrréo more typical historical levels, these miitres may not be
adequate and our financial position, results ofafiens and cash flows may be adversely affected.

A number of major airlines have also recently ugdee or are undergoing chapter 11 bankruptcy antintee
to experience financial strain from high fuel pac€ontinued financial instability in the industnay lead to
reduced demand for new aircraft that utilize owduorcts, which could adversely affect our finanpiasition, results
of operations and cash flows.

The aerospace industry suffered significantly mwake of the events of September 11, 2001, raguhia
sharp decrease globally in new commercial airclelitveries and order cancellations or deferralshigymajor
airlines. This decrease reduced the demand foAero/HS products. While there has been a recoviane<001,
the threat of terrorism and fears of future testaicts could negatively affect the aerospace ingasd our
financial position, results of operations and ciahs.

Our customers may reduce their demand for aluminyaroducts in favor of alternative materials.

Our fabricated aluminum products compete with potslinade from other materials, such as steel and
composites, for various applications. For instative commercial aerospace industry has used arithaeas to
evaluate the further use of alternative mater@malaminum, such as composites, in order to retheeveight and
increase the fuel efficiency of aircraft. The williness of customers to accept substitutions fonialum or the
ability of large customers to exert leverage inrnterketplace to reduce the pricing for fabricatietininum product:
could adversely affect the demand for our prodysasticularly our aerospace and high strength prtsd@and thus
adversely affect our financial position, result®pérations and cash flows.

Downturns in the automotive industry could advergeldffect our net sales and profitability.

The demand for many of our general engineeringcaistbom products is dependent on the production of
automobiles, light trucks and heavy duty vehicteblorth America. The automotive industry is highijclical, as
new vehicle demand is dependent on consumer spgeaduhis tied closely to the overall strength @f orth
American economy. The North American automotiveustdy is facing costly inventory corrections whiuld
adversely affect our net sales and profitabilitgcBnt production cuts announced by General Motorpdation,
Ford Motor Company and DaimlerChrysler AG, as vaslicutbacks in heavy duty truck production, mayeasisly
affect the demand for our products. If the finahc@ndition of these auto manufacturers continodset unsteady or
if any of the three seek restructuring or reliebtigh bankruptcy proceedings, the demand for conlymrts may
decline, adversely affecting our net sales anditatwfity. Any decline in the demand for new autdsiles,
particularly in the United States, could have aariat adverse effect on our financial positionutessof operations
and cash flows. Seasonality experienced by thenaatiee industry in the third and fourth quarterstof calendar
year also affects our financial position, resuftserations and cash flown

Because our products are often components of oustoumers’ products, reductions in demand for our plects
may be more severe than, and may occur prior tougtibns in demand for, our customers’ products.

Our products are often components of the end-ptsdafour customers. Customers purchasing ourdatad
aluminum products, such as those in the cyclicadraotive and aerospace industries, generally reqigmificant
lead time in the production of their own produdtserefore, demand for our products may increas® psidemand
for our customers’ products. Conversely, demanaésrproducts may decrease as our customers attcip
downturn in their respective businesses. As derfianadur customers’ products begins to soften, aist@mers
typically reduce or eliminate their demand for puwducts and meet the reduced demand for theiuptsdising
their own inventory without replenishing that intery, which results in a reduction in demand for products that
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is greater than the reduction in demand for theidpcts. This amplified reduction in demand for puwducts in the
event of a downswing in our customers’ respectivgiiesses may adversely affect our financial positiesults of
operations and cash flows.

Our business is subject to unplanned business iniptions which may adversely affect our performance

The production of fabricated aluminum productsuisject to unplanned events such as explosions, fire
inclement weather, natural disasters, acciderassportation interruptions and supply interruptiaddperational
interruptions at one or more of our production lfaes, particularly interruptions at our Trentwotatility in
Spokane, Washington where our production of platesheet is concentrated, could cause substamsseds in our
production capacity. Furthermore, because customaysbe dependent on planned deliveries from wspmers
that have to reschedule their own production dusutadelivery delays may be able to pursue findrdgams
against us, and we may incur costs to correct pumblems in addition to any liability resulting frosuch claims.
Such interruptions may also harm our reputationragraxtual and potential customers, potentially ltegpin a loss
of business. To the extent these losses are net@dwby insurance, our financial position, resofteperations and
cash flows may be adversely affected by such events

Covenants and events of default in our debt instremts could limit our ability to undertake certairypes of
transactions and adversely affect our liquidity.

Our revolving credit facility and term loan facjlitontain negative and financial covenants and tsvefndefaul
that may limit our financial flexibility and abiiitto undertake certain types of transactions. Rstance, we are
subject to negative covenants that restrict ouviéiess, including restrictions on creating lie@sigaging in mergers,
consolidations and sales of assets, incurring imdh@it indebtedness, providing guaranties, engaigirdifferent
businesses, making loans and investments, makiajrcelividends, debt and other restricted paymengking
certain prepayments of indebtedness, engagingriaisdransactions with affiliates and enteringinertain
restrictive agreements. If we fail to satisfy tlowrenants set forth in our revolving credit facilagd term loan
facility or another event of default occurs undede facilities, the maturity of the loans couldabeelerated or, in
the case of the revolving credit facility, we coblg prohibited from borrowing for our working cagiheeds. If the
loans are accelerated and we do not have sufficasit on hand to pay all amounts due, we coul@dpgined to sell
assets, to refinance all or a portion of our inddhess or to obtain additional financing. Refinagaenay not be
possible and additional financing may not be awééglaan commercially acceptable terms, or at allvéfcannot
borrow under the revolving credit facility to meetr working capital needs, we would need to seelitiatal
financing, if available, or curtail our operations.

We depend on our subsidiaries for cash to meet ohbligations and pay any dividends.

We are a holding company. Our subsidiaries condllicf our operations and own substantially albaf
assets. Consequently, our cash flow and our aldityeet our obligations or pay dividends to oockholders
depend upon the cash flow of our subsidiaries hagpaiyment of funds by our subsidiaries to us énfétinm of
dividends, tax sharing payments or otherwise. Qbsgliaries’ ability to make any payment will degean their
earnings, the terms of their indebtedness (inclythie revolving credit facility and term loan fatgi), tax
considerations and legal restrictions.

We may not be able to successfully implement ouwdarctivity and cost reduction initiatives.

We have undertaken and may continue to undertadduptivity and cost reduction initiatives to impeov
performance, including deployment of company-widsibess improvement methodologies, such as ouuptio
system, the Kaiser Production System, which invelie integrated utilization of application and alsed process
engineering and business improvement methodolagiels as lean enterprise, total productive maintemand six
sigma. We cannot assure you that these initiatiib$e completed or beneficial to us or that astiraated cost
saving from such activities will be realized. EvEwe are able to generate new efficiencies sudatgsn the short
to medium term, we may not be able to continuetiuce cost and increase productivity over the teng.
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Our profitability could be adversely affected bycireases in the cost of raw materials.

The price of primary aluminum has historically beesject to significant cyclical price fluctuatigramd the
timing of changes in the market price of alumingntargely unpredictable. Although our pricing obfeated
aluminum products is generally intended to passittkeof price fluctuations on to our customers, way not be
able to pass on the entire cost of such increasesrtcustomers or offset fully the effects of keghosts for other
raw materials, which may cause our profitabilitydtcline. There will also be a potential time lagvieen increases
in prices for raw materials under our purchaseremts and the point when we can implement a cooredipg
increase in price under our sales contracts witrcastomers. As a result, we may be exposed ttufiions in raw
materials prices, including aluminum, since, dutting time lag, we may have to bear the additionat of the price
increase under our purchase contracts. If thesg®weere to occur, they could have a material adveffect on our
financial position, results of operations and cielvs. Furthermore, we are party to arrangemensedan fixed
prices that include the primary aluminum price comgnt, so that we bear the entire risk of risingrahum prices,
which may cause our profitability to decline. Indé&@bn, an increase in raw materials prices mayseaome of our
customers to substitute other materials for oudpets, adversely affecting our results of operatidue to both a
decrease in the sales of fabricated aluminum prsdaurad a decrease in demand for the primary alumipoduced
at Anglesey.

We are responsible for selling alumina to Angleisegroportion to our ownership percentage at a
predetermined price. Such alumina currently is pased under contracts that extend through 200 catspthat are
tied to primary aluminum prices. We will need tesee a new alumina contract for the period aft€72We cannot
assure you that we will be able to secure a sonfratumina at comparable prices. If we are unabléa so, our
financial position, results of operations and cielvs associated with our primary aluminum businesgment may
be adversely affected.

The price volatility of energy costs may adversatfect our profitability.

Our income and cash flows depend on the marginefired and variable expenses (including energyst@d
which we are able to sell our fabricated aluminudpcts. The volatility in costs of fuel, principahatural gas,
and other utility services, principally electrigitysed by our production facilities affect opergteosts. Fuel and
utility prices have been, and will continue to Bfected by factors outside our control, such ggpluand demand
for fuel and utility services in both local and i@wal markets. The daily closing price of the frombnth futures
contract for natural gas per million British thelrnaits as reported on NYMEX ranged between $41&¥ $8.75 in
2004, between $5.79 and $15.38 in 2005 and betf4&0 and $10.63 in 2006. Typically, electricitycps
fluctuate with natural gas prices which increas@sexposure to energy costs. Future increaseslrafid utility
prices may have an adverse effect on our finapcisition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our hedging programs may limit the income and cafétws we would otherwise expect to receive if our
hedging program were not in place.

From time to time in the ordinary course of busi&ge may enter into hedging transactions to louit
exposure to price risks relating to primary alunminprices, energy prices and foreign currency. Eoetktent that
these hedging transactions fix prices or exchaatgsand the prices for primary aluminum exceedixiee or
ceiling prices established by these hedging trdimsacor energy costs or foreign exchange ratebelmv the fixed
prices, our income and cash flows will be lowemthizey otherwise would have been.

The expiration of the power agreement for Anglesegy adversely affect our cash flows and affect dwadging
programs.

The agreement under which Anglesey receives powgres in September 2009, and the nuclear faaititych
supplies such power is scheduled to cease opesatidate 2010. As of the date of this Report, Asgly has not
identified a source from which to obtain sufficigruwer to sustain its operations on reasonablyabée terms
thereafter, and we cannot assure you that Angledlelge able to do so. If, as a result, Angleseglisminum
production is curtailed or its costs are increased,cash flows may be adversely affected. In amidiany decrease
in Anglesey’s production would reduce or elimintte “natural hedge” against rising primary
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aluminum prices created by our participation inphienary aluminum market and, accordingly, we magmi it
appropriate to increase our hedging activity tatl@xposure to such price risks, potentially adebraffecting our
financial position, results of operations and ciaivs.

If Anglesey cannot obtain sufficient power, Anglgseoperations will likely be shut down. Given thetential
for future shut down and related costs, dividemdmfAnglesey have been suspended temporarily vimitgesey
studies future cash requirements. The shut downimeayve significant costs to Anglesey which woudlelcrease or
eliminate its ability to pay dividends. The proce$shutting down operations may involve transittmmplications
which may prevent Anglesey from operating at falpacity until the expiration of the power contraks.a result,
our financial position, results of operations aadttflows may be negatively affected even befoeeStbptember
2009 expiration of the power contract.

Our ability to keep key management and other pensehin place and our ability to attract managemeand
other personnel may affect our performance.

We depend on our senior executive officers andrdteg personnel to run our business. The loss pfodithest
officers or other key personnel could materiallg anlversely affect our operations. Competitiondfioalified
employees among companies that rely heavily onnereging and technology is intense, and the losmialified
employees or an inability to attract, retain andinade additional highly skilled employees requifedthe
operation and expansion of our business could hiodeability to improve manufacturing operationspduct
research activities successfully or develop malketproducts.

Our production costs may increase and we may nattain our sales and earnings if we fail to maintain
satisfactory labor relations.

A significant number of our employees are represgbly labor unions under labor contracts with vagyi
durations and expiration dates. We may not be taldlenegotiate our labor contracts when they exgpire
satisfactory terms or at all. A failure to do soynirecrease our costs or cause us to limit or hadtrations before a
new agreement is reached. In addition, our exidthgr agreements may not prevent a strike or wtogpage, and
any work stoppage could have a material adversetedh our financial position, results of operasiamd cash
flows.

Our business is regulated by a wide variety of balnd safety laws and regulations and compliancayrbe
costly and may adversely affect our results of cgt@ns.

Our operations are regulated by a wide varietyeadth and safety laws and regulations. Compliante tvese
laws and regulations may be costly and could havnatarial adverse effect on our results of openatitn addition,
these laws and regulations are subject to changeyaime, and we can give you no assurance deteffect that
any such changes would have on our operationseartfount that we would have to spend to comply sutth law
and regulations as so changed.

Environmental compliance, clean up and damage claimay decrease our cash flow and adversely affect o
results of operations.

We are subject to numerous environmental laws agdlations with respect to, among other thingsaad
water emissions and discharges; the generatiomggptreatment, transportation and disposal @ sold hazardot
waste; and the release of hazardous or toxic sutes$apollutants and contaminants into the envietm
Compliance with these environmental laws is andlagihtinue to be costly.

Our operations, including our operations condugtéar to our emergence from chapter 11 bankrugtaye
subjected, and may in the future subject, us tesfior penalties for alleged breaches of environahéat's and to
obligations to perform investigations or clean @iphe environment. We may also be subject to cldmms
governmental authorities or third parties relatedlteged injuries to the environment, human healthatural
resources, including claims with respect to waspakal sites, the clean up of sites currenthoamerly used by us
or exposure of individuals to hazardous materiais; investigation, clean-up or other remediatiostspfines or
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penalties, or costs to resolve third-party clainas/rbe costly and could have a material adversetedfe our
financial position, results of operations and ciahs.

We have accrued, and will accrue, for costs redatiinthe above matters that are reasonably expéezteel
incurred based on available information. Howeues possible that actual costs may differ, pertagsificantly,
from the amounts expected or accrued, and suctrédif€es could have a material adverse effect ofirancial
position, results of operations and cash flowsaddition, new laws or regulations or changes teteg laws and
regulations may occur, and we cannot assure ytw the amount that we would have to spend to comjily such
new or amended laws and regulations or the effeatsthey would have on our financial position utesof
operations and cash flows.

Other legal proceedings or investigations or chasge the laws and regulations to which we are sutijenay
adversely affect our results of operations.

In addition to the environmental matters descrialedve, we may from time to time be involved inperthe
subject of, disputes, proceedings and investigatwith respect to a variety of matters, includingtters related to
health and safety, personal injury, employees,staxal contracts, as well as other disputes andedings that ari
in the ordinary course of business. It could bdlgds defend against these claims or any invettiga involving
them, whether meritorious or not, and legal prooegsiand investigations could divert managemeriténsion as
well as operational resources, negatively affeatingfinancial position, results of operations aadh flows. It
could also be costly to make payments on accouahpfuch claims.

Additionally, as with the environmental laws andukations to which we are subject, the other laag a
regulations which govern our business are subjechénge at any time, and we cannot assure yauthe amount
that we would have to spend to comply with suctslawd regulations as so changed or otherwisetas tffect
that any such changes would have on our operations.

Product liability claims against us could result isignificant costs or negatively affect our repuiat and could
adversely affect our results of operations.

We are sometimes exposed to warranty and prodalitity claims. We cannot assure you that we wall n
experience material product liability losses agsirom such claims in the future. We generally neminsurance
against many product liability risks but we canassure you that our coverage will be adequatadbilities
ultimately incurred. In addition, we cannot assyma that insurance will continue to be availableisoon terms
acceptable to us. A successful claim that exceedawailable insurance coverage could have a nahtadtiverse
effect on our financial position, results of opéras and cash flows.

Our Trentwood expansion project may not be comptess scheduled.

We are currently in the process of a $105 millispansion of production capacity and gauge capsiatiour
Trentwood facility. While the project is currentty schedule to be completed in 2008, with substhytll costs
being incurred in 2006 and 2007, our ability tdyfdomplete this project, and the timing and cadtdoing so, are
subject to various risks associated with all mafmstruction projects, many of which are beyondamntrol,
including technical or mechanical problems. If we anable to fully complete this project or if thetual costs for
this project exceed our current expectations, mamtial position, results of operations and césivd would be
adversely affected. In addition, we have contraatsently in place expected to be fulfilled withoduction from the
expanded facility. If completion of the expansiersignificantly delayed or the expansion is notyfabmpleted, we
may not be able to meet shipping deadlines on ¢ina all, which would adversely affect our resat®perations,
may lead to litigation and may damage our relatigpswith these customers and our reputation gépera

We may not be able to successfully execute ourtetyg of growth through acquisitions.

A component of our growth strategy is to acquitarifzated products assets in order to complemenpmgduct
portfolio. Our ability to do so will be dependeman a number of factors, including our ability demtify acceptabl
acquisition candidates, consummate acquisitionfseorable terms, successfully integrate acquired
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assets, obtain financing to fund acquisitions amqgpert our growth and many other factors beyondcoutrol.
Risks associated with acquisitions include thosaing to:

« diversion of manageme’s time and attention from our existing busint
« challenges in managing the increased scope, geugrdpersity and complexity of operatior

« difficulties in integrating the financial, techngical and management standards, processes, preseahu
controls of the acquired business with those ofexisting operations

« liability for known or unknown environmental coridits or other contingent liabilities not covered by
indemnification or insuranci

« greater than anticipated expenditures requireddarpliance with environmental or other regulatory
standards or for investments to improve operatasgilts;

« difficulties in achieving anticipated operationalpgrovements

* incurrence of additional indebtedness to finan@puaitions or capital expenditures relating to dce
assets; an

* issuance of additional equity, which could resualfurther dilution of the ownership interests ofstixg
stockholders

We may not be successful in acquiring additionaktss and any acquisitions that we do consummayenota
produce the anticipated benefits or may have adwffects on our financial position, results of giens and cash
flows.

In our 2005 Form 10-K, we have reported one matéraeakness relating to hedge accounting in our imal
control over financial reporting, which resulted ithe restatement of our financial statements, anaeo
significant deficiency.

During the first quarter of 2006 as part of theomtipg and closing process relating to the prepamaif our
December 31, 2005 financial statements, we condltia&t our controls and procedures were not effecs of
December 31, 2005 because due to a material weaknagernal control over financial reporting dri relating to
our accounting for derivative financial instrumemsmaterial weakness is a control deficiency, @nbination of
control deficiencies, that results in more thaemate likelihood that a material misstatement afannual or
interim financial statements would not be prevertedetected. We concluded that our proceduretingléo
hedging transactions were not designed effectigaty that our documentation did not comply with &iert
accounting rules, thus requiring us to accounbfarderivatives on a mark-to-marketsis. While we are working
modify our documentation and requalify certain dative transactions for treatment as hedges, anel éagaged
outside experts to perform periodic reviews, wencamssure you that such improved controls willyprg any or al
instances of non-compliance. As a result of theentweakness, we restated our financial statesrfenthe
quarters ended March 31, 2005, June 30, 2005 goeiBber 30, 2005, to reflect mark-to-market accogniSee
Part Il, Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures” in tRigport for more information. Until we requalify roderivatives
for hedge accounting treatment, we will not constties matter to be fully remediated.

We also concluded that the appropriate post-emeggaccounting treatment for payments made in 20@5et
voluntary employees’ beneficiary association trustsVEBAS, created in connection with our chagtér
reorganization required presentation of VEBA payte&s a reduction of pre-petition retiree mediddigations
rather than as a period expense, as we had coddiugeior quarters. Our prior treatment of VEBAyp#ents was
identified as a significant deficiency in our inmtat control over financial reporting at Decembey 2005. We
corrected this deficiency during the preparationwf December 31, 2005 financial statements armhrdmgly,
such deficiency did not exist at the end of thessglnent periods.

Although we believe we have or will address thaesees with the remedial measures that we have inguieed
or plan to implement, the measures we have takeat®and any future measures may not be effeetheewe may
not be able to implement and maintain effectiverimal control over financial reporting in the fuguin addition,
other deficiencies in our internal controls maydiscovered in the future.
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Any failure to correct the material weakness amplement new or improved controls, or difficulties
encountered in their implementation, could causm digil to meet our reporting obligations or resnlmaterial
misstatements in our financial statements. Any gaitre also could affect the ability of our maeagent to certify
that our internal controls are effective when ipdes an assessment of our internal control amantial reporting
and could affect the results of our independenisteged public accounting firm'’s attestation repegarding our
management’s assessment. Inferior internal conarudisfurther related restatements could also causstors to
lose confidence in our reported financial inforroatiwhich could have a negative effect on the mgdgirice of our
stock.

We will be exposed to risks relating to evaluatiasfscontrols required by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

We are required to comply with Section 404 of theb&nes-Oxley Act of 2002 by no later than Decendhier
2007. We are in the process of evaluating our iralerontrols systems to allow management to regorand our
independent auditors to audit, our internal costmler financial reporting. We will be performirtgetsystem and
process evaluation and testing (and any necessargdiation) required to comply with the managencentificatior
and auditor attestation requirements of Section B@dvever, we cannot be certain as to the timingoofpletion of
our evaluation, testing and remediation actionhermpact of the same on our operations. Furthesmagoon
completion of this process, we may identify contteficiencies of varying degrees of severity urafgplicable
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, anticFiibmpany Accounting Oversight Board rules and
regulations that remain unremediated. We will lmpiieed to report, among other things, control deficies that
constitute a “material weakness” or changes irriiratiecontrols that, or are reasonably likely totenally affect
internal controls over financial reporting. A “meag weakness” is a control deficiency, or combio@atof
significant deficiencies that results in more tlammote likelihood that a material misstatemerihefannual or
interim financial statements will not be preventedietected. If we fail to implement the requirensesf
Section 404 in a timely manner, we might be subijgstanctions or investigation by regulatory auties such as
the SEC or by NASDAQ. Additionally, failure to cotyvith Section 404 or the report by us of a matienreaknes
may cause investors to lose confidence in our firsustatements and our stock price may be adweadtdcted. If
we fail to remedy any material weakness, our fingretatements may be inaccurate, we may not hesesa to the
capital markets, and our stock price may be adixeedtected.

We may not be able to adequately protect proprigtaghts to our technology.

Our success will depend in part upon our propnetachnology and processes. Although we attemptdtect
our intellectual property through patents, tradéwsairade secrets, copyrights, confidentiality anddisclosure
agreements and other measures, these measure®nimyadequate to protect such intellectual prgpert
particularly in foreign countries where the lawsynadfer significantly less intellectual propertygpection than is
offered by the laws of the United States. In additiany attempts to enforce our intellectual propeghts, even if
successful, could result in costly and prolonggddtion, divert managemestattention and adversely affect incc
and cash flows. Failure to adequately protect otgilectual property may adversely affect our ressaf operations
as our competitors would be able to utilize suapprty without having had to incur the costs ofaleping it, thus
potentially reducing our relative profitability. Rhermore, we may be subject to claims that ourietogy infringe:
the intellectual property rights of another. Evewithout merit, those claims could result in cgsthd prolonged
litigation, divert management’s attention and adegr affect our income and cash flows. In additiwa,may be
required to enter into licensing agreements inot@eontinue using technology that is importanotm business.
However, we may be unable to obtain license agratsymn acceptable terms, which could negativelkycafbur
financial position, results of operations and ciaivs.

We may not be able to utilize all of our net openrat loss carry-forwards.

We have net operating loss carry-forwards and atigmificant U.S. tax attributes that we believeldooffset
otherwise taxable income in the United States. @iebe that these tax attributes could togethesedfin the range
of $975 to $1,050 million of otherwise taxable im@@ This matter will, however, not be better defaahle until
the completion of our 2006 income tax return arialgsring mid/late 2007. The amount of net opetploss carry-
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forwards available in any year to offset our nettade income will be reduced or eliminated if w@esience a
“change of ownership” as defined in the Internal&we Code. We have entered into a stock transétriation
agreement with our largest stockholder, a VEBA titatides benefits for certain eligible retireegresented by
certain unions and their spouses and eligible dégras (which we refer to as the Union VEBA) and certificate
of incorporation prohibits and voids certain tramsfof our common stock in order to reduce thettisk a change
ownership will jeopardize our net operating loss\céorwards. Because U.S. tax law limits the ticheing which
carry-forwards may be applied against future tanesiay not be able to take full advantage of Hreyeforwards
for federal income tax purposes. In addition, thelaws pertaining to net operating loss carry-fmads may be
changed from time to time such that the net opggdtiss carry-forwards may be reduced or eliminafetie net
operating loss carry-forwards become unavailablestor are fully utilized, our future income wilbinbe shielded
from federal income taxation, thereby reducing fintherwise available for general corporate purpose

Our current common stock has a limited trading hisyy and a small public float which may limit devedment
of a market for our common stock and increase tlielihood of significant volatility in the marketdr our
common stock.

In order to reduce the risk that any change incaumership would jeopardize the preservation ofld.8.
federal income tax attributes, including net opgarploss carry-forwards, for purposes of Sectiod2 &nd 383 of
the Internal Revenue Code, upon emergence fromehap bankruptcy, we entered into a stock trangfgiriction
agreement with our largest stockholder, the Uni@B¥, and amended and restated our certificateafriporation
to include restrictions on transfers involving 5%n@rship. These transfer restrictions could hirtdarelopment of
an active market for our common stock. In addititve, market price of our common stock may be stljec
significant fluctuations in response to numerowsdis, including variations in our annual or qudyténancial
results or those of our competitors, changes anfiral analysts in their estimates of our futuneiggs, substantial
amounts of our common stock being sold into thdipubarkets upon the expiration of share transéstrictions,
which expire in July 2016, or upon the occurreniceentain events relating to U.S. tax benefits ke under
section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, conditinrthe economy in general or in the fabricatesnéhum
products industry in particular or unfavorable pciby.

Our net sales, operating results and profitabilityay vary from period to period, which may lead tolatility in
the trading price of our stock.

Our financial and operating results may be sigaifity below the expectations of public market asgand
investors and the price of our common stock mayimedue to the following factors:

« volatility in the spot market for primary aluminuamd energy cost

« our annual accruals for variable payment obligatitmthe Union VEBA and another VEBA that provides
benefits for certain other eligible retirees angittisurviving spouses and eligible dependents (whie refer
to as the Salaried VEBA

» nor-cash charges includirlas-in, first-out, or LIFO, inventory charges and impairme

« global economic condition:

 unanticipated interruptions of our operations fioy season

* variations in the maintenance needs for our faedlj

 unanticipated changes in our labor relations;

« cyclical aspects impacting demand for our prodt
Our annual variable payment obligation to the UnioiEBA and Salaried VEBA are linked with our
profitability, which means that not all of our eatings will be available to our stockholders.

We are obligated to make annual payments to thenJMEBA and Salaried VEBA calculated based on our
profitability and therefore not all of our earningdl be available to our stockholders. The aggteganount of our
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annual payments to these VEBAs is capped, howav&20 million and is subject to other limitatiods a result o
these payment obligations, our earnings and casisfinay be reduced.

A significant percentage of our stock is held byetiunion VEBA which may exert significant influencever us.

The Union VEBA currently owns 26.7% of our commaock. As a result, the Union VEBA has significant
influence over matters requiring stockholder apptowmcluding the composition of our board of dias. Further,
to the extent that the Union VEBA and other sulisdgatockholders were to act in concert, they dquotentially
control any action taken by our stockholders. Toiscentration of ownership could also facilitathorder proxy
contests, tender offers, open market purchase ammoggrmergers or other purchases of our common gtatknight
otherwise give stockholders the opportunity toizesh premium over the then prevailing market pateur
common stock or cause the market price of our comstack to decline. We cannot assure you thatritegests of
our major stockholders will not conflict with ounterests or the interests of our other investors.

The USW has director nomination rights through whidt may influence us, and USW interests may nagal
with our interests or the interests of our otheniastors.

Pursuant to an agreement, the United Steel, Papiefarestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied
Industrial and Service Workers International UnidfL-ClO, CLC, or USW, has been granted rights amimate
40% of the candidates to be submitted to our stolddhns for election to our board of directors. A®sult, the
directors nominated by the USW may have a signifigaice in the decisions of our board of directors

We do not currently anticipate paying any dividend@sd our payment of dividends and stock repurcheisee
subject to restriction.

We have not declared or paid any cash dividendsuorcommon stock since we filed chapter 11 banksuist
2002. We currently intend to retain all earningstf® operation and expansion of our business antbticurrently
anticipate paying any dividends on our common stdtle declaration and payment of dividends, if anyhe
future will be at the discretion of the board afeditors and will be dependent upon our resultgpefations,
financial condition, cash requirements, future pexds and other factors. Accordingly, from timeitoe, the board
may declare dividends, though we can give you sarasice in this regard. Moreover, our revolvingliréacility
and our term loan facility restrict our ability declare or pay dividends or repurchase any shém@sr@ommon
stock. In addition, significant repurchases of sluares of common stock may jeopardize the presenvat our
federal income tax attributes, including our netmgping loss carry-forwards.

Our certificate of incorporation includes transferestrictions that may void transactions in our conom stock
effected by 5% stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation places restrican transfer of our equity securities if eithertfle transferor
holds 5% or more of the fair market value of albaf issued and outstanding equity securities pag2a result of
the transfer, either any person would become s atockholder or the percentage stock ownershgmy such
5% stockholder would be increased. These restnistawe subject to exceptions set forth in our foeate of
incorporation. Any transfer that violates theserretions will be unwound as provided in our cectite of
incorporation. Moreover, as indicated below, thesev/isions may make our stock less attractive tgdanstitutione
holders, and may also discourage potential acquirem attempting to take over our company. Assaltethese
transfer restrictions may have the effect of delgyor deterring a change of control of our compang may limit
the price that investors might be willing to payte future for shares of our common stock.

Delaware law, our governing documents and the stbi@nsfer restriction agreement we entered intofaext of
our Plan may impede or discourage a takeover, whiduld adversely affect the value of our commoncito

Provisions of Delaware law, our certificate of inporation and the stock transfer restriction agremtrwith the
Union VEBA may have the effect of discouraging armfpe of control of our company or deterring teraféars
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for our common stock. We are currently subjectriti-takeover provisions under Delaware law. Thesétakeover
provisions impose various impediments to the abdita third party to acquire control of us, evea change of
control would be beneficial to our existing stocldess. Additionally, provisions of our certificaté incorporation
and bylaws impose various procedural and otherirempents, which could make it more difficult fooskholders t
effect some corporate actions. For example, ouificate of incorporation authorizes our board o&dtors to
determine the rights, preferences and privilegelsrastrictions of unissued shares of preferredkstathout any
vote or action by our stockholders. Thus, our badrdirectors can authorize and issue shares éépesl stock witl
voting or conversion rights that could adversefgetfthe voting or other rights of holders of commstock. Our
certificate of incorporation also divides our boafdlirectors into three classes of directors wiiwe for staggered
terms. A significant effect of a classified boafdlectors may be to deter hostile takeover attsrbpcause an
acquirer could experience delays in replacing aritgjof directors. Moreover, stockholders are petmitted to ca
a special meeting. As indicated above, our cestifi®f incorporation prohibits certain transactioneur common
stock involving 5% stockholders or parties who vebbbécome 5% stockholders as a result of the tréinsadn
addition, we are party to a stock transfer restnicagreement with the Union VEBA which limits ability to
transfer our common stock. The general effect efttnsfer restrictions in the stock transfer retstn agreement
and our certificate of incorporation is to ensuratta change in ownership of more than 45% of atstanding
common stock cannot occur in any three-year pefiibdse rights and provisions may have the effedetdying or
deterring a change of control of our company angl linait the price that investors might be willing pay in the
future for shares of our common stock.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The locations and general character of the prihgjgats and other materially important physicalgerties
relating to our operations are described in IteriBlisiness — Business Operations” and those ddgmipare
incorporated herein by reference. We own in felease all the real estate and facilities used imeotion with our
business. Plants and equipment and other faciitiegenerally in good condition and suitable f@ittintended
uses.

All but three of our fabricated aluminum productiaeilities are owned by us and/or our subsidiariése
Chandler, Arizona facility is subject to a leaséwa primary lease term that expires in 2033. Weelwrtain
extension rights in respect of the Chandler le@ke.Richland, Washington facility is subject teeade with a 2011
expiration date, subject to certain extension gdteld by us. The Los Angeles facility is subjecatiease with a
2014 expiration date.

Our corporate headquarters and primary place ahess is located in Foothill Ranch, California asnteased.

Our obligations under the revolving credit facilapd the term loan facility are secured by, amdhgrmthings,
liens on our U.S. production facilities. See Notef Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsuthed! in Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”daher discussion.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

This Item may contain statements which constitfdesard-looking statements” within the meaning loé t
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1996e$tem 1“Business — Forward-Looking Statements” of this
Report for cautionary information with respect tach forwarclooking statements. Such cautionary information
should be read as applying to all forward-lookirtgtements whenever they appear in this Reportdicy this
Item. Forwarclooking statements are not guarantees of futuréop@ance and involve significant risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may vary from thasérward-looking statements as a result of a nunabéactors
including those we discuss in this Item, in Item “Bisk Factors” and elsewhere in this Report.

23




Reorganization Proceedings

The discussion in Item 1. “Business — Emergencm fReorganization Proceedings” and Notes 2 and 14 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements includétm 8.“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” are
incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to tar,n July 6, 2006, the ppetition ownership interests of Kais
were cancelled without consideration and approxétye®4.4 billion of pre-petition claims against irg;luding
claims in respect of debt, pension and postretiremmeedical obligations and asbestos and othelisdnitities were
resolved on our emergence from chapter 11 bankyuptc

Other Environmental Matters

We have been working with regulatory authoritied parforming studies and remediation pursuant verss
consent orders with the State of Washington redattinthe historical use of oils containing polyaiiated
byphenyls, or PCBs, at our Trentwood facility ino&ane, Washington before 1978. During April 2004, were
served with a subpoena for documents and notifjeBdaleral authorities that they were investigatiegain
environmental compliance issues with respect tofeentwood facility in the State of Washington.darly 2007,
we received a letter from the regulatory authaitienfirming that their investigation had been eths
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

No matter was submitted to a vote of our securitigérs during the fourth quarter of 2006.

PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market Information
Our outstanding common stock is traded on the Np&labal Market under the ticker symbol “KALU.”

The following table sets forth the high and lowesatices of our common stock for each quarterlyogesince
such common stock began trading on the Nasdaq (\tdoket on July 7, 2006.

High Low
Fiscal 200¢
Third quarter (from July 7, 2001 $44.5C $37.5(
Fourth quarte $62.0C  $43.5(
Holders

As of February 28, 2007, there were 494 holdergadrd of our common stock.

Dividends

We have not paid any dividends on our common stluckng the two most recent fiscal years. We cutyent
intend to retain all earnings for the operation argansion of our business and do not currentligipate paying
any dividends on our common stock. The declaratimthpayment of dividends, if any, in the futurel wé at the
discretion of the board of directors and will bep€eledent upon our results of operations, finan@abition, cash
requirements, future prospects and other factarsoAdingly, from time to time, the board may deeldividends,
though we can give no assurance in this regardrélmaving credit facility and the term loan fatjlicurrently
restrict our ability to pay any dividends or purs@any of our stock. Under these credit arrangesnere may pay
cash dividends only if we are not in default or Wabwoot be in default as a result of the divideradsd to an amount
based on a portion of cumulative earnings, neivaflends, as adjusted for certain other cash indlow
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows the change in our cunivgabtal shareholder return for the period frony Jy
2006 to December 31, 2006, based on the markes pfiour common stock, compared with: (1) the Danes
Wilshire 5000 and (2) the S & P Smallcap 600. Traph assumes a total initial investment of $106fakuly 7,
2006, and shows a “Total Return” that assumes esitnwent of dividends, if any. The performance anfttlowing
graph is not necessarily indicative of future perfance of our stock price.

COMPARISON OF 6 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Kaiser Aluminum Corporation, The Dow Jones Wishire 5000 Index
And The S & P Smallcap 600 Index

130

120

£110

T06 12/31/06

— Kaiser Aluminum Corporation =% = Dow Jones Wilshire 5000

—0— 5 & P Smallcap 600

* $100 invested on 7/7/06 in stock or on 6/30/0éhex-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Our performance graph reflects the cumulative reiir(i) the Dow Jones Wilshire 5000, a broad equitirket
index that includes companies whose equity seesrdre traded on the Nasdaqg Global Market anth@ib&P
Smallcap 600. We elected to use the latter afterdening that no published industry or line-of-lmess indexes
where closely enough related to our industry oiifmss to provide a reasonable basis for compariSiomlarly, we
determined that we could not identify comparabteimtiude in a peer group that would provide a oeable basis
for comparison and that, as a result, an indexisting of companies with similar market capitalinas was
appropriate.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The table at page 28 of Iltem 7. “Management’s Bismn and Analysis of Financial Condition and Ressof
Operations” and Note 11 of Notes to Consolidatewhi¢ial Statements, and Five-Year Financial Datlded in
Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementanaDate incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

This Item may contain statements which constitfdesard-looking statements” within the meaning loé t
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1998e$tem 17— “Business — Forward-Looking Statements” for

25




cautionary information with respect to such forwdodking statements. Such cautionary informationusdhde reac
as applying to all forward-looking statements wherethey appear in this Report, including this Itdforward-
looking statements are not guarantees of futurégperance and involve significant risks and uncentiais. Actual
results may vary from those in the forward-lookatgtements as a result of a number of factorsydioly those we
discuss in this Item, in Item 1A. “Risk Factors”dhalsewhere in this Report.

In the discussion of operating results below, derteems are referred to as non-run-rate items. parposes of
such discussion, non-run-rate items are items thihtle they may recur from period to period, arg |farticularly
material to results, (2) affect costs as a restikxternal market factors, and (3) may not recufuture periods if
the same level of underlying performance were tmodNon-run-rate items are part of our businesd aperating
environment but are worthy of being highlighted benefit of the users of the financial statemedts. intent is to
allow users of the financial statements to consalarresults both in light of and separately frdocfuations in
underlying metal prices.

Emergence from Reorganization Proceedings

As more fully discussed in Note 14 of Notes to Gdidsited Financial Statements included in ItemRBnancial
Statements and Supplementary Data” during thefpasyears, Kaiser and 25 of its subsidiaries ajeerander
chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Codeutite supervision of the United States Bankrugowrt for the
District of Delaware.

As outlined in Notes 2 and 14 of Notes to Consaéidaéinancial Statements, included in Item 8. “Ririal
Statements and Supplementary Data,” pursuant t&econd Amended Plan of Reorganization, or our,Ran
emerged from chapter 11 bankruptcy on July 6, 206 all of our fabricated products facilities aoperations and
a 49% interest in Anglesey, which owns a smeltéhé&nUnited Kingdom. Pursuant to our Plan, all matgre-
petition debt, pension and postretirement mediblgations and asbestos and other tort liabilittdsng with other
pre-petition claims (which in total aggregatedwaie) 30, 2006 approximately $4.4 billion), were asded and
resolved. Pursuant to our Plan, all of the equitgrests of Kaiser’s pre-emergence stockholders wancelled
without consideration. Equity of the newly emerdfaiser was issued and delivered to a third-papulising agent
for distribution to claimholders pursuant to ouai?’l See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Finastatements
included in Item 8. “Financial Statements and Sepmntary Data” for additional information on thenganization
process and our Plan.

A balance sheet showing the effects from the implatation of our Plan, application of fresh stadamting,
and certain related activities is included in N®tef Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsided in Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Datalidugd be noted that all financial statement infatioraas of
June 30, 2006 and for all prior periods relatelsaer before emergence from chapter 11 bankruptsya result,
comparisons between financial statement informaditer the July 6, 2006 effective date of our Rlad historical
financial statement information before such datedifficult to make.

Impacts of Emergence From Chapter 11 on Financialt&tements

All financial statement information before July2D06, relates to the Company before emergence from
chapter 11 (sometimes referred to herein as thed#ressor”). The Company after emergence is soeetieferred
to herein as the “Successor”. As more fully disedsiselow, there will be a number of differencesveetn the
financial statements before and after emergendenitianake comparisons of future and past finahiciformation
difficult which may make it more difficult to assesur future prospects based on historical perfooma

As a result of our emergence from chapter 11, vdiegbfresh start accounting to our opening Julg2a06
consolidated balance sheet as required by genam@tlpted accounting principles, or GAAP. As such:

* We adjusted our balance sheet to equal the re@ation value of the Compan

* We allocated the reorganization value to our irdiial assets and liabilities based on their estichizie
value. Such items as current liabilities, accouetgivable and cash reflect values similar to threperted
prior to emergence. ltems such as inventory, ptgpplant and equipment, lo-term assets and lo-term
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liabilities were significantly adjusted from amosmreviously reported. As more fully discussechim Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements includedemi8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,
these adjustments may adversely affect future tsesand

* We reset items such as accumulated depreciationradated deficit and accumulated other comprekensi
income (loss) to zert

We also made some changes to our accounting pohcié procedures as part of the fresh start andgemee
process. In general, our accounting policies agesttime as or similar to those historically usegrépare our
financial statements. In certain cases, howevedopted different accounting principles for, oplégd
methodologies differently to, our post-emergenparicial statement information. For instance, wenghd our
accounting methodologies with respect to inventmgounting. While we still account for inventor@sa
last-in, first-out basis, or LIFO, after emergenee,are applying LIFO differently than we did irethast.
Specifically, we will view each quarter on a stalode basis for computing LIFO; whereas, in the pastrecorded
LIFO amounts with a view to the entire fiscal yaghjich, with certain exceptions, tended to resultliFO charges
being recorded in the fourth quarter or second dfdlfie year.

Additionally, certain items such as earnings parsfand Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 12%-R, Share-Based Paymefstee discussion in Note 1 of Notes to Consolid&iadncial Statements included
in Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplemenBata”), which had few, if any, implications whileawvere in
chapter 11 bankruptcy, will have increased impartain our future financial statement information.

Results of Operations

Our main line of business is the production and séffabricated aluminum products. In addition,aven a
49% interest in Anglesey, which owns and operateslaminum smelter in Holyhead, Wales.

Our emergence from chapter 11 bankruptcy and amlopfifresh start accounting resulted in a new tipg
entity for accounting purposes. Although we emerigech chapter 11 bankruptcy on July 6, 2006, wepéehb fresh
start accounting under the provisions of Ameriaastitute of Certified Professional Accountants (CHA”)
Statement of Position 90-7 (“SOP 90-7F)npancial Reporting by Entities in Reorganizationdér the Bankruptcy
Code, effective as of the beginning of business on 1yl006. As such, it was assumed that the emeegeas
completed instantaneously at the beginning of ssiron July 1, 2006 so that all operating activitiering the
period from July 1, 2006 through December 31, 28@6reported as applying to the new reporting wentfite
believe that this is a reasonable presentatiohexse vere no material non-Plan-related transacbehseen July 1,
2006 and July 6, 2006.

The table below provides selected operational arah€ial information on a consolidated basis (ifliaris of
dollars, except shipments and prices). The selemedational and financial information after July2606 are those
of the Successor and are not comparable to tho$e éfredecessor. However, for purposes of theuidggon (in the
table below), the Successor’s results for the pefriom July 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006 Hepen
combined with the Predecessor’s results for theoddrom January 1, 2006 to July 1, 2006 and arepared to the
Predecessor’s results for the years ended Dece3db@005 and 2004. Differences between perioddalfresh
start accounting are explained when material.
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The following data should be read in conjunctiottvaur consolidated financial statements and thieso
thereto included in Item 8. “Financial and Supplataey Data”. See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidatedkcial
Statements included in Item 8. “Financial Statermemtd Supplementary Data” for further informatiegarding

segments.
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006 Predecessor
through January 1, 200¢ Predecessor
December 31 to Year Ended December 31
2006 July 1, 2006 Combined 2005 2004
Shipments (mm lbs
Fabricated Produc 249.¢ 273.t 523.] 481.¢ 458.¢
Primary Aluminum 77.% 77.1 154.¢ 155.€ 156.€
326.¢ 350.€ 677.k 637.5 615.2
Average Realized Third Party Sales Price (pe
pound):
Fabricated Products( $ 2.27 |$ 21¢ $ 221 $ 1.9 $ 1.7¢
Primary Aluminum(2 $ 1.3C |$ 126 $ 12¢ $ .9t $ .85
Net Sales
Fabricated Produc $ 567.: |$ 590.¢ $1,158.: $ 939. $ 809.1
Primary Aluminum 100.: 98.¢ 199.2 150.% 133.]
Total Net Sale: $ 667.5 |$ 689.6 $1,357.0 $ 1,089. $ 942.¢
Segment Operating Income (Los
Fabricated Products(3)(: $ 60.6 |$ 612 $ 122.( $ 87.z $ 33.C
Primary Aluminum(5)(6 10.¢ 12.4 23.2 16.4 13.€
Corporate and Oth (25.5) (20.9) (45.¢) (35.9) (71.9)
Other Operating Benefits (Charges), Ne 2.2 (.9) 1.3 (8.0 (793.9)
Total Operating Income (Los $ 48.5 |%$ 52.£ $ 100.7 $ 59.¢ $(817.6)
Discontinued Operatior $ — |$ 423 $ 432 $ 363.7 $121.2
Reorganization Items(¢ $ — |$ 3,090.. $3,090.. $(1,162.) $ (39.0
Loss from Cumulative Effect on Years Prior to
2005 of Adopting Accounting For Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations( $ — |$ —3$ — 3% @4H $ —
Net Income (Loss $ 26.2 |$ 3,141.0 $3,167.« $ (753.)  $(746.9
Capital Expenditures (excluding discontinued
operations’ $ 30.1 |$ 28.1 $ 58z $ 31 $ 7.6

(1) Average realized prices for our fabricated prodbeisiness unit are subject to fluctuations duehtinges in
product mix as well as underlying primary aluminprices and are not necessarily indicative of charige

underlying profitability. See Item “Busines”.

(2) Average realized prices for our primary aluminunsibhass unit exclude hedging revent

(3) Fabricated products business unit operating refrit8006 combined, 2005 and 2004 include non-tas5D
inventory charges of $25.0 million, $9.3 millionca$i12.1 million, respectively, and metal gains of
approximately $20.8 million, $4.6 million, and $22illion, respectively
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(4) Fabricated products business unit operating refrit8006 combined include non-cash mark-to-maldstes
totaling $2.2 million. For further discussion regiag mark-to-market matters, see Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in 18" Financial Statements and Supplementary I’

(5) Primary aluminum business unit operating result2fi06 and 2005 combined, include non-cash
mark-to-market gains (losses) totaling $17.3 milland $(4.1) million, respectively. Non-cash
gains (losses) for 2004 were not material. Fohertliscussion regarding mark-to-market matteis Nsgte 9
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ghedin Item 8. “Financial Statements and Suppleargnt
Data”

(6) Primary aluminum business unit operating result2fi05 include non-cash charges of approximately
$4.1 million in respect of our decision to restate accounting for derivative financial instrumeassmore
fully discussed in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidaf@mhncial Statements included in Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary "

(7) See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants included in Iltem 8. “Financial Statements an
Supplementary Data” for a detailed summary of th@ponents of Other operating benefits (charges)ame
the business segment to which the items re

(8) See Notes 2 and 14 of Notes to Consolidated FinaBtatements included in Item 8. “Financial Staata
and Supplementary D¢ for a discussion of Reorganization iter

(9) See Notes 1 and 3 of Notes to Consolidated Finb8ta@ements included in Item &ihancial Statements a
Supplementary Da” for a discussion of the changes in accounting dmddional asset retirement obligatio

Significant ltems

Market-related Factors. Changes in global, regional, or country-spea@fionomic conditions can have a
significant impact on overall demand for aluminumensive fabricated products in the markets in tvie
participate. Such changes in demand can diredigiabur earnings by impacting the overall volumd aix of
such products sold. During 2005 and 2006, the ntsufke aerospace and high strength products inhwvie
participate were strong, resulting in higher shiptaeand improved margins.

Changes in primary aluminum prices also affectgyimary aluminum business unit and expected easning
under any firm price fabricated products contradiswever, the impacts of such changes are genatitigt by
each other or by primary aluminum hedges. Our dpgraesults are also, albeit to a lesser degeresitve to
changes in prices for power and natural gas andgesain certain foreign exchange rates. All offtregoing have
been subject to significant price fluctuations ongment years. For a discussion of the possiblaatspof the
reorganization on our sensitivity to changes inkaaconditions, see Item 7A. “Quantitative and @atle
Disclosures About Market Risks, Sensitivity.”

During 2006, the average London Metal ExchangeME | transaction price per pound of primary aluminum
was $1.17. During 2005 and 2004, the average LNiEe grer pound for primary aluminum was $.86 an@3$.7
respectively. At February 28, 2007, the LME pricasvapproximately $1.31 per pound.

Results of Operations

Summary. The Company reported net income of $3,167.4 omilin 2006, compared to a net loss of
$753.7 million for 2005 and a net loss of $746.8iam for 2004. Net income for 2006 includes a nmash gain of
$3,110.3 million related to the implementation af ®lan and application of fresh start accountiet loss for 200
includes a non-cash loss of $1,131.5 million reldatethe assignment of intercompany claims foritbeefit of
certain creditors offset by a gain of $365.6 millian the sale of QAL and favorable QAL operatingutes prior to
its sale on April 1, 2005. Net loss for 2004 inasdon-cash losses of $797.5 million related tadghmination of
pension plans, the termination of postretiremendioad benefit plans and the settlement of unfdiotgpractices
allegations by the United Steelworkers, or USW.yslars include a number of non-reate items that are more fu
explained in the sections below.

Net sales in 2006 totaled $1,357.3 million compaece$i1,089.7 million in 2005 and $942.4 million2004. As
more fully discussed below, the increase in revensi@rimarily the result of the increase in theckeaprice for
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primary aluminum and such increases do not nedgsdaectly translate to increased profitabilitgdause (a) a
substantial portion of the business conducted bydbricated products business unit passes prialanginum
prices on directly to customers and (b) our hedgictiyities, while limiting our risk of losses, mégnit our ability
to participate in price increases.

2006 as Compared to 2005

Fabricated Aluminum ProductsNet sales of fabricated products increased by 28%d,158.1 million for
2006 as compared to 2005, primarily due to a 13¥e#mse in average realized prices and a 9% inciease
shipments. The increase in the average realizedpgrimarily reflects higher underlying primarymlinum prices
together with a richer product mix. The increasealume in 2006 was led by Aero/HS and defensdedla
shipments, but shipments of Custom Automotive amistrial Products and General Engineering Produets
also higher in 2006. The increased aerospace dadserelated shipments reflect the strong demainsiuich
products. Additionally, incremental heat treat faca capacity, primarily resulting from the complatdf the first
phase of our $105 million Trentwood expansion ppjeontributed to increased shipments of heat plede.

Fourth quarter 2006 shipments were approximatelyhigeer than the comparable period in 2005, refigcthe
additional heat treat plate capacity at our Trewivacility. One new heat treat plate furnace reddull capacity i
the fourth quarter and a second furnace, whichestgoroducing in the fourth quarter of 2006, isentpd to reach
full capacity during the first quarter of 2007. @ak, we believe the mix of products will continteebenefit from
increased heat treat plate shipments that will Bderpossible by incremental capacity as variousqshaf the
Trentwood expansion are completed, including the sieetcher which will enable us to produce heaggange plat
products and the third heat treat plate furnactly bbwhich are expected to be on-line by early&0the fourth
quarter of 2006 reflected a richer product mix iahéontinued into the first quarter of 2007. Theni may not
continue beyond the first quarter. Recent trendsthier parts of our business that affected thetfiogmarter of 2006
and could affect 2007 included a general weakeofrigdustrial demand, service center de-stockingxfusion
inventories, and reduced vehicle builds (especlaliger vehicles that represent a significant portf demand for
our products).

Operating income for 2006 of $122.0 million was mpgmately $35 million higher than for the priorare
Operating income for 2006 included a favorable iotgd approximately $33 million from higher shipntgn
favorable mix, stronger conversion prices (représgrihe value added from the fabrication process) favorable
scrap raw material costs as compared to the pear.\Energy costs and cost performance both slighproved
year over year, offset by slightly higher major manance. Depreciation and amortization in 2006
approximately $5 million lower than 2005, primardyg a result of the adoption of fresh start acdognt

Both years include non-run-rate items. These iteMmsh are listed below had a combined approximate
$6 million adverse impact on 2006 which is appraadiefy $2 million worse than 2005:

« Metal profits in 2006 (before considering LIFO ingaltions) of approximately $20.8 million, which is
approximately $16.2 million greater than in 20

* A nor-cash LIFO inventory charge of $25.0 million comphte a $9.3 LIFO charges in the 20

» Mark-to-market charges on energy hedging in 200@weproximately $2.2 million. During 2005, there
were no suclmark-to-marketcharges

Segment operating results for 2006 and 2005 incjadles on intercompany hedging activities with phienary
aluminum business unit totaling $44.6 million f@0B and $11.1 million for 2005. These amounts @late in
consolidation. Segment operating results for 20662005, exclude defined contribution savings plaarges of
approximately $.4 million and $6.3 million, respeety (see Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated FinalnBtatements
included in Item 8. “Financial Statements and Sepmntary Data”).

Primary Aluminum. During 2006, third party net sales of primarynaloum increased 32% compared to 2005.
The increase was almost entirely attributable éoiticreases in average realized primary aluminuoggr
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The following table recaps (in millions of dollatfle major components of segment operating refrlthe
current and prior year periods as well as the pyrfeectors leading to such differences. Many oftstactors
indicated are subject to significant fluctuatioarfr period to period and are largely impacted byp#&®utside
management’s control. See Item 1A. “Risk Factors.”

2006 vs. 2005

Operating Better
Componeni Income (Worse) Primary Factor
Sales of production from Angles $ 51 $ 19 Market price for primary aluminui
Internal hedging with Fabricated Produ (45) (34) Eliminates in consolidatio
Derivative settlement — 1 Impacted by positions and market prir
Mark-to-marketon derivative instrumen 17 21  Impacted by positions and market prii

$ 23 $ 7

The improvement in Anglesey-related results, as agethe offsetting adverse internal hedging resnl2006
over 2005 was driven primarily by increases in @riynaluminum market prices. Approximately two-tlsiraf the
cost of the Anglesey-related operations is alunaimé power. Beginning in the second quarter of 2€05,
Anglesey-related operating results were adverdébgted by an approximate 20% increase in conted@lumina
costs. However, contractual pricing for aluminaxpected to improve approximately 20% (versus 20@gjnning
in the second quarter of 2007. Also, Anglesey-eglaiperating results were offset by an approxirh&gé
contractual increase in Anglesey’s power costid62(an adverse change of approximately $5 milliompared to
2005). Further, the nuclear plant that suppliesi@sey its power is currently slated for decommisisig in late
2010. For Anglesey to be able to operate past 8#re2009 when its current power contract expiegjlesey wil
have to secure a new or alternative power conaiggtices that makes its operation viable. No @swe can be
provided that Anglesey will be successful in thagard.

In addition, given the potential for future shutdoand related costs, dividends from Anglesey haenb
suspended while Anglesey studies future cash reapaints. Dividends over the past five years hawdifated
substantially depending on various operationalraadket factors. During the last five years, castidéinds receive
were as follows (in millions of dollars): 2006 —%8, 2005 — $9.0, 2004 — $4.5, 2003 — $4.3 and 200%6.0.
Should the temporary suspension of dividends caatfor a prolonged period or become permanent, ivdave tc
consider whether it is appropriate to continuestmgnize our equity share in Anglesey’s earnings.

Corporate and Other. Corporate operating expenses represent corpgeateral and administrative expenses
that are not allocated to our business segments.

Corporate operating expenses for 2006 were appeigign$10.0 million higher than in 2005. Incentive
compensation accruals were approximately $8.3anilliigher in 2006 than in 2005, including the $#ilion non-
cash charge associated with the granting of vestechon-vested shares of our common stock at emezges more
fully discussed in Notes 1 and 7 of Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements included in Item 8né&ficial
Statements and Supplementary Data”. Additionally,imcurred certain costs we consider largely nanraie,
including $1.9 million of preparation costs relatedhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or SOX and #iilBon of
costs associated with certain computer upgradesrdmaining change in 2006 primarily reflects lowalary and
other costs related to the movement toward a postgence structure.

Once the activities associated with our emergerma thapter 11 bankruptcy (which will continue tigb
early 2007) and incremental SOX adoption-relatdivities are complete, we expect there will beeaist a modest
decline in Corporate and other cash costs by tdeo€2008.

Corporate operating results for 2006, discussega@laxclude non-cash pension benefits of approxlyat
$4.2 million related to the terminated pension plassumed by the PBGC and a credit of approxim&&y millior
related to the resolution of a pre-emergence cgatiny, offset by a charge of approximately
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$4.5 million related to post emergence chaptereldted items. Corporate operating results for 26@6lude
defined contribution savings plan charges of apiprately $.5 million. See Note 10 of Notes to Cordsated
Financial Statements included in Item 8. “Finan8tdtements and Supplementary Data”.

Discontinued Operations.Operating results from discontinued operatiomfi6 consist of a $7.5 million
payment from an insurer for certain residual clameshad in respect of the 2000 incident at our &ram
Louisiana alumina facility, which was sold in 20@#d the $1.1 million surcharge refund relatedetdain energy
surcharges, which have been pending for a numbggars. These amounts were offset, in part, by.@ $ilion
charge resulting from an agreement between ustenBdnneville Power Administration for a rejectéectric
power contract (see Note 15 of Notes to Consoldi&teancial Statements included in Item Birfancial Statemen
and Supplementary Data”). Operating results froseatitinued operations for 2005 include the $365l6om gain
on the sale of our interests in and related to @Ad the favorable operating results of our intergstind related to
QAL, which were sold as of April 1, 2005.

Reorganization Items.Reorganization items consist primarily of incoreepenses (including professional fe
or losses that are realized or incurred by us dumit reorganization. Reorganization items in 2006sisted
primarily of a non-cash gain of approximately $®Blmillion related to the implementation of ouafland
application of fresh start reporting. Reorganizaitems in 2005 consisted primarily of a non-casarge of
approximately $1,131.5 million that was recognizedonnection with the consummation of two sepajaite plans
of liquidation of four subsidiaries as the valus@sated with an intercompany amount between tvwsidiaries the
was transferred for the benefit of certain thirdtpareditors. See Notes 2 and 14 of Notes to Ciateted Financial
Statements included in Item 8. “Financial Staternamd Supplementary Data”.

2005 as Compared to 2004

Fabricated Aluminum ProductsNet sales of fabricated products increased by d6fitig 2005 as compared
2004 primarily due to a 10% increase in averaghzezhprices and a 6% increase in shipments. Ttrease in the
average realized prices reflects (in relativelyaquoportions) higher conversion prices and highweterlying
primary aluminum prices. The higher conversionggiare primarily attributable to continuing strénigt fabricated
aluminum product markets, particularly for aerogpand high strength products, as well as a favenatdk in the
type of aerospace/high strength products in thiy @art of 2005. Current period shipments were aighan 2004
shipments due primarily to the aforementioned sfifeim aerospace and high strength product demand.

Segment operating results (before Other operatiagges, net) for 2005 improved over 2004 by appnaxély
$54.0 million. The improvement consisted of imprdsales performance (primarily due to factors citbdve) of
approximately $64.0 million, offset, by higher ogténg costs, particularly for natural gas. Highatunal gas prices
had a particularlgignificant impact on the fourth quarter of 2005wer 2005 charges for legacy pension and re
medical-related costs (approximately $5.0 millisee Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgs) were
largely offset by other cost increases versus 20€ldding approximately $6.0 million of higher n@ash LIFO
inventory charges ($9.0 in 2005 versus $3.2 in 208dgment operating results for 2005 and 2004idechains on
intercompany hedging activities with the primaryrainum business unit total $11.1 million and $8i6iom,
respectively. These amounts eliminate in consdabdat

Segment operating results for 2005, discussed alexeide deferred contribution savings plan chaugfe
approximately $6.3 million (see Note 10 of Note€unsolidated Financial Statements included in Igem
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”).

Primary Aluminum. Third party net sales of primary aluminum in 200&eased by approximately 13% as
compared to 2004. The increase was almost enttéaiputable to the increase in average realizedgny
aluminum prices.

Segment operating results for 2005 included appraiely $32.0 million related to sale of primaryraloum
resulting from our ownership interests in Angleséfget by (a) losses on intercompany hedging a@iiwith the
Fabricated products business unit (which elimimaionsolidation) totaling approximately $11.1 moil and
(b) approximately $4.1 million of nocash charges associated with the discontinuankedtfe accounting treatm
of derivative instruments as more fully discussetlotes 1 and 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
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Statements included in Item 8. “Financial Statermemtd Supplementary Data”. Primary aluminum hedging
transactions with third parties were essentiallytred in 2005. In 2004, segment operating resultsisted of
approximately $21.0 related to sales of primaryrahwm resulting from the Company’s ownership insésen
Anglesey and approximately $2.0 million of gainsnfrthird party hedging activities offset by approately

$8.6 million of by losses on intercompany hedgintivities with the Fabricated products business$ (which
eliminate in consolidation). The improvement in Aeggy-related results in 2005 versus 2004 restiltsapily from
the improvement in primary aluminum market pricesdssed above. The primary aluminum market priced
improvement in Anglesey-related operating resultsenoffset by an approximate 15% contractual ireéa
Anglesey’s power costs during the fourth quarte2@®5 as well as an increase in major maintenanses incurred
in 2005 (over 2004).

Post 2005 results related to Anglesey will contitaube affected by the higher contractual powesr tiatough
the term of the existing power agreement, whichrsend®009, as well as an approximate 20% incraaseritractua
alumina costs during the remainder of the termhef@ompany’s existing alumina purchase contracighvixtends
through 2007. Power and alumina costs, in genexpfesent approximately two-thirds of Anglesey’ste@nd, as
such, future results will be adversely affectedti®se changes. Further, the nuclear plant thatisspnglesey its
power is slated for decommissioning in late 2002@t0, approximately the same time as when Anglsseyrent
power agreement expires. For Anglesey to be abd@éoate past 2009, the power plant will need &rate past its
current decommissioning date and Anglesey will Haveecure a new or alternative power contractiaég that
make its operation viable. No assurances can hade that Anglesey will be successful in this melja

Corporate and Other. Corporate operating expenses represent corpgeateral and administrative expenses
which are not allocated to our business segmamt2005, corporate operating expenses were compofsed
approximately $30.0 million of expenses relatedrigoing operations and $5.0 million related toreetimedical
expenses. In 2004, corporate operating expensescaetprised of approximately $21.0 million of expes related
to ongoing operations and approximately $50.0 arillof retiree medical expenses.

The increase in expenses related to ongoing opasaiin 2005 compared to 2004 was due to an inciaase
professional expenses associated primarily witffaitnves to comply with SOX and emergence-relateti/ay,
relocation of the corporate headquarters and tiangiosts, offset by the fact that key personealsed receiving
retention payments as of the end of the first guart 2004 pursuant to our key employee retentiogiam (see
Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemetiuded in Item € Financial Statements and Supplemen
Data”). The decline in retiree-related expensegsimarily attributable to the termination of thealitive Pension
Plan in 2004 and the change in retiree medical paysn(see Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated FinhStéements
included in Item 8. “Financial Statements and Sepmntary Data”).

Corporate operating results for 2005, discussedalexclude defined contribution savings plan cearaf
approximately $.5 million (see Note 10 of NoteCmnsolidated Financial Statements included in I8rtFinancial
Statements and Supplementary Data”).

Discontinued Operations.Discontinued operations in 2005 include the ofiegaesults of our interests in and
related to QAL for the first quarter of 2005 and thain that resulted from the sale of such interestApril 1, 2005.
Discontinued operations in 2004 included a fullryefaoperating results attributable to our inteséatand related to
QAL, as well as the operating results of the comityddterests that were sold at various times dy@004.

Income from discontinued operations for 2005 inseebapproximately $242.0 million over 2004. Thenany
factor for the improved results was the larger gairthe sale of the QAL-related interests (appraxety
$366.0 million) in 2005 compared to the gains fribvm sale of our interests in and related to Alunitagners of
Jamaica and the sale of the Mead Facility (appratéty $127.0 million) in 2004. The adverse impact2005 of
the $42.0 million Kaiser Bauxite Company non-cashtract rejection charge were largely offset byrioved
operating results in 2005 associated with QAL (apjnately $12.0 million) and the avoidance of apjmately
$33.0 million net losses by other commodity-relatedrests in 2004.
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Reorganization Items.Reorganization items increased substantially0i@52over 2004 as a result a non-cash
charge for approximately of $1,131.5 million in fleerth quarter of 2005. As more fully discussed\imte 14 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements includétm 8.“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”, the
non-cash charge was recognized in connection Witttbnsummation of the plans of liquidation disedssbove as
the value associated with an intercompany amoumtden two subsidiaries that was transferred fotbtreefit of
certain third party creditors.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As a result of the filing of the chapter 11 bankoymproceedings, claims against Kaiser and it sliases that
filed such cases for principal and accrued intevastecured and unsecured indebtedness existitigerfiling date
were stayed while those entities continued businpssations as debtors-in-possession, subjecetodhtrol and
supervision of the Bankruptcy Court. See Notes@® Bhof Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemertisided in
Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementanaTfat additional discussion of the chapter 11 bantaypases

Operating Activities. In 2006, fabricated products operating activitéthe Successor provided approximately
$62 million of cash and fabricated products opatatctivities of the Predecessor provided approtéipa
$13 million of cash. These amounts compare withb208en fabricated operating activities of the Poedsor
provided approximately $88 million of cash and wathD4 when fabricated products operating activibiethe
Predecessor provided approximately $35 millionasftc Cash provided in 2006 was primarily due torovied
operating results offset in part by increased wagldapital. The increase in working capital in 2@@rimarily the
result of the impact of higher primary aluminumges and increased demand for fabricated aluminwehugts on
inventories and accounts receivable, which is galgtially offset by increases in accounts payaBiéhstantially all
of the cash provided in 2005 was generated fromating results; working capital changes were mod@gerating
results in 2004 generated approximately $70 milidgnich was offset by increases in working capifal o
approximately $35 million. The increases in cashvjated by fabricated products operating result3da5 and 2004
were primarily due to improving demand for fabreg&luminum products. The foregoing analysis ofifabed
products cash flow excludes consideration of penaitd retiree cash payments made on behalf ofrduarel
former employees of the fabricated products faeditSuch amounts are part of the “legacy” cosisle internally
categorize as a corporate cash outflow. See “— @atp and Other Operating Activities” below.

In 2006, operating activities of the Successor wggEoximately $7 million and operating activit@fsthe
Predecessor provided approximately $36 millionasftrattributable to our interest in and relatedriglesey. In
2005 and 2004, the operating activities of the 8cedsor provided approximately $20 million and Biikion,
respectively, of cash attributable to our inter@stznd related to Anglesey. The increases in agls between
2006 and 2005 and between 2005 and 2004 is priratiibutable to increases in primary aluminum keaprices.

Corporate and Other Operating ActivitiesSCorporate and other operating activities of thecgssor (including
all “legacy” costs) used approximately $36 milliand corporate and other operating activities offexlecessor
used approximately $70 million of cash during 2006rporate and other operating activities of thedBcessor us
approximately $108 million and $150 million of caaf2005 and 2004, respectively. Cash outflows fomrporate
and other operating activities in 2006, 2005 an@42@cluded: (1) approximately $11 million, $37 kwih and
$57 million, respectively, in respect of retireedival obligations and VEBA funding for former anarent
operating units; (2) payments for reorganizatioste@f approximately $28 million, $39 million an@%million,
respectively; and (3) payments in respect of gérem administrative costs totaling approximatelt $nillion,
$29 million and $26 million, respectively. Cashftaws for corporate and other operating activiie2006 also
included payments pursuant to our Plan of approtem&25 million and in 2004 also included $27 roifl to settle
certain multi-site environmental claims.

Discontinued Operations Activitiesln 2006, discontinued operation activities of Bredecessor provided
$9 million of cash. This compares with 2005 and2@®en discontinued operation activities of thedeémessor
provided $17 million and $64 million of cash, restiely. Cash provided by discontinued operation2006
consisted of the proceeds from an $8 million payrfrem an insurer and a $1 million refund from coouity
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interests energy vendors. The decrease in casldptbly discontinued operations in 2005 over 2@3lted
primarily from a decrease in favorable operatirguhes due to the sale of substantially all of thenmodity interests
between the second half of 2004 and early 2005 r@maining commodity interests were sold as of Apr2005.

Investing Activities. Total capital expenditures for fabricated produgere $56.9 million, $30.6 million, and
$7.6 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectiv@lgtal capital expenditures for fabricated prodwuts currently
expected to be in the $60 million to $70 milliomga for 2007. The higher level of capital spendmg006 and
2007 as compared to other periods reflects incrémhervestments, particularly at our Spokane, Wagtun facility.
New equipment, furnaceand/or services will enable us to supply heavy gehent treat stretched plate to the
aerospace and general engineering markets. THe#qmtital spending for this project is expectedéo
approximately $105 million. Approximately $65 milii of such cost was incurred in 2005 and 2006.bEt@nce
will be incurred primarily in 2007. Our remainingpital spending in 2007 will be spread among alhafiacturing
locations. A majority of the remaining capital sgamg is expected to reduce operating costs, imppooduct
quality or increase capacity. However, no otheividadial project of significant size has been conteditat this time.

In addition to the foregoing, as of March 2007,ave considering capital expenditures of approxitgate
$20 million that would be for projects intendedgenerate incremental cost efficiencies or enhanoevercial
operations. Such costs would likely be incurredrdp2007 and 2008 and would focus on one or moiof
non-rolling facilities. However, no assurances barprovided as to the timing or success of any suplenditures.

The level of capital expenditures may be adjustedhftime to time depending on our business plarise p
outlook for metal and other products, our abildynaintain adequate liquidity and other factors.

Total capital expenditures for discontinued operatiwere $3.5 million in 2004 (of which $1.0 millievas
funded by the minority partners in certain forejgimt ventures).

Financing Activities. In 2006, financing activities of the Successavied approximately $49 million of cash
and financing activities of the Predecessor pravigeproximately $1 million of cash. These amouwtsjgare with
2005 when financing activities of the Predecessedwapproximately $394 million of cash and with 20éhen
financing activities of the Predecessor used apprately $294 million of cash. Cash provided in 20065
primarily due to approximately $50 million of bowings under the Successor’s term loan facility.rOased in
2005 and 2004 primarily relates to net cash usedidnontinued operations of approximately $387iaorilland
$291 million, respectively.

Financing Facilities and Liquidity. On the July 6, 2006 effective date of our Plae,emtered into a new senior
secured revolving credit agreement with a groujeders providing for a $200 million revolving ciefhcility of
which up to a maximum of $60 million may be utilizfor letters of credit. Under the revolving crefitility, we
are able to borrow (or obtain letters of credignfirtime to time in an aggregate amount equal tdetbeer of
$200 million and a borrowing base comprised ofiel@gaccounts receivable, eligible inventory andaia eligible
machinery, equipment and real estate, reduced ftgiceeserves, all as specified in the revolviredit facility. The
revolving credit facitility has a five-year termcamatures in July 2011, at which time all principalounts
outstanding thereunder will be due and payablerddangs under the revolving credit facility beatarest at a rate
equal to either a base prime rate or LIBOR, atamtion, plus a specified variable percentage deterthby
reference to the then remaining borrowing availgbilnder the revolving credit facility. The revatg credit facility
may, subject to certain conditions and the agreéwfdenders thereunder, be increased up to $2TBmi

Concurrently with the execution of the revolvingdit facility, we also entered into a term loanilfgcwith a
group of lenders that provides for a $50 milliormdoan and is guaranteed by certain of our domegtérating
subsidiaries. The term loan facility was fully draan August 4, 2006. The term loan facility hasva-fyear term
and matures in July 2011, at which time all priatipmounts outstanding thereunder will be due aydiple.
Borrowings under the term loan facility bear inttrat a rate equal to either a premium over a pase rate or
LIBOR, at our option.
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Amounts owed under each of the revolving crediilifgand the term loan facility may be acceleratgubn the
occurrence of various events of default set fantach such agreement, including, without limitatite failure to
make principal or interest payments when due, aeddhes of covenants, representations and warsagidorth in
each agreement.

The revolving credit facility is secured by a figstority lien on substantially all of our assetgladhe assets of
our U.S. operating subsidiaries that are also bare thereunder. The term loan facility is securgé second lien
on substantially all of our assets and the as$atardJ.S. operating subsidiaries that are thedwoers or guarantors
thereof.

Both credit facilities place restrictions on ouilié@pto, among other things, incur debt, creatm$, make
investments, pay dividends, sell assets, undettakeactions with affiliates and enter into unretglines of
business.

We currently believe that the cash and cash eqeritgl cash flows from operations and cash availader the
revolving credit facility will provide sufficient wking capital to allow us to meet our obligatidosat least the
next twelve months. During July 2006, we borrowad eepaid $8.6 million under the revolving creditifity. At
February 28, 2007, there were no borrowings outitgnunder the revolving credit facility, there wer
approximately $13.6 million of outstanding lettefcredit under the revolving credit facility arftete was
$50 million outstanding under the term loan fagilit

Commitments and Contingencie$Ve are subject to a number of environmental law§ines or penalties
assessed for alleged breaches of the environmants| and to claims and litigation based upon saels. Based o
our evaluation of these and other environmentatermtwe have established environmental accrugd8 df million
at December 31, 2006. However, we believe thatriéasonably possible that changes in variousriactwuld cause
costs associated with these environmental matteggdeed current accruals by amounts that coulahlibe
aggregate, up to an estimated $15.2 million.

We are working with regulatory authorities and perfing studies and remediation pursuant to sewersdent
orders with the State of Washington relating toftlstorical use of oils containing polychlorinatgighenyls, or
PCBs, at the Trentwood facility. In early 2007, ieeeived a letter from the regulatory authoritieefoeming that
their investigation had been closed.

Capital Structure.

Successor: On the July 6, 2006 effective date of our Plamrspant to the Plan, all equity interests in Kaiser
outstanding immediately prior to such date wereceied without consideration and issued 20,000/880 shares
of common stock to a third-party disbursing agentdistribution in accordance with our Plan. Asdigcussed in
Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateswardiuded in Item &‘Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data”, there are restrictions on the transfer ahown stock. In addition, under the revolving créadility and the
term loan facility, there are restrictions on ourghase of common stock by the Company and liroitaton our
ability to pay dividends.

Predecessor: Prior to July 6, 2006, effective date of our RIRIAXXAM Inc. and one of its wholly owned
subsidiaries collectively owned approximately 6326ur common stock, with the remaining approximaf%
being publicly held. However, as discussed in Nigtef Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdsided in
Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementarnaDaursuant to our Plan, all of the pre-emergermpaty
interests in Kaiser were cancelled without consitien upon our emergence from chapter 11 bankrumcjuly 6,
2006.

Other Matters

Income Tax Matters.Although we have substantial tax attributes add to offset the impact of future inco
taxes, we do not yet meet the “more likely thari rdteria for recognition of such attributes priritgbecause we
do not have sufficient history of paying taxes.sti€h, we have recorded a full valuation allowargarest the
amount of tax attributes available and no defetaschsset was recognized. See Note 6 of Notes to
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Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8efiFinancial Statements and Supplementary Dataafo
discussion of these and other income tax matters.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The section “New Accounting Pronouncements” fromeNb of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8. “Financial Statements and Sepmntary Data” is incorporated herein by reference.

Critical Accounting Policies
Successor:

Critical accounting policies fall into two broadtegories. The first type of critical accountingipw@s includes
those that are relatively straightforward in thegplication, but which can have a significant intpat the reported
balances and operating results (such as revenagniion policies, inventory accounting methods, )etThe first
type of critical accounting policies is outlinedNiote 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesarmtiuded in
Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementanaDatd is not addressed below. The second typatafat
accounting policies includes those that are botl wreportant to the portrayal of our financial caiwh and results,
and require management’s most difficult, subjectimd/or complex judgments. Typically, the circumsts that
make these judgments difficult, subjective and@mplex have to do with the need to make estimdiestahe
effect of matters that are inherently uncertaint €itical accounting policies after emergence frcmapter 11
bankruptcy will, in some cases, be different frdrose before emergence (as many of the significalgments
affecting the financial statements related to msfitems directly a result of the chapter 11 baptay or related to
liabilities that were resolved pursuant to our pl&ee the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statésriealuded in
Item 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementanaDfar discussion of possible differences.

While we believe that all aspects of its finansi@tements should be studied and understood issisgéts
current (and expected future) financial conditiod aesults, we believe that the accounting polithies warrant
additional attention include:

1. Application of fresh start accounting.

Upon emergence from chapter 11 bankruptcy, we eghffresh start” accounting to our consolidated
financial statements as required by SOP 90-7. &k,d0 July 2006, we adjusted stockholders’ eqtatgqual
the reorganization value of the entity at emergeAdelitionally, items such as accumulated depramiat
accumulated deficit and accumulated other compEterincome (loss) were reset to zero. We alloctited
reorganization value to our individual assets daioilities based on their estimated fair valuehatémergence
date based, in part, on information from a thirdyappraiser. Such items as current liabilitiesocunts
receivable and cash reflected values similar tedtreported prior to emergence. Items such as fomgn
property, plant and equipment, long-term assetd@mgtterm liabilities were significantly adjustédm
amounts previously reported. Because fresh stadienting was adopted at emergence and because of th
significance of liabilities subject to compromisat were relieved upon emergence, meaningful cosgps
between the historical financial statements andittzncial statements from and after emergenceliffieult to
make.

2. Our judgments and estimates with respect to doments and contingencies.

Valuation of legal and other contingent claimstibject to a great deal of judgment and substantial
uncertainty. Under GAAP, companies are requiregcrue for contingent matters in their financiatstments
only if the amount of any potential loss is bothdipable” and the amount (or a range) of possitds Is
“estimatable.” In reaching a determination of thelability of an adverse ruling in respect of a teratwe
typically consult outside experts. However, anyhsjucigments reached regarding probability are siilbge
significant uncertainty. We may, in fact, obtainaverse ruling in a matter that we did not conside
“probable” loss and which, therefore, was not aedrfor in our financial statements. Additionallgcts and
circumstances in respect of a matter can changgnzpkey assumptions that were used in previowssassent
of a matter to change. It is possible that amoantsk in respect of one matter may be “traded
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off” against amounts under negotiations in a sdparatter. Further, in estimating the amount of lasg, in
many instances a single estimation of the loss moaye possible. Rather, we may only be able imest a
range for possible losses. In such event, GAAPIiregthat a liability be established for at ledgt minimum
end of the range assuming that there is no otheuatrwhich is more likely to occur.

3. Our judgments and estimates in respect of oypl@me defined benefit plans.

Defined benefit pension and postretirement medibligations included in our consolidated financial
statements at June 30, 2006 and at prior datdsaassl on assumptions that were subject to varifibom
year-to-year. Such variations could have cause@stimate of such obligations to vary significantly
Restructuring actions relating to our exit from mafsour commodities businesses (such as the imitkefi
curtailment of the Mead smelter) also had a sigaift impact on such amounts.

The most significant assumptions used in deterrgittie estimated year-end obligations were the asdum
discount rate, long-term rate of return (“LTRR”)datine assumptions regarding future medical coseases.
Since recorded obligations represent the preséme vd expected pension and postretirement bepafinents
over the life of the plans, decreases in the distmate (used to compute the present value of diyenpnts)
would cause the estimated obligations to incre@saversely, an increase in the discount rate woalde the
estimated present value of the obligations to declThe LTRR on plan assets reflects an assumpgarding
what the amount of earnings would be on existirzg glssets (before considering any future contobstio the
plans). Increases in the assumed LTRR would cédngsprbjected value of plan assets available tsfgati
pension and postretirement obligations to incregiséding a reduced net expense in respect of these
obligations. A reduction in the LTRR would redube amount of projected net assets available tefgati
pension and postretirement obligations and, thaisse the net expense in respect of these obligatiion
increase. As the assumed rate of increase in maxdists went up, so did the net projected obligatio
Conversely, if the rate of increase was assumée wmaller, the projected obligation declined.

4. Our judgments and estimates in respect to emviemtal commitments and contingencies.

We are subject to a number of environmental lavesragulations, to fines or penalties assessedlfge
breaches of such laws and regulations and to clamdditigation based upon such laws and regulatiBased
on our evaluation of environmental matters, we testablished environmental accruals, primarilytezldo
potential solid waste disposal and soil and growatdwremediation matters. These environmental atcru
represent our estimate of costs reasonably expéztes incurred on a going concern basis in thénarg
course of business based on presently enactedaladveegulations, currently available facts, exgstin
technology and our assessment of the likely reniediaction to be taken. However, making estimaftes
possible environmental remediation costs is sulbgeictherent uncertainties. As additional factsdeeeloped
and definitive remediation plans and necessaryladgy approvals for implementation of remediatare
established or alternative technologies are deeglpphanges in these and other factors may resatttual
costs exceeding the current environmental accruals.

See Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgs in Iltem 8. “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” for additional information @spect of environmental contingencies.

5. Our judgments and estimates in respect of ciomdit asset retirement obligations.

Companies are required to estimate incrementas dosspecial handling, removal and disposal cokts
materials that may or will give rise to conditioreiset retirement obligations (“CAROs") and thestdunt the
expected costs back to the current year usingdit@ejusted risk free rate. Under current accanti
guidelines, liabilities and costs for CAROs mustréeognized in a company’s financial statements éfvi¢ is
unclear when or if the CARO will be triggered.tlis unclear when or if a CARO will be triggeredntpanies
are required to use probability weighting for pbgsiiming scenarios to determine the probabiligigited
amounts that should be recognized in the compdimdacial statements. As more fully discussed ine\b of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements includétgm 8. “Financial Statements and Supplemenata”,
we have evaluated our exposures to CAROs and detdrithat we have CAROs at several of our facilitie
The vast majority of such CAROs consist of incretakboosts that would be associated with the remandl
disposal of asbestos (all of which is believededudly contained and encapsulated within walls,
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floors, ceilings or piping) of certain of the oldacilities if such facilities were to undergo majenovatior
or be demolished. No plans currently exist for angh renovation or demolition of such facilitieslahe
Company’s current assessment is that the most pi@bkaenarios are that no such CARO would be
triggered for 20 or more years, if at all. None#lssl, we recorded an estimated CARO liability of
approximately $2.7 million at December 31, 2005 amch amount will increase substantially over time.

The estimation of CAROs is subject to a numbenbé&rent uncertainties including: (1) the timingagfen
any such CARO may be incurred, (2) the ability cowaately identify all materials that may requipesial
handling or treatment, (3) the ability to reasogadsdtimate the total incremental special handlimd ether
costs, (4) the ability to assess the relative podityaof different scenarios which could give risea CARO,
and (5) other factors outside a company’s conirduiding changes in regulations, costs and inteatss. As
such, actual costs and the timing of such costswaaysignificantly from the estimates, judgments a
probable scenarios we considered, which couldjrim, thave a material impact on our future financial
statements.

6. Recoverability of recorded asset values.

Under GAAP, assets to be held and used are evdlfmteecoverability differently than assets tododd ol
disposed of. Assets to be held and used are eedlbassed on their expected undiscounted futureast
flows. So long as we reasonably expect that sudisaoounted future net cash flows for each asséewxdeed
the recorded value of the asset being evaluatetihpairment is required. However, if plans to seldispose
of an asset or group of assets meet a number offisp&iteria, then, under GAAP, such assets sthda
considered held for sale/disposition and their vecability should be evaluated, based on expected
consideration to be received upon disposition. Satedispositions at a particular time will be aféd by,
among other things, the existing industry and garegonomic circumstances as well as our own cigtantes
including whether or not assets will (or must) belson an accelerated or more extended timetabieh S
circumstances may cause the expected value ir@sdisposition scenario to differ materially frohe
realizable value over the normal operating lifas$ets, which would likely be evaluated on longaterdustry
trends.

7. Income Tax Provision.

Although we have substantial tax attributes avéglab offset the impact of future income taxes,deenot
meet the “more likely than not” criteria for recaiipn of such attributes primarily because we domave
sufficient history of paying taxes. As such, weareled a full valuation allowance against the amaitiax
attributes available and no deferred tax assetre@mnized. The benefit associated with any redoaif the
valuation allowance is first utilized to reduceaingible assets with any excess being recorded adjastment
to stockholdersequity rather than as a reduction of income ta>easp. Therefore, despite the existence of
tax attributes, we expect to record a full statytax provision in future periods and, therefohe benefit of
any tax attributes realized will only affect futuralance sheets and statements of cash flows. Uiitimeately
determine that we meet the “more likely than netagnition criteria, the amount of net operatirgslo
carryforwards and other defined tax assets wouldeberded on the balance sheet and would be ret@sian
adjustment to Stockholders’ equity.

In accordance with GAAP, financial statements fieliim periods include an income tax provision base
on the effective tax rate expected to be incumetthé current year. Accordingly, estimates and fo€lgts are
made (by taxable jurisdiction) as to the amourtagéble income that may be generated, the avatiabfl
deductions and credits expected and the availabilinet operating loss carry forwards or otherattributes tc
offset taxable income. Making such estimates addgments is subject to inherent uncertainties gtten
difficulty predicting such factors as future markenditions, customer requirements, the cost fgrikputs
such as energy and primary aluminum, overall opegafficiency and many other items. However, ifcag
other things, (1) actual results vary from our &a®ts due to one or more of the factors cited aboetésewher
in this Report, (2) income is distributed differigrthan expected among tax jurisdictions, (3) onenore
material events or transactions occur which weteantemplated, (4) other uncontemplated transasticcur
or (5) certain expected deductions, credits oryclamwards are not be available, it is possibld tha effective
tax rate for a year could vary materially from #wsessments used to prepare the interim
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consolidated financial statements. See Note 6 ¢¢dtw Consolidated Financial Statements includdteim 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” dmliteonal discussion of these matters.

Predecessor:

Our critical accounting policies after emergenasfrchapter 11 bankruptcy will, in some cases, Herdnt
from those before emergence. Many of the signifipasigments affecting our financial statementsteeta matters
related to chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings bilities that were resolved pursuant to our Plamevé critical
accounting policies before emergence were the sancerrent policies and/or no unique circumstaesésed, the
policies are not repeated below.

1. Predecessor Reporting While in Reorganization.

Our consolidated financial statements as of andides and periods prior to July 1, 2006, wereamegpon a
“going concern” basis in accordance with SOP 9@ did not include the impacts of our Plan inclydin
adjustments relating to recorded asset amountse#itdution of liabilities subject to compromisedghe
cancellation of the interests of our pre-emergesteekholders. Adjustments related to the Plan risigaffected
the consolidated financial statements includedémI8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary’atanore
fully shown in the opening July 1, 2006 balancecsipeesented in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidatediéral
Statements included in Item 8. “Financial Staternemd Supplementary Data”.

In addition, during the course of the chapter likaptcy proceedings, there were material impaatkiding:

» Additional filing date claims were identified thrglu the proof of claim reconciliation process anosarin
connection with actions taken by us in the chapiebankruptcy proceedings. For example, while we
considered rejection of the Bonneville Power Adstir@tion, or BPA, contract to be in our best loag#
interests, the rejection resulted in an approxirdd@& million claim by the BPA. In the second quadg
2006, an agreement with the BPA was approved bB#mkruptcy Court under which the claim was settled
for a pre-petition claim of $6.1 million

« The amount of pre-filing date claims ultimatelyoalied by the Bankruptcy Court in respect of contirige
claims and benefit obligations was materially diéfe from the amounts reflected in our consolidated
financial statement:

« As more fully discussed below, changes in busipésss precipitated by the chapter 11 bankruptcy
proceedings resulted in significant charges asttiaith the disposition of asse

2. Our judgments and estimates with respect to dtmrments and contingencies.

Valuation of legal and other contingent claimsubject to judgment and substantial uncertainty. &Jr@AAP,
companies are required to accrue for contingentersain their financial statements only if the amioof any
potential loss is both “probable” and the amountamge of possible loss is “estimatable.” In reagha
determination of the probability of adverse ruling® typically consult outside experts. However arigments
reached regarding probability are subject to sigaift uncertainty. We may, in fact, obtain an adeauling in a
matter that it did not consider a “probable” lossl avhich was not accrued for in our financial staats.
Additionally, facts and circumstances causing keguaptions that were used in previous assessnmenssilgject to
change. It is possible that amounts at risk inroager may be “traded off” against amounts undgotiation in a
separate matter. Further, in many instances aesewjimation of a loss may not be possible. Rathemay only be
able to estimate a range for possible losses.dh suent, GAAP requires that a liability be eststidid for at least
the minimum end of the range assuming that theme isther amount which is more likely to occur.

Prior to our emergence from chapter 11 bankrupteyhad two potentially material contingent obligas that
were subject to significant uncertainty and vatigbin their outcome: (1) the USW unfair labor ptige claim and
(2) the net obligation in respect of personal ipjtelated matters.

As more fully discussed in Note 21 of Notes to Giidsited Financial Statements included in ItemRBnancia
Statements and Supplementary Data”, we accruecdhanra in the fourth quarter of 2004 for the USWainfabor
practice matter. We did not accrue any amount poidhe fourth quarter of 2004 because we did not
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consider the loss to be “probabl@ur assessment had been that the possible rahggsah this matter ranged frc
zero to $250 million based on the proof of claimexdf (and other information provided) by the Naabhabor
Relations Board, or NLRB, and the USW in connectigtih our chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings. Wivide
continued to believe that the unfair labor practiharges were without merit, during January 2002lagreed to
allow a claim in favor of the USW in the amountioé $175 million as a compromise and in returrtfier USW
agreeing to substantially reduce or eliminate aettanefit payments as more fully discussed in Ndt@f Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8efiFinancial Statements and Supplementary DatalWvéter,
this settlement was not recorded at that time srawas still subject to Bankruptcy Court apptoVae
settlement was ultimately approved by the Bankyu@tourt in February 2005 and, as a result of theingency
being removed with respect to this item (which arpgor to the December 31, 2004 balance shee}, datmn-cash
charge of $175 million was reflected in our condated financial statements at December 31, 2004.

Also, as more fully discussed in Note 21 of Note€bnsolidated Financial Statements included im I8
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”, weewone of many defendants in personal injury daisna
large number of persons who assert that theirieguvere caused by, among other things, exposwasttestos
during, or as a result of, their employment or agg®mn with us or by exposure to products contajrasbestos last
produced or sold by us more than 20 years ago. &Ve also previously disclosed that certain othesgu@al injury
claims had been filed in respect of alleged piiegidate exposure to silica and coal tar pitch tlela Due to the
chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings, existing lawsnitespect of all such personal injury claimsevsayed and
new lawsuits could not be commenced against usJOug 30, 2006 financial statements included dalitiabor
estimated asbestos-related costs of $1,115 millitnich represents our estimate of the minimum drairange of
costs. The upper end of our estimate of costs waaimately $2,400 million and we were aware tetain
constituents had asserted that they believed ttaalbcosts could exceed the top end of our estichatnge, by a
potentially material amount. No estimation of aabllities in respect of such matters occurred paraof our Plan.
However, given that our Plan was implemented iy 20006, all such obligations in respect of persamaky claims
have been resolved and will not have a continuffeceon our financial condition after emergence.

Our June 30, 2006 financial statements includezhg-term receivable of $963.3 million for estimated
insurance recoveries in respect of personal injlayns. We believed that, prior to the implememtatdf our Plan,
recovery of this amount was probable (if our Plaswot approved) and additional amounts were reabiein the
future if additional liability was ultimately det@ined to exist. However, we could not provide aasoe that all
such amounts would be collected. However, as cam ®Bbs implemented in July 2006, the rights topitoeeeds
from these policies have been transferred (aloitly thie applicable liabilities) to certain persomgliry trusts set up
as a part of our Plan and we have no continuireraésts in such policies.

3. Our judgments and estimates related to emplbgaefit plans.

Pension and postretirement medical obligationsuohedl in the consolidated financial statements ia¢ B30,
2006 and at prior dates were based on assumptiahg/ere subject to variation from year to yeactbuariations
can cause our estimate of such obligations to sigmyificantly. Restructuring actions relating tar @xit from most
of our commaodities businesses also had a signifioapact on the amount of these obligations.

For pension obligations, the most significant agstions used in determining the estimated year-édtigation
were the assumed discount rate and LTRR on peasigts. Since recorded pension obligations refdrédsen
present value of expected pension payments ovdiféehaf the plans, decreases in the discountuaesl to compute
the present value of the payments cause the estinofiligations to increase. Conversely, an increatiee discount
rate would cause the estimated present value aftitigations to decline. The LTRR on pension assedtected our
assumption regarding what the amount of earningdduvoe on existing plan assets before considenmygfature
contributions to the plans. Increases in the asdurii®R would cause the projected value of plantasseailable t
satisfy pension obligations to increase, yieldimg@uced net pension obligation. A reduction inttAi&R would
reduce the amount of projected net assets availalslatisfy pension obligations and, thus, caukedet pension
obligation to increase.

For postretirement obligations, the key assumptigesl to estimate the year-end obligations werdigeount
rate and the assumptions regarding future medasdsdncreases. The discount rate affected thegtivsetnent
obligations in a similar fashion to that descriladve for pension obligations. As the assumed
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rate of increase in medical costs went up, soldidet projected obligation. Conversely, as the odincrease was
assumed to be smaller, the projected obligatiofirckst

Since our largest pension plans and the post metiné medical plans were terminated in 2003 and 20@4
amount of variability in respect of such plans wabstantially reduced. However, there were fiveaiaing defined
benefit pension plans that were still ongoing pegdhe resolution of certain litigation with the 8B. We prevaile
in the litigation against the PBGC in August 2086d four of these remaining plans were terminatdddcember
2006.

Given that all of our significant benefit planseafthe emergence date are defined contributiorsplamave
limits on the amounts to be paid, our future firiahstatements will not be subject to the sametilityaas our
financial statements prior to emergence and theitation of the plans.

4. Our judgments and estimates related to enviroteheommitments and contingencies.

We are subject to a number of environmental lavesragulations, to fines or penalties that may lsessed for
alleged breaches of such laws and regulationstaol@an-up obligations and other claims and lit@gabased upon
such laws and regulations. We have in the past Aedmay in the future be subject to a numberaifred under th
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidhiability Act of 1980, as amended by the Suyaf
Amendments Reauthorization Act of 1986, or CERCLA.

Based on our evaluation of these and other envieoah matters, we have established environmentabats,
primarily related to investigations and potent&hediation of the soil, groundwater and equipméntacurrent
operating facilities that may have been adversalyacted by hazardous materials, including PCBss&he
environmental accruals represent our estimate staeasonably expected to be incurred on a gaingezn basis |
the ordinary course of business based on presemélgted laws and regulations, currently availadtést existing
technology and our assessment of the likely renhedi#on to be taken. However, making estimategosisible
environmental costs is subject to inherent unastits. As additional facts are developed and difsnremediation
plans and necessary regulatory approvals for impiegation of remediation are established or altéraat
technologies are developed, actual costs may exbeerlrrent environmental accruals.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following summarizes our significant contratmialigations at December 31, 2006 (dollars in imils):

Payments Due by Period

Less Thar 2-3 4-5 More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term deb $0C ¢ — $— $50C 9 —
Operating lease 9.3 3.C 4.5 1.7 A
Total cash contractual obligations: $59. $ 3.C $4E 17 % A

(1) Total contractual obligations exclude future anrugiable cash contributions to the VEBAs, whichrmat be
determined at this time. See “— Off Balance Shedt@ther Arrangements” below for a summary of gussi
annual variable cash contribution amounts at varleuels of earnings and cash expenditt

Off-Balance Sheet and Other Arrangements

As of December 31, 2006, outstanding letters adictender our revolving credit facility were appimately
$14.1 million, substantially all of which expiretiin approximately twelve months. The letters a&dit relate
primarily to insurance, environmental and othentts.

We have agreements to supply alumina to and tchpsecaluminum from Anglesey. Both the alumina sales
agreement and primary aluminum purchase agreemetied to primary aluminum prices.
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Our employee benefit plans include the following:

* We are obligated to make monthly contribution oé @ollar per hour worked by each bargaining unit
employee to the appropriate multi-employee penplans sponsored by the USW and certain other urdbns
six of our production facilities. This obligatioame into existence in December 2006 for three of ou
production facilities upon the termination of falefined benefit plans (see Note 7 of Notes to Clidesed
Financial Statements included in Item 8. “Finan&tdtements and Supplementary Data”). The arrangeme
for the other three locations came into existenaéng the first quarter of 2005. We currently esttm
contributions will range from $1 million to $3 mdh per year

* We have a defined contribution 401(k) savings ftarhourly bargaining unit employees at five of our
production facilities. We will be required to magentributions to this plan for active bargainingtun
employees at these production facilities that wifige from $800 to $2,400 per employee per yegerning
on the employes’age. This arrangement came into existence inrbleee2004 for three production facilit
upon the termination of three defined benefit plgaee Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8. “Financial Statermamid Supplementary Data”). The arrangement for the
other two locations came into existence during Drdmer 2006. We currently estimate that contributitans
such plans will range from $1 million to $3 milliqrer year

« We have a defined benefit plan for our salariedleyges at our production facility in London, Ontawith
annual contributions based on each salaried emglewge and years of service. In addition, we fzave
defined benefit pension plan for one inactive ofjenawith three remaining former employees covergd
that plan.

* We have a defined contribution savings plan foasatl and non-bargaining unit hourly employees joiiog
for a match of certain contributions made by emeé&syplus a contribution of between 2% and 10%aeif th
compensation depending on their age and yeargvitseWe currently estimate that contributionstizh
plans will range from $1 million to $3 million pgear.

« We have a non-qualified defined contribution restion plan for key employees who would otherwiskesu
a loss of benefits under our defined contributiawiisgs plan as a result of the limitations by thiginal
Revenue Code

* We have an annual variable cash contribution to/fBBAs. The amount to be contributed to the VEBAHR
be 10% of the first $20 million of annual cash fl¢as defined; in general terms, the principal elenoé cast
flow are earnings before interest expense, provifio income taxes and depreciation and amortindées
cash payments for, among other things, interespne taxes and capital expenditures), plus 209 ofial
cash flow, as defined, in excess of $20 millioncisannual payments will not exceed $20 million arildl
also be limited (with no carryover to future years}he extent that the payments would cause quidity to
be less than $50 million. Such amounts will be debeed on an annual basis and payable no later than
March 31 of the following year. However, we have #bility to offset amounts that would otherwisedbe
to the VEBAs with approximately $12.7 million of@ss contributions made to the VEBAs prior to the
July 6, 2006 effective date of our Plan. We doarttcipate any annual variable cash contributiompents
will be required with respect to 2006, however,lve&e not yet determined how much, if any, of theess
contribution payments of $12.7 million will be igiéd to offset annual variable contributions thatid
otherwise have been due in respect of 2!
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The following table shows (in millions of dollar$je estimated amount of variable VEBA payments that
would occur at differing levels of earnings befdepreciation, interest, income taxes (“EBITDA”") atabh
payments in respect of, among other items, intei@sdme taxes and capital expenditures. The tadliew
does not consider the liquidity limitation, the $A®illion of advances available to offset VEBA iglaltions
as they become due and certain other factors thédl éampact the amount of variable VEBA paymente du
and, therefore, should be considered only fortitats/e purposes.

Cash Payments for
Capital Expenditures, Income Taxes, Interest Expere etc

EBITDA $25.0 $50.0 $75.0 $100.0
$20.0 $ — $ — $ — $ —
40.0 1t — — —
60.0 5.C 1.C — —
80.0 9.C 4.C .5 —
100.0 13.C 8.C 3.C —
120.0 17.C 12.C 7.C 2.C
140.0 20.C 16.C 11.C 6.C
160.0 20.C 20.C 15.C 10.C
180.0 20.C 20.C 19.C 14.C
200.0 20.C 20.C 20.C 18.C

« We have a short term incentive compensation plamémagement payable in cash which is based ptymari
on earnings, adjusted for certain safety and pedioce factors. Most of our production facilitiey@aimilar
programs for both hourly and salaried employ

« We have a stock-based lotgym incentive plan for key managers. As more fdigcussed in Note 7 of No
to Consolidated Financial Statements includedemI8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”
initial, emergence-related award was made undsipifigram. Additional awards are expected to beenrad
future years

In connection with the sale of our interests in egldted to the Gramercy, Louisiana facility ands¢a Jamaic
Bauxite Company, we indemnified the buyers fora% million of losses suffered by the buyers tieault from
any failure of our seller representations and wdiea to be true. Upon the closing of the transag¢tsuch amount
was recorded in long-term liabilities in our fing@dcstatements. A claim for the full amount of thdemnity was
made initially. In October 2006, the claimant filadevised report to indicate that its claim wagragimately
$2 million and separately filed for summary judgmi@rrespect to its claim. In early 2007, this reatvas resolved
for a cash payment by the Company of approximaielymillion. The indemnity expired with respectditional
claims in October 2006.

During the third quarter of 2005 and August 2006,placed orders for certain equipment and/or sesvic
intended to augment our heat treat and aerospaeditities at our Trentwood facility in Spokane, $iangton and
we expect to become obligated for costs relatebdse orders of approximately $105 million. Of saatount,
approximately $65 million was incurred in 2005 &@D6. The balance is expected to be incurred pilyriar2007.

At December 31, 2006, there was still approxima$&ymillion of accrued, but unpaid professionakféeat
have been approved for payment by the BankrupteyrtCAdditionally, certain professionals had “susgdees dut
upon our emergence from chapter 11 bankruptcy. épprately $5 million of such amounts were recorded
connection with emergence and fresh start accayiatid were paid by us in early 2007.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our operating results are sensitive to changesaiptices of alumina, primary aluminum and fabedat
aluminum products, and also depend to a signifidagtee upon the volume and mix of all productd.séé
discussed more fully in Notes 1 and 9 of Notesaogdlidated Financial Statements included in IterfFBancial
Statements and Supplementary Data”, we histori¢eliye utilized hedging transactions to lock-in acsfed price
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or range of prices for certain products which wie@econsume in our production process and togatg our
exposure to changes in foreign currency excharigs.ra

Sensitivity

Primary Aluminum. Our share of primary aluminum production from Aasgy is approximately 150 million
pounds annually. Because we purchase alumina fgte&ay at prices linked to primary aluminum pricady a
portion of our net revenues associated with Anglese exposed to price risk. We estimate the netquoof our
share of Anglesey production exposed to primarynaum price risk to be approximately 100 millionymals
annually (before considering income tax effects).

Our pricing of fabricated aluminum products is gaillg intended to lock-in a conversion margin (eggnting
the value added from the fabrication process(asy)to pass metal price risk on to its customeosvéver, in
certain instances we do enter into firm price ageaments. In such instances, we do have price risinticipated
primary aluminum purchase in respect of the custanueder. Total fabricated products shipments iy 2004,
2005, the period from January 1, 2006 to July D628nd the period from July 1, 2006 through DecerBhe 2006
for which we had price risk were (in millions ofyoads) 119.6, 155.0, 103.9 and 96.0, respectively.

During the last three years, the volume of fabadgiroducts shipments with underlying primary atunm
price risk were at least as much as our net expdsyprimary aluminum price risk at Anglesey. Aslsuve
consider our access to Anglesey production overdle a “natural” hedge against any fabricated petslfirm
metal-price risk. However, since the volume of fedted products shipped under firm prices may natcimup on a
month-to-month basis with expected Angleselated primary aluminum shipments, we may usel tharty hedginy
instruments to eliminate any net remaining primelgminum price exposure existing at any time.

At December 31, 2006, the fabricated products lassiteld contracts for the delivery of fabricatiednénum
products that have the effect of creating prick ois anticipated primary aluminum purchases for”2th®ough 201
totaling approximately (in millions of pounds): ZQ@49; 2008, 111; 2009, 83; 2010, 83; and 2011, 77

Foreign Currency. We from time to time will enter into forward exahlge contracts to hedge material cash
commitments for foreign currencies. After considgrthe completed sales of our commodity intereats primary
foreign exchange exposure is the Anglesey-relabethtitment that we fund in Great Britain Pound Steyl or
GBP. We estimate that, before consideration oftedging activities, a US $0.01 increase (decraagbp value of
the GBP results in an approximate $.5 million (dase) increase in our annual pre-tax operatingreco

Energy. We are exposed to energy price risk from fluétgaprices for natural gas. We estimate that, keefor
consideration of any hedging activities, each $Tinge in natural gas prices (per mcf) impactsaonual pre-tax
operating results by approximately $4.0 million.

We from time to time in the ordinary course of Imgsis enter into hedging transactions with majopkens of
energy and energy-related financial investmentsofA3ecember 31, 2006, we had fixed price purcltasgracts
which limit our exposure to increases in natura gaces for approximately 81% of the natural gacpases from
January 2007 through March 2007, 27% of naturapgashases from April 2007 through June 2007 artd b#
natural gas purchases from July 2007 through Sdqeef007.
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KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of
Kaiser Aluminum Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Kaiser Aluminum Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31 62@uccessor Company balance sheet) and 2005 (fesste
Company balance sheet), and the related consdalidtaéements of income (loss), stockholders’ equiéficit) and
comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows fop#r@d from July 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006 (8ssor
Company operations), the period from January 1620Quly 1, 2006 and for each of the two yeatthéperiod
ended December 31, 2005 (Predecessor Company iopsjail hese financial statements are the respitiysifif the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on the financial statements basedipaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. The Company is not required t@hasr were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internati@rover financial reporting. Our audit includednsideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a kdsr designing audit procedures that are apprtgpiiethe
circumstances but not for the purpose of expresamgpinion on the effectiveness of the Compamytarnal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, wepgess no such opinion. An audit also includes éxeng, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts awctbdiges in the financial statements, assessingdabeunting
principles used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the overall filgdustatement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesgonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company emerged from bankruptcy o
July 6, 2006. In connection with its emergence Gbenpany adopted fresh-start reporting pursuaAnerican
Institute of Certified Public Accountants StatemehPosition 90-7Financial Reporting by Entities in
Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Cq, as of July 1, 2006. As a result, the consolidéitehcial statements of
the Successor Company are presented on a diffeasid than those of the Predecessor Company ardfdhe, are
not comparable.

In our opinion, the Successor Company consolidéibeahcial statements referred to above preseny/fair all
material respects, the financial position of thenpany as of December 31, 2006, and the results operations
and its cash flows for the period from July 1, 2@@®ecember 31, 2006, in conformity with accougtaminciples
generally accepted in the United States of Ameficather, in our opinion, the Predecessor Compamgalidated
financial statements referred to above preseryfair all material respects, the consolidatedficial position of th
Predecessor as of December 31, 2005, and thege$id$ operations and its cash flows for the qukfrom
January 1, 2006 to July 1, 2006 and for each ofwloeyears in the period ended December 31, 200& mformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m lthmited States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Costa Mesa, California

March 29, 2007
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Current asset:

KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Receivables

Trade, less allowance for doubtful receivables20%nd $2.¢

Due from affiliate

Other
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate dodéf
Property, plant, and equipme— net
Personal injur-related insurance recoveries receive

Intangible asse- net, including goodwill of $11.4 at December 3102

Net assets in respect of VEB,

Other asset
Total

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Liabilities not subject to compromi—
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued interes
Accrued salaries, wages, and related expe
Other accrued liabilitie
Payable to affiliat¢
Long-term debt— current portior
Discontinued operatio’ current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt
Discontinued operatior’ liabilities (liabilities subject to compromis

Liabilities subject to compromis
Minority interests
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity (deficit):

Common stock, par value $.01, authorized 45,000sb@0es; issued and outstanc

20,525,660 shares at December 31, Z
Additional capital
Retained earnings (defic

Common stock owned by Union VEBA subject to transéstrictions, at
reorganization value, 6,291,945 shares at DeceBihet00€

Accumulated other comprehensive income (I
Total stockholder equity (deficit)

Total

December 31
2006

Predecessor
December 31
2005

(In millions of dollars, except
share amounts)

$ 50 |$  49F
98.£ 94.¢

1.3 —

6.3 6.

188.1 115.2

40.€ 21.(

384. 287.:

18.€ 12.€

170. 223.c

— 965.

— 11.

40.7 —

40.€ 38.7

$ 6552 |$ 1,538
$ 73:|$ 51«
7 1.

39.2 42.(

46. 55.2

16.2 14.

— 1.1

— 2.1

176.¢ 167.€

58.: 42.(

50.( 1.2

— 68.F

284.7 279.

— 4,400.

— 7

2 8

487.F 538.(

26. (3,671.)
(151.7) —

7.9 (8.9)

370.7 (3141.)

$ 655 |$ 1,538

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part of these statements.
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KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME (LOSS)

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31, 200!
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 200¢
December 31 to Year Ended December 3
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
(In millions of dollars, except share anc
per share amounts)
Net sales 667.5 |$ 689.6 $ 1,089.. $ 942.
Costs and expense
Cost of products sol 580.4 596.4 951.1 852.2
Depreciation and amortizatic 5.E 9.8 19.¢ 22.2
Selling, administrative, research and developreem,genere 35t 30.5 50.¢ 92.:
Other operating (benefits) charges, (2.2) .9 8.C 793.2
Total costs and expens 619.2 637.4 1,029.¢ 1,760.(
Operating income (los: 48.2 52.4 59.¢ (817.9
Other income (expense
Interest expense (excluding unrecorded contraatterest expense of
$47.4 for the period from January 1, 2006 to JulgQ06 and $95.0
in 2005 and 2004 1.3 (.8) (5.9) (9.5
Reorganization item — 3,090.. (1,162.) (39.0
Other— net 2.7 1.2 (2.9) 4.2
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontimpedations 49.¢ 3,143 (1,109.9 (861.9
Provision for income taxe (23.9) (6.2 (2.8) (6.2
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 26.2 3,136.¢ (1,112.) (868.7)
Discontinued operation
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nehobme taxes,
including minority interest — 4.3 (2.5) (5.9
Gain from sale of commodity intere: — — 366.2 126.€
Income from discontinued operatic — 4.3 363.% 121.%
Cumulative effect on years prior to 2005 of adogtieccounting for
conditional asset retirement obligatic — — (4.7) —
Net income (loss 26.2 |$ 3,141.0 $ (753.5) $ (746.9)
Earnings per sha— Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 131 |$ 39.37 $ (1397 $ (10.89)
Income from discontinued operatia — |$ 05 $ 4571 $ 152
Loss from cumulative effect on years prior to 2@9%adopting
accounting for conditional asset retirement oblayzt — |$ — % (.06) $ —
Net income (loss 131 |$ 39423 (9460 $ (9.3¢)
Earnings per sha— Diluted (same as Basic for Predecess
Income from continuing operatiol 1.3C
Income from discontinued operatic —
Loss from cumulative effect on years prior to 2@@adopting
accounting for conditional asset retirement oblaat —
Net income 1.3C
Weighted average shares outstanding (C
Basic 20,00: 79,67 79,67t 79,81t
Diluted 20,08¢ 79,67 79,67¢ 79,81t

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part of these statements.
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KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Common
Stock
Owned by
Union Accumulated
VEBA Other
Retained Subjectto Comprehensive
Common Additional Earnings Transfer Income
Stock Capital (Deficit)  Restriction (Loss) Total
(In millions of dollars)
BALANCE, December 31, 20C— Predecessc $ .8 $ 539.1 $(2,170.) $ — $ (107.9) $(1,738.7)
Net loss — — (746.¢) — — (746.)
Minimum pension liability adjustmel — — — — 97.¢ 97.¢
Unrealized net increase in value of derivativerinsients
arising during the yes — — — — 2.1 2.1
Reclassification adjustment for net realized losses
derivative instruments included in net I¢ — — — — 24 2.4
Comprehensive income (los (644.9
Restricted stock cancellatio — (1.7) — — — (1.2)
BALANCE, December 31, 20C— Predecessc .8 538.C (2,917.% — (5.5) (2,384.)
Net loss — — (753.7%) — — (753.7%)
Minimum pension liability adjustmel — — — — 3.9 3.2)
Unrealized net decrease in value of derivativerimsents
arising during the yee — — — — (-3) (-3
Reclassification adjustment for net realized losses
derivative instruments included in net Ic — — — — 2 .2
Comprehensive income (los (757.0
BALANCE, December 31, 20C— Predecessc .8 538.C (3,671.) — (8.9) (3,141.)
Net Income (same as Comprehensive income) Prede — — 35.¢ — — 35.€
BALANCE, June 30, 200— Predecessc .8 538.C (3,635.) — (8.9) (3,105.9)
Cancellation of Predecessor common st (-8 .8 — — — —
Issuance of Successor common stock (20,000,00@shar
to creditors 2 480.2 — — — 480.4
Common stock owned by Union VEBA subject to tran
restrictions, at reorganization value, 6,291,94&ra$ — — — (151.9) — (151.7)
Plan and fresh start adjustme — (538.§) 3,635.1 — 8.6 3,105.i
BALANCE, July 1, 200¢ 2 480.2 — (151.9) — 329.:
Net income — — 26.2 — — 26.2
Benefit plan adjustments not recognized in earn — — — — 7.€ 7.6
Comprehensive income (los 34.1
Issuance of 4,273 shares of common stock to direato
lieu of annual retainer fet — 2 — — — 2
Recognition of pre-emergence tax benefits in acooed
with fresh start accountir — 3.3 — — — 8.8
Amortization of unearned equity compensal — 3.8 — — — 3.8
BALANCE, December 31, 20C $ 2$ 487E5% 26.2% (15108 7.6 $ 370.5

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part of these statements.
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KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Less net income from discontinued operati
Net income (loss) from continuing operations, inéhg loss from cumulative
effect of adopting change in accounting in 2!
Adjustments to reconcile net income(loss) from garihg operations to net cash
used by continuing operatior
Recognition of pre-emergence tax benefits in acoed with fresh start
accounting
Non-cash charges in reorganization items in 20@bcdher operating charges i
2004
Depreciation and amortization (including deferrehcing costs of $.3, $.9,
$4.4 and $5.8, respectivel
Non-cash equity compensatit
Gain on discharge of -petition obligations and fresh start adjustme
Payments pursuant to plan of reorganiza
Loss from cumulative effect on years prior to 2@d%adopting accounting for
conditional asset retirement obligatic
Gains on sale of real est:
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated affilist@et of distribution
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivi
Increase in inventories, excluding LIFO adjustmemtd other non-cash
operating item:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and atirentasset
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acicrtieeelst
(Decrease) increase in other accrued liabil
(Decrease) increase in payable to affilic
Increase (decrease) in accrued and deferred intaxas
Net cash impact of changes in l-term assets and liabilitie
Benefit plan adjustments not recognized in earn
Net cash provided by discontinued operati
Other
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditures, net of accounts payable & Bbperiod from July 1, 2006
through December 31, 2006 and $1.6 for period fdamuary 1,2006 to July 1,
2006
Net proceeds from dispositions: real estate in 20062005, real estate a
equipment in 200
Net cash provided by discontinued operations; prilgnproceeds from sale ¢
commodity interests in 2005 and 2C
Net cash (used) provided by investing activi

Cash flows from financing activitie

Borrowings under Term Loan Facili

Financing cost

Repayment of det

Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢

Net cash used by discontinued operations: primardyease in restricted cash
2005 and increase in restricted cash and paymehipaft CARIFA loan of $14.6
in 2004

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalerihg the perio
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Interest paid, net of capitalized interest of $116), $.6, and $.
Less interest paid by discontinued operati

Income taxes pai
Less income taxes paid by discontinued opera

Predecesso
Year Ended
December 31, 2001
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 200t
December 31 to Year Ended December 31
2006 | July 1, 2006 2005 2004
(In millions of dollars)

$ 26.z |$ 3,141.. $ (753.%) $ (746.¢)
— 4.2 363.7 121.%
26.2 3,136.¢ (1,117.9 (868.7)

3.2 — — —

— — 1,131t 805.3

5.7 10.7 24.: 28.1

4.C — — —

— (3,110.9 — —

— (25.9) —

— — 4.7 —

— (1.6) (.2) —
(7.5) (10.7) 1.t 4.0)
14.5 (18.%) 9.2 (30.5)
(16.7) (7.9) (9.9 (24.5)

(7.7 (14.5) — .8

13.¢ 4.7 (2.4) 16.£
(13.9 5.7 (5.0 (18.6)

(16.¢) 18.2 1 3.3

8.6 (.5) 4.9) 1.7
(4.€) (8.0 (25.0 (11.5)

7.8 — — —

— £ 17.¢ 64.C
— — 1.2 (.4)
18.¢ (11.7) 16.€ (38.0)
(30.0 (28.7) (31.0 (7.€)

— 1.C .9 2.3

— — 401.£ 356.7

(30.0) (27.1) 371.% 351.¢

50.C — — —
(.8 (-2 (3.7 (2.4)

— — 2.7 —

— 1.t (1.5) —
— — (387.2) (291.7)
49.2 1.3 (394.7) (293.5

38.C (37.5) (5.9 19.¢

12.C 49.F 55.4 35.F

$ 50.C |$ 12.C $ 49.5 $ 55.¢
$ 2 ($ — $ 7 $ 3.8
— — — (.9

$ 2 [$ — $ 7 $ 2.
$ 7 |$ 1.2 $ 22.: $ 10.7
— — (18.9) (10.7)

$ 7% 1.2 $ 3.4 $ —

The accompanying notes to consolidated financédéstents are an integral part of these statements.
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KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In millions of dollars, except share amounts)

The accompanying financial statements includeitfential statements of Kaiser Aluminum Corporatbmth
before and after emergence. Financial informatietated to Kaiser Aluminum Corporation after emergeis
generally referred to throughout this Report“Successor” information. Information of Kaiser Alumum
Corporation before emergence is generally refetieds “Predecessor” information. The financial imfioation of
the Successor entity is not comparable to thahefRredecessor given the impacts of the Plan, im@htation of
fresh start reporting and other factors as mordyfdlescribed below

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementgyemeped into two categories: (1) those primariljeating
the Successor entity (Notes 1 through 12) andh@e primarily affecting the Predecessor entityt@€dl 3 through
21).

SUCCESSOR
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presemtati The consolidated financial statements include the
statements of Kaiser Aluminum Corporation (“KaiséRAC”, or the “Company”) and its majority owned
subsidiaries.

This is the first annual report under the Secwiigchange Act of 1934 reflecting Successor fira@nci
information and, as discussed in Note 2, refldutstérms of Kaiser’'s Second Amended Plan of Redazg#on (the
“Plan”™) and certain related actions and the appboeof “fresh start” accounting as required by Araerican
Institute of Certified Professional Accountants [C®A”) Statement of Position 90-7 (“SOP 90-7Fnancial
Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under treBruptcy Codeln accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”), while the PredeamsBnancial information will continue to be presed,
Predecessor and Successor financial statemeniriafimn for 2006 is reported separately and not d¢oeth

As stated in Note 2, due to the implementatiorhefPlan, the application of fresh start accounding due to
changes in accounting policies and proceduredijrthacial statements of the Successor are not caabfmto those
of the Predecessor.

The Company’s emergence from chapter 11 and adopfifresh start accounting resulted in a new répgr
entity for accounting purposes. Although the Conypamerged from chapter 11 on July 6, 2006 (herdfierred to
as the “Effective Date”), the Company adopted fretsint accounting under the provisions of SOP @@factive as
of the beginning of business on July 1, 2006. Ashsit was assumed that the emergence was completed
instantaneously at the beginning of business on1JuW2006 such that all operating activities duriing period from
July 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006 are rep@geapplying to the new reporting entity. The Comyplelieves
that this is a reasonable presentation as there mematerial non-Plan-related transactions betwabnl, 2006
and July 6, 2006.

The Predecessor Statement of Consolidated CastsFomwthe period January 1, 2006 to July 1, 20@€uates
plan-related payments of $25.3 made between JWQQ6 and July 6, 2006.

The preparation of financial statements in accazdamith GAAP requires the use of estimates andmnagsans
that affect the reported amounts of assets anilitied, disclosure of contingent assets and liieg known to exist
as of the date the financial statements are puddisind the reported amounts of revenues and eepeéusing the
reporting period. Uncertainties, with respect totsastimates and assumptions, are inherent inrépapation of the
Companys consolidated financial statements; accordinglg, possible that the actual results could diffem thes:
estimates and assumptions, which could have a ialaddiect on the reported amounts of the Company’s
consolidated financial position and results of agien.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Investments in 50%-or-less-owned entities are ateolfor primarily by the equity method. The onlick
affiliate of significance at December 31, 2006 waglesey Aluminium Limited (“Anglesey”). Intercompg
balances and transactions are eliminated.

Recognition of Sales.Sales are recognized when title, ownership aidaf loss pass to the buyer and
collectibility is reasonably assured. A provisiam &stimated sales returns from and allowancesstomers is mac
in the same period as the related revenues argnmizenl, based on historical experience or the fipédentification
of an event necessitating a reserve.

Earnings per Share.Basic earnings per share is computed by dividengings by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the@geTihe shares owned by a voluntary employee baasfi
association (“VEBA”") for the benefit of certain wmi retirees, their surviving spouses and eligildpehdents (the
“Union VEBA”) that are subject to transfer restiicts, while being treated similar to treasury stick as a
reduction in Stockholders’ equity) are includedtia computation of basic shares outstanding as shates were
irrevocably issued and are subject to full dividemd voting rights.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividiagings by the weighted average number of diluted
common shares outstanding during the period. Thehted average number of diluted shares includeslilative
effect of the non-vested stock and restricted stotts granted during the period from the dategraft (see
Note 7).The impact of the n-vested shares and restricted stock units on th#auof dilutive common shares is
calculated by reducing the total number of nonegsthares and restricted stock units (525,086héyheoretical
number of shares that could be repurchased undersumption that the hypothetical proceeds of sookvested
shares and restricted stock units is the amounhifcognized compensation expense together withedated
income tax benefits (439,732). Based on the forega total 85,354 shares of common stock have adéed to
the diluted earnings per share computation.

Stock-Based Employee Compensatidrhe Company accounts for stock-based employe@ensation plans
at fair value. The Company measures the cost of@me services received in exchange for an awaedjoity
instruments based on the grant-date fair valub@ftvard. The cost of the award is recognized &xpense over
the period that the employee provides servicetferaward. During the period from July 1, 2006 tigtou
December 31, 2006, $4.0 of compensation cost wagnézed in connection with vested and non-vesiecksand
restricted stock units issued to executive officetBer key employees and directors during theoplgisee Note 7).
The Company has elected to amortize compensatipense for equity awards with grading vesting usiey
straight line method.
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Other Income (Expense)Amounts included in Other income (expense), othan interest expense and
reorganization items in 2006, 2005 and 2004, ineflite following pre-tax gains (losses):

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006
Year Ended
December 31 to July 1, _December 31,
2006 2006 2005 2004
Interest income(e $ 2C |$ — $— % —
Adjustment to environmental liabilities for non-optng
properties — — — (1.9
Gain (loss) on sale of real estate and miscellameooperties wit
no operations (Note 1! — — — 1.8
Settlement of outstanding obligations of formeiliate — — — 6.3
Asbestos and personal inj-related charge — — — (2.0
All other, net N 1.2 (2.9 (1.5
$ 27 |$ 1.2 $24 $4.2

(@ In accordance with SOP 90iiiterest income during the pendency of the chaltereorganization proceedir
was treated as a reduction of reorganization ex

Income Taxes.In accordance with SOP 90-7, the Company addpiteghcial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") Interpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, anriptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109(“FIN 48") at emergence. In accordance with FIN #f2 Company uses a “more likely than not” threghol
for recognition of tax attributes that are subjectincertainties and measures any reserves inatspgsuch
expected benefits based on their probability asquiteed by FIN 48. The Company does not considsratthange
from the practice of the Predecessor. The adopti¢tiN 48 did not have a material impact on the @any’s
financial statements.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers only those short-term,iliguid investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less when purela® be cash equivalents.

Inventories. Substantially all product inventories are staiad last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) basis, not in exx®
of market value. Replacement cost is not in exoé&$FO cost. Other inventories, principally opénatsupplies
and repair and maintenance parts, are stated &ivilee of average cost or market. Inventory costssist of
material, labor and manufacturing overhead, inclgdiepreciation. Abnormal costs, such as idleifgakpenses,
freight, handling costs and spoilage, are accoufateds current period charges.
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Inventories consist of the following:

Predecessol
December 31 December 31,
2006 2005

Fabricated product—
Finished product $ 61.1 |$ 34.%
Work in proces: 72.¢ 43.1
Raw materialt 42.C 26.2
Operating supplies and repairs and maintenancs 12.1 11.1
188.( 115.2
Commodities— Primary aluminurn A 1
$ 188.1 | $ 115.C

As stated above, the Company determines cost fstantially all of its product inventories on a Ombasis.
All Predecessor LIFO layers were eliminated in @stion with the application of fresh start accongtiThe
Company applies LIFO differently than the Predegeds in that it views each quarter on a standaloasis for
computing LIFO; whereas the Predecessor recorde® lamounts with a view to the entire fiscal yeaiolhwith
certain exceptions, tended to result in LIFO chatgeing recorded in the fourth quarter or the sédwif of the
year. The Company recorded a net-cash LIFO charge of approximately $3.3 duringpkeod from July 1, 2006
through December 31, 2006, a ncash LIFO charge of approximately $21.7 duringglgod from January 1, 20
to July 1, 2006 and non-cash LIFO charges of $8d3%12.1 during the years ended December 31, 2002@04.
These amounts are primarily a result of changesatal prices.

Pursuant to fresh start accounting, in the Compaagéning July 2006 balance sheet, all inventorglars
were stated at fair market value. Raw materials@peérating supplies and repairs and maintenands pare
recorded at published market prices including acgtion premiums. Finished products and Work irgpess
(“WIP™) were recorded at selling price less cossédl, cost to complete and a reasonable apportgohwf the profit
margin associated with the selling and conversféorts. As reported in Note 2, this resulted iniagrease in the
value of the inventories in the opening July 20@&hbce sheet of approximately $48.9.

Given the recent strength in demand for many tyfdabricated aluminum products and primary aluminu
the Company has a larger volume of raw material®, #d finished goods than is its historical averamd the
price for such goods that was reflected in the opmeimventory balance at July 1, 2006, given theliaption of
fresh start accounting, is higher than long terstdnical averages. As such, with the inevitable @b flow of
business cycles, non-cash LIFO charges will raghén inventory levels drop and/or margins compr8ssh
adjustments could be material to results in fupesods.

Depreciation. Depreciation is computed principally using thaistht-line method at rates based on the
estimated useful lives of the various classes &ftas The principal estimated useful lives, whigrewdetermined
based on a third party appraisal, are as follows:

Useful Life

(Years)
Land improvement 3-7
Buildings 15-35
Machinery and equipme 2-22

As more fully discussed below, upon emergence freonganization, the Company applied fresh start
accounting to its consolidated financial statemastsequired by SOP 90-7. As a result, accumuldépdeciation
was reset to zero. The new lives assigned to tfigidual assets and the application of fresh stecbunting (see
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Notes 2 and 4) will cause future depreciation espen be different than the historical depreciampense of th
Predecessor.

Capitalization of Interest. Interest related to the construction of qualifyassets is capitalized as part of the
construction costs.

Deferred Financing Costs.Costs incurred to obtain debt financing are deféand amortized over the
estimated term of the related borrowing. Such aizetion is included in Interest expense.

Intangible Assets.At the Effective Date, pursuant to fresh stagoamting, the Company allocated the
reorganization value to its assets and liabilitiesluding intangible assets, based on a thirdypappraisal. The
appraisal indicated that certain intangible asseisted. The values assigned as part of the altocaf the
reorganization value, the balance at December@16,2and the useful lives assigned to each typaeatified
intangible asset is set forth below:

December 31 July 1,

2006 2006 Useful Life
(Years)
Customer relationshiy $ — $ 81 15-18
Trade nam — 3.7 Indefinite
Patents — 5 10

$ — 312z

Intangible assets were reduced proportionatelyndutie period from July 1, 2006 through Decembe2B0D6
by approximately $12.1 in respect of the resolutibnertain pre-emergence income tax attributesgeized during
the period from July 1, 2006 through December 8D62(see Note 6) and $.2 of amortization.

The Company reviews intangibles for impairmenteast annually in the fourth quarter of each yeanore
frequently if events or changes in circumstancdgate that the asset might be impaired.

Foreign Currency. The Company uses the United States dollar afutiwtional currency for its foreign
operations.

Derivative Financial Instruments Hedging transactions using derivative finanaatiuments are primarily
designed to mitigate the Company’s exposure togsin prices for certain of the products which@unpany
sells and consumes and, to a lesser extent, tgatétthe Company’s exposure to changes in foraigmeecy
exchange rates. The Company does not utilize deré/financial instruments for trading or other splative
purposes. The Company’s derivative activities aitaited within guidelines established by manageraed
approved by the Company’s board of directors. Heglgfiansactions are executed centrally on behafl aff the
Company’s business segments to minimize transactists, monitor consolidated net exposures and/dto
increased responsiveness to changes in marketgacto

The Company recognizes all derivative instrumentassets or liabilities in its balance sheet andswes thos
instruments at fair value by “marking-to-market!’ @ its hedging positions at each period-end (dete 9).
Changes in the market value of the Company’s opelgihg positions resulting from the mark-to-manbetcess
represent unrealized gains or losses. Such uneeajiains or losses will fluctuate, based on prangaiharket prices
at each subsequent balance sheet date, untiltttesent date occurs. These changes are recordatiasrease or
reduction in stockholders’ equity through eithéretcomprehensive income (“OCI”) or net income,ateping on
the facts and circumstances with respect to tmsaetion and its documentation. If the derivatramsaction
qualifies for hedge (deferral) treatment underestant of Financial Accounting Standards No. ¥8&;ounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit(“SFAS No. 133"), the changes are recorded initill OCI. Such
changes reverse out of OCI (offset by any fluctregiin other “open” positions) and are recordedahincome
(included in Net sales or Cost of products solda@dicable) when the subsequent settlement
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transactions occur. If derivative transactions dbqualify for hedge accounting treatment, the gesrnn market
value are recorded in net income. To qualify faddeeaccounting treatment, the derivative transactiast meet
criteria established by SFAS No. 133. Even if teedtive transaction meets the SFAS No. 133 dait¢ne
Company must also comply with a number of complesutnentation requirements, which, if not met, reisuthe
derivative transaction being precluded from benegtied as a hedge (i.e., it must then be markexaidet with
period to period changes in market value beingrdmbin quarterly results) unless and until suctudeentation is
modified and determined to be in accordance witASNo. 133. Additionally, if the level of physiceihnsactions
falls below the net exposure hedged, “hedge” actogmust be terminated for such “excess” hedgeistia@
mark-to-market changes on such excess hedges Wweuktorded in the income statement rather th@0Ch

In connection with the Company’s preparation ofiecember 31, 2005 financial statements, the Cognpan
concluded that its derivative financial instrumedlits not meet certain specific documentation cater
SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the Company restategiitsr results for the quarters ended March 31eRMhand
September 30, 2005 and marked all of its derivatteemarket in 2005. The change in accounting éoivdtive
contracts was related to the form of the Compadgtsumentation. The Company determined that its ingdg
documentation did not meet the strict documentagtandards established by SFAS No. 133. More dpaltyf, the
Company’s documentation did not comply with SFAS 183 in respect to the Company’s methods forngsiind
supporting that changes in the market value ohtdlging transactions would correlate with fluctoasi in the valu
of the forecasted transaction to which they refab® Company had documented that the derivativgastusing
would qualify for the “short cut” method wherebytdar assessments of correlation would not be redui
However, it ultimately concluded that, while thents of the derivatives were essentially the saméasorecasted
transaction, they were not identical and, thereftire Company should have done certain mathematical
computations to prove the ongoing correlation afrides in value of the hedge and the forecasteddction. As a
result, under SFAS No. 133, the Company “de-desagtidats open derivative transactions and refledtectuations
in the market value of such derivative transactiorits results each period rather than deferdmgdffects until the
forecasted transactions (to which the hedges )etaur. The effect on the first three quarter@@d5 of marking
the derivatives to market rather than deferringigfdosses was to increase Cost of products soldecrase
Operating income by $2.0, $1.5 and $1.0, respdgtive

The rules provide that, once de-designation hasroed, the Company can modify its documentationrand
designate the derivative transactions as “hedged,’ihappropriately documented, re-qualify thengactions for
prospectively deferring changes in market fluctwadiafter such corrections are made. The Compangrising to
modify its documentation and to re-qualify open @odt 2005 hedging transactions for treatment dgdse
However, no assurances can be provided in thisdega

In general, when hedge (deferral) accounting indpapplied, material fluctuations in OCI and Stauklers’
equity will occur in periods of price volatility edpite the fact that the Company’s cash flow amdiegs will be
“fixed” to the extent hedged. This result is congrto the intent of the Company’s hedging prograrhich is to
“lock-in" a price (or range of prices) for produstsid/used so that earnings and cash flows arestutg a reduced
risk of volatility.

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligation&ffective December 31, 2005, the Company adopfe8B
Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN 47"Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obiigias, an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 14'SFAS No. 143")retroactive to the beginning of 2005. PursuantfdS No. 143 and
FIN 47, companies are required to estimate incréahensts for special handling, removal and dispossts of
materials that may or will give rise to conditiomaiset retirement obligations (“CAROs”) and thescdunt the
expected costs back to the current year usingdit @@justed risk free rate. Under the guidelinesified in FIN 47,
liabilities and costs for CAROs must be recognied company'’s financial statements even if itnslear when or
if the CARO may/will be triggered. If it is uncleathen or if a CARO will be triggered, companies @guired to
use probability weighting for possible timing sceosa to determine the probability weighted amouhtt should be
recognized in the company’s financial statement& Company evaluated FIN 47 and determined thnetsit
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CAROs at several of its fabricated products faesit The vast majority of such CAROs consist oféneental costs
that would be associated with the removal and diapof asbestos (all of which is believed to béyfabntained and
encapsulated within walls, floors, ceilings or pipj of certain of the older plants if such planereto undergo
major renovation or be demolished. No plans culyentist for any such renovation or demolition ath facilities
and the Compang’current assessment is that the most probablarseemre that no such CARO would be triggt
for 20 or more years, if at all. Nonetheless, #teoactive application of FIN 47 resulted in then@any
recognizing, retroactive to the beginning of 200, following in the fourth quarter of 2005: (ixharge of
approximately $2.0 reflecting the cumulative eagsiimpact of adopting FIN 47, (ii) an increase mgerty, plant
and equipment of $.5 and (iii) offsetting the amtsun (i) and (ii), an increase in Long term liatigls of
approximately $2.5. In addition, pursuant to FINtA&re was an immaterial amount of incremental egption
expense recorded (in Depreciation and amortizafmmihe year ended December 31, 2005 as a refsihieo
retroactive increase in Property, plant and equigrfdiscussed in (ii) above) and there was an mergal $.2 of
non-cash charges (in Cost of products sold) tecethe accretion of the liability recognized atuary 1, 2005
(discussed in (iii) above) to the estimated falueaof the CARO of $2.7 at December 31, 2005.

The Company’s estimates and judgments that affiecptobability weighted estimated future contingeogt
amounts did not change during the year ended Dese8&1h 2006. The following amounts have been reftba the
Company’s results for the year ended December@16:2i) an immaterial incremental amount of dejaan
expense and (ii) an incremental accretion of thienesed liability of $.2 (iin Cost of products spld he estimated
fair value of the CARO at December 31, 2006 wa8.$2.

Anglesey, a 49% owned unconsolidated aluminum tmvest, also recorded a CARO liability of approxieig
$15.0 in its financial statements at December 8052 The treatment applied by Anglesey was notisterg with
the principles of SFAS No. 143 or FIN 47. Accordinghe Company adjusted Anglesey’s recording ef@ARO
to comply with US GAAP treatment (see Note 3).

New Accounting Pronouncement&tatement of Financial Accounting Standards @&, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and OthestRatirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Staterhent87,
88, 106, and 132(R)SFAS No. 158") was issued in September 2006. SN&S158 requires a company to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded statussafgle-employer defined benefit postretiremenhfgaas an
asset or liability in its statement of financialstan and to recognize changes in that fundedistatcomprehensi
income in the year in which the changes occur.rRtandards only required the overfunded or unaeldd status ¢
a plan to be disclosed in the notes to the findisté@ements. In addition, SFAS No. 158 requir@s ghcompany
disclose in the notes to the financial statemeddstianal information about certain effects on petiodic benefit
cost for the next fiscal year that arise from dethyecognition of the gains or losses, prior sergiosts or credits,
and transition asset or obligation. The CompanysatbSFAS No. 158 in its year-end 2006 financialeshents.
Given the application of fresh start reportinghi third quarter of 2006, the funded status ofGbenpany’s defined
benefit pension plans was fully reflected in the@any’s September 30, 2006 balance sheet and ¢theref
SFAS No. 158 did not have a material impact onGbmpany’s balance sheet reporting for the defirexteht
pension plans. However, the adoption of SFAS N&8.ihFespect to the VEBA that provides benefitsdertain
eligible retirees of the Company and their sungvépouses and eligible dependents (the “Salarid8A7Fand the
Union VEBA resulted in an increase in equity of apgimately $8.1 in respect of increases in the @afithe VEB/
net assets between the emergence date and Dec@inl2806, which have not been reflected in earnmugsuant t
SFAS No. 106 and SFAS No. 158.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Eait Value Measuremen{§SFAS No. 157”) was issued
in September 2006 to increase consistency and aainifigy in fair value measurements and to expdmadrt
disclosures. The new standard includes a defindfdair value as well as a framework for measuffaig value. Thi
provisions of this standard apply to other accawgnpronouncements that require or permit fair vahe&asurement
The standard is effective for fiscal periods begigrafter November 15, 2007 and should be appliedgectively,
except for certain financial instruments where itstibe applied retrospectively as a cumulative-
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effect adjustment to the balance of opening reth@@nings in the year of adoption. The Comparsfilisevaluating
SFAS No. 157 but does not currently anticipate thatadoption of this standard will have a matengdact on its
financial statements.

Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 1083uidance for Quantifying Financial Statement Misstaents
(“SAB No. 108") was issued by the Securities andliange Commission (“SEC”) staff in September 2006.
SAB 108 establishes a specific approach for thetifization of financial statement errors basedtom effects of
the error on each of the Company’s financial stateimand the related financial statement disclasUree
provisions of SAB 108 are effective for the Comparecember 31, 2006 annual financial statemerits. T
adoption of this bulletin did not have an impacttibe Company’s financial statements.

Significant accounting policies of the Predecesserdiscussed in Note 13.

2. Emergence from Reorganization Proceedings

Summary. As more fully discussed in Note 14, during thetgaur years, the Company and 25 of its
subsidiaries operated under chapter 11 of the Udtates Bankruptcy Code (the “Code”) under theestigion of
the United States Bankruptcy Court for the DistotDelaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”).

As also outlined in Note 14, Kaiser and its delstassidiaries which included all of the Company’seco
fabricated products facilities and a 49% interashmnglesey which owns a smelter in the United Kimigd emerged
from chapter 11 on Effective Date pursuant to tlaenPFour subsidiaries not related to the fabritgeducts
operations were liquidated in December 2005. Puntstaethe Plan, all material pre-petition debt, gien and
postretirement medical obligations and asbestoo#rat tort liabilities, along with other pre-péiit claims (which
in total aggregated to approximately $4.4 billiarthe June 30, 2006 consolidated financial statésherere
addressed and resolved. Pursuant to the Plangtliy énterests of all of Kaiser’'s pre-emergenazkholders were
cancelled without consideration. The equity of tleevly emerged Kaiser was issued and deliveredhordparty
disbursing agent for distribution to claimholdetsguant to the Plan.

Impacts on the Opening Balance Sheet After EmeegeAs a result of the Company’s emergence from
chapter 11, the Company applied “fresh start” antiog to its opening July 2006 consolidated finahstatements
as required by SOP 90-7. As such, the Company tadjits stockholdergquity to equal the reorganization valut
the Effective Date. Items such as accumulated deiren, accumulated deficit and accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) were reset to zero Cldmpany allocated the reorganization value tondss/idual
assets and liabilities based on their estimateds/édie. Items such as current liabilities, acceusteivable, and
cash reflected values similar to those reportear po emergence. Iltems such as inventory, proppliyt and
equipment, long-term assets and long-term liaeditivere significantly adjusted from amounts presipueported.
Because fresh start accounting was applied at emeegand because of the significance of liabilgsject to
compromise that were relieved upon emergence, cosaps between the historical financial statemantsthe
financial statements from and after emergence iffieult to make.
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The following shows the impacts of the Plan andatieption of fresh start accounting on the opebizignce

sheet of the new reporting entity.

Adjusted
Plan Fresh Start Balance
Historical ~Adjustments(a) Adjustments(b) Sheet
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 37 % (25.9) % — $ 12«
Receivables
Trade, less allowance for doubtful receivat 114.1 — 7 114.¢
Other 5.7 — — 5.7
Inventories 123.1 — 48.€ 172.C
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 34.C (.3 — 33.7
Total current asse 314.2 (25.6) 49.€ 338.2
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedcaé 22.7 (.3) (11.9 11.1
Property, plant, and equipme— net 242 (4.2 (98.9) 139.7
Personal injur-related insurance recoveries receivz 963.: (963.9) — —
Intangible asset 11.4 (12.9) 12.€ 12.5
Net assets in respect of VEB, — 33.%(c) — 33.2
Other asset 43.€ 2.1 (.8) 44.¢
Total $1597.¢ $ (969. % (48.6) $ 579.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Liabilities not subject to compromi—
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 56.18% (5 % (1.9 $ 53¢
Accrued interes 1.1 (1.2 — —
Accrued salaries, wages, and related expe 37.C (4.2 7 33.¢
Other accrued liabilitie 61.C (1.9 — 59.2
Payable to affiliate 33.C — — 33.C
Long-term debt+— current portior 1.1 (1.7 — —
Discontinued operatio’ current liabilities 1.5 — — 1.5
Total current liabilities 190.¢ (8.6) (1. 181.1
Long-term liabilities 49.C 17.t 2.5 69.C
Long-term debi 1.2 (1.2 — —
Discontinued operations’ liabilities (liabilitiesisject to
compromise 73.5 (73.5) — —
314.t (65.€) 14 250.1
Liabilities subject to compromis 4,388.( (4,388.() — —
Minority interests T (.7 — —
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:
Common stocl .8 .2(d) (.8) 2
Additional capital 538.( 480.%(d) (538.0) 480.2
Common stock owned by Union VEBA subject to transfe
restrictions — (151.9(c) — (151.7)
Accumulated defici (3,635.9) 3,155.(e) 479.¢(f) —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (8.9 — 8.8 —
Total stockholder equity (deficit) (3,105.9) 3,484.¢ (50.2) 329.¢
Total $1597.¢ $ (969.y % (48.6) $ 579.
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(@) Reflects impacts on the Effective Date of impdating the Plan, including the settlement of liibs subject
to compromise and related payments, distributidresish and new shares of common stock and the
cancellation of predecessor common stock (see Nbtdncludes the reclassification of approximateii.0
from Liabilities subject to compromise to Long-teliabilities in respect of certain pension and bgnqeans
retained by the Company pending the outcome ofitigation with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Cormgutoon
(“PBGC") as more fully discussed in Note

(b) Reflects the adjustments to reflect “freshtétarcounting. These include the write up of Inweigs (see
Note 1) and Property, plant and equipment to thgpraised values and the elimination of Accumulaefitit
and Additional paid in capital. The fresh startestiinents for intangible assets and stockholderstgqgre
based on a third party appraisal rep

In accordance with GAAP, the reorganization vakialiocated to individual assets and liabilitiesfibgt
allocating value to current assets, current liiegi monetary and similar long-term items for vhhapecific
market values are determinable. The remaindetasatkd to long-term assets such as property, plaht
equipment, equity investments, identified intanggband unidentified intangibles (e.g. goodwill).the exten
that there is insufficient value to allocate todeterm assets after first allocating to the curremnetary and
similar items, such shortfall is first used to redwnidentified intangibles to zero and then tgpréonately
reduce the amount allocated to property, planteapdpment, equity investments and identified intbles
based on the initial (pre-reorganization valuectamn) assessed fair value. In allocating thegaoization
value, the Company determined that the value ofahg-term assets exceeded the amount of reorgamiza
value available to be allocated to such items lyr@pmately $187.2. Such excess value was allodated
Property, plant and equipment, Investment in unclicisted affiliate and Identified intangibles ireth
following amounts based on initial fair value assesnts determined by a third party appral

Appraised Value Allocation of Opening Balance

Based on Third Reorganization Sheet Amount at

Party Appraisal Value Shortfall July 1, 2006
Property, plant and equipme $ 299.6 % (160.) $ 139.7
Investment in and advances to unconsolidated atk 24.C (12.9 11.1
Identified intangible: 26.t (14.2) 12.:

(c) As more fully discussed in Note 7, after disiass with the staff of the Securities and Excha@gemission,
the Company concluded that, while the Company’y obligations in respect of two VEBAs is an annual
variable contribution obligation based primarily @rnings and capital spending, the Company stamddun
for the VEBASs as defined benefit postretirementplaith a cap. Note 7 provides information regagdime
opening balance sheet amounts in respect of theA¢Emd key assumptions used to derive such amc

(d) Reflects the issuance of new common stock t-petition creditors
(e) Reflects gain extinguishment of obligations fronplementation of the Pla
(fH Reflects fresh start loss of $47.4 and eliminatibretained deficit

3. Investment In and Advances To Unconsolidated Affikate

Summary financial information is provided below fsmglesey, a 49.0% owned unconsolidated aluminum
company, which owns an aluminum smelter at Holyh®dales. The Company’s equity in income before ineo
taxes of Anglesey is treated as a reduction (irsereim Cost of products sold. The income tax effetthe
Company’s equity in income are included in the Camyps income tax provision.

The nuclear plant that supplies power to Angleseguirently slated for decommissioning in late 2(Adr
Anglesey to be able to operate past September 2049, its current power contract expires, Angleséiyhave to
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secure a new or alternative power contract at pticat make its operation viable. No assurancebegnovided
that Anglesey will be successful in this regardadidition, given the potential for future shutdoand related costs,
dividends from Anglesey have been suspended whitesey studies future cash requirements. Dividends the
past five years have fluctuated substantially ddjpenon various operational and market factors.ifiuthe last five
years, cash dividends received were as follows6— $11.8, 2005 — $9.0, 2004 — $4.5, 2003 — $4.3 and
2002 — $6.0.

Summary of Anglesey’s Financial Position

December 31 December 31
2006 2005

Current assel $ 11157  $ 69.¢
Non-current assets (primarily property, plant, and poént, net 51.1 52.¢
Total asset $ 162.¢ $ 122.¢
Current liabilities $ 62t % 36.1
Long-term liabilities 30.¢ 50.1
Stockholder equity 69.4 36.€
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 162.¢  $ 122.¢

Summary of Anglesey’s Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2006

July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006
Year Ended
December 31 to December 31,
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004

Net sales $ 198.1 | $ 170.1 $266.z $249.:
Costs and expens (155.9) (132.7) (243.9 (223.))
Provision for income taxe (12.2) (11.2) (6.7) (7.4
Net income $ 30.7 | $ 266 $ 15€ $ 18.7
Compan’s equity in incomt $ 18. | $ 11 $ 48 $ 8.2
Dividends receive: $ 9.1 |$ 27 $ 9C $ 4t

The Company’s equity in income differs from the soany net income due to equity method accounting
adjustments and applying US GAAP. At yesrd 2005, Anglesey recorded a CARO liability of mpgmately $15.(
in its financial statements. The treatment apptigdnglesey was not consistent with the princilés
SFAS No. 143 or FIN 47. Accordingly, the Companjuated Anglesey’s recording of the CARO to compiyhw
US GAAP treatment. The Company determined thatiegijpn of US GAAP would have resulted in (a) a foaish
cumulative adjustment of $2.7 reducing the Compaimwestment retroactive to the beginning of 2008 @) a
decrease in the Company’s share of Anglesegrnings totaling approximately $.1 for 2005 (espnting addition:
depreciation, accretion and foreign exchange clsar¢feUS GAAP principles had been applied to psiears, the
pro forma effects would have been as follows: ife)Company’s investment in Anglesey as of DecerBheP004
and 2003 would have been reduced by $.8 and &Bectively, in respect of the additional CARO llapj and
(b) the Company’s share of Anglesey’s earning2fii4 would have been decreased by $.8 (in respéuot o
incremental depreciation, accretion and foreigrhaxge). However, if these affects had been retinadgtapplied,
the related Earnings (loss) per share amountstig4 2vould not have changed.

For purposes of the Company’s fair value estimatesed a credit adjusted risk free rate of 7.5%.
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The Company’s estimates and judgments that affiecptobability weighted estimated future contingeogt
amounts did not change during the year ended Dese8&1h 2006. The following amounts have been reftba the
Company’s results for the year ended December@16:2i) incremental depreciation expense of $2 @hand
incremental accretion of the estimated liability$o4 (in Cost of products sold). The estimatedyaiue of the

CARO at December 31, 2006 was $17.5.

The Company and Anglesey have interrelated opermtibhe Company is responsible for selling Anglesey
alumina in respect of its ownership percentageh@liemina is purchased at prices that are tieditogoy
aluminum prices under a contract that expires Bi72@nglesey will have to secure a new contragiub@hase
alumina at comparable prices. No assurances cgivée that Anglesey will be successful in this regdhe
Company is responsible for purchasing from Anglgs@yary aluminum in respect to its ownership patage at

prices tied to primary aluminum prices.

Purchases from and sales to Anglesey were as fallow

July 1, 2006 Predecessor
through January 1, 2006 Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 to December 31 December 31
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Purchase $ 95.C | $ 824  $ 150« % 120.¢
Sales 24.4 24.¢ 35.1 23.7

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the receivables fkaglesey were $1.3 and none.

As a result of fresh start accounting, the Compdagreased its investment in Anglesey at the Effedbate by
$11.6 (see Note 2). The $11.6 difference betweerCdmpany’s share of Anglesey’s equity and thestment
amount reflected in the Company’s balance shdmtirsy amortized (included in Cost of products solr the
period from July 2006 to September 2009, the ertti@turrent power contract. The non-cash amoitizavas

approximately $1.8 for the six months ended Decerthe2006.

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

The major classes of property, plant, and equipraengs follows:

Predecessor
December 31 December 31,
2006 2005

Land and improvemen $ 12¢ | $ 7.7
Buildings 18.€ 62.4
Machinery and equipme 92.2 460.4
Construction in progres 51.¢ 25.C
175.¢ 555.k

Accumulated depreciatic (5.9 (332.])
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 1705 [ $ 223.4

Pursuant to fresh start accounting, as more fuflgubsed in Note 2, the Company adjusted its Prppgadant
and equipment to its fair value as adjusted foratlacation of the reorganization value and resstumulated
depreciation to zero. The fair value of the vasjomity of the Company’s Property, plant and equipingas based
on an independent appraisal with only a small porieing based on management’s estimates. Thealaie of the
Property, plant and equipment at July 1, 2006 vgisnated to be approximately $300.0. However, gesalt of the
allocation of the reorganization value, the valududy 1, 2006 was reduced to $139.7 (i.e. theemilts of the fres
start process, as reported in Note 2, was a ne¢ase in Property, plant and equipment of $103.amount of
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depreciation to be recognized by the Company witially be lower than the amount historically rgoized by the
Predecessor.
Approximately $44.5 of the Construction in progras®ecember 31, 2006, relates to the Company'&8pn
Washington facility (se€ommitments— Note 8).
5. Secured Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Predecessor
December 31 December 31,
2006 2005
Revolving Credit Facility $ — |$ —
Term Loan Facility 50.C —
Other borrowings (fixed rate — 2.3
Total 50.C 2.3
Less— Current portior — (1.0)
Long-term debr $ 50.C |$ 1.2

On the Effective Date, the Company and certainigdidrges of the Company entered into a new Senémuged
Revolving Credit Agreement with a group of lendgrsviding for a $200.0 revolving credit facilityhg “Revolving
Credit Facility”), of which up to a maximum of $&0may be utilized for letters of credit. Under fRevolving
Credit Facility, the Company is able to borrow ¢btain letters of credit) from time to time in aggaegate amount
equal to the lesser of $200.0 and a borrowing bas®rised of eligible accounts receivable, eligiblentory and
certain eligible machinery, equipment and realtest@duced by certain reserves, all as specifiedd Revolving
Credit Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility hadive-year term and matures in July 2011, at whicie all
principal amounts outstanding thereunder will be dad payable. Borrowings under the Revolving Gifealtility
bear interest at a rate equal to either a basespiate or LIBOR, at the Company'’s option, plus ecsfed variable
percentage determined by reference to the thenim@mgaorrowing availability under the Revolvingetlit Facility.
The Revolving Credit Facility may, subject to carteonditions and the agreement of lenders thereuat
increased up to $275.0 at the request of the Coynpan

Concurrent with the execution of the Revolving Gré&acility, the Company also entered into a Teroah anc
Guaranty Agreement with a group of lenders (thefiTeoan Facility”). The Term Loan Facility providés a
$50.0 term loan and is guaranteed by the Compaghgartain of its domestic operating subsidiaridse Term
Loan Facility was fully drawn on August 4, 2006.eTherm Loan Facility has a five-year term and nmegun July
2011, at which time all principal amounts outstagdihereunder will be due and payable. Borrowinmyden the
Term Loan Facility bear interest at a rate equ&litier a premium over a base prime rate or LIB&Rhe
Company’s option. At December 31, 2006, the avenaigeest rate applicable to borrowings under thenTLoan
Facility was 9.62%.

Amounts owed under each of the Revolving Crediillfaand the Term Loan Facility may be acceleraigdn
the occurrence of various events of default séhforeach such agreement, including, without ktién, the failure
to make principal or interest payments when dud,laeaches of covenants, representations and viagan

The Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a fpsiority lien on substantially all of the assefsfee Company
and certain of its U.S. operating subsidiaries #inatalso borrowers thereunder. The Term Loan iBaisisecured
by a second lien on substantially all of the assethe Company and the Compasy).S. operating subsidiaries t
are the borrowers or guarantors thereof.
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Both credit facilities place restrictions on thelipof the Company and certain of its subsidiarte, among
other things, incur debt, create liens, make imaests, pay dividends, sell assets, undertake trtiosa with
affiliates and enter into unrelated lines of busme

During July 2006, the Company borrowed and rep8ié $inder the Revolving Credit Facility. At DecemBé
2006, there were no borrowings outstanding undeRivolving Credit Facility, there were approxinhatkl4.1 of
outstanding letters of credit and there was $50t6tanding under the Term Loan Facility.

The debt and credit facilities of the Predecessadaécussed in Note 17.

6. Income Tax Matters

Tax Attributes. Although the Company has substantial tax attébuatvailable to offset the impact of future
income taxes, the Company does not meet the “nil@ly than not” criteria for recognition of suchrétutes
primarily because the Company does not have seffidiistory of paying taxes. As such, the Compacpmed a
full valuation allowance against the amount of d&tixibutes available and no deferred tax assetra@gnized. The
benefit associated with any reduction of the védunaallowance is first utilized to reduce, intarigilassets with any
excess being recorded as an adjustment to Stoakisbkehuity rather than as a reduction of incomeetepense.
Therefore, despite the existence of such tax ate#) the Company expects to record a full stagusot provision ir
future periods and, therefore, the benefit of axydttributes realized will only affect future ba¢a sheets and
statements of cash flows. If the Company ultimatieltermines that it meets the “more likely thari’ netognition
criteria, the amount of net operating loss carnyfmds and other deferred tax assets would be redad the
balance sheet and would be recorded as an adjuston8tockholders’ equity.

The Company is in the process of finalizing itscoddtions of the additional deductions, canceltatdé
indebtedness incomes and other impacts of thedldrongoing operations on an entity-by-entity basidetermine
the tax attributes available. The Company expect®implete such work in mid 2007 in connection wiité filing of
its 2006 Federal income tax return. Our curreritrege is that the Company will have net operatoss|
carryforwards in the $875 - $925 range that wilblvailable to reduce future cash payments for iretares in the
United States (other than alternative minimum taXAMT") and that additional deductions for amounts capita
into the tax basis of inventories (totaling anrestied $100-$125) will become available (likely otreg next two
years). Such net operating loss carryforwards expériodically through 2026. Given the complexitythe
entity-by-entity analysis, unique tax regulatioegarding chapter 11 proceedings and other unctesithese
estimates remain subject to revision and suchimsscould be significant.

At December 31, 2006, the Company also had $31AMF credit carryforwards, which have an indefiniife,
available to offset regular federal income tax regpaents.

Pursuant to the Plan, to preserve the net operbitssgcarryforwards that may be available to then@any afte
emergence, on the Effective Date, the Companyficate of incorporation was amended and rest&iedmong
other things, include certain restrictions on tfams$fer of Common Stock and the Company and therUMEBA,
the Company’s largest stockholder, entered intimekgransfer restriction agreement.
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Tax Provision. Income (loss) before income taxes and minoritgrists by geographic area (excluding
discontinued operations and cumulative effect @ingfe in accounting principle) is as follows:

Domestic
Foreign

Total

Predecessor

Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006

through January 1, 2006

Year Ended
December 31 to December 31,
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
$ 27.C | $ 3,082.¢  $(1,130.) $(886.)
22.¢ 60. 20.€ 24.2

$ 49. | $ 3,143  $(1,109.9 $(861.9

Income taxes are classified as either domestioreidn, based on whether payment is made or dtreeto
United States or a foreign country. Certain incatassified as foreign is also subject to domestioine taxes.

The (provision) benefit for income taxes on incofiess) before income taxes and minority interestelding
discontinued operations and cumulative effect @fingfe in accounting principle) consists of:

Federal Foreign State Total
July 1, 2006 through December 31, 2(
Current $ — $0949 $(5 $099
Benefit applied to reduce intangible assets anctase additional capit (24.7) — (1.3 (159
Deferred — 1.€ — 1.6
Total $(14.) $ (7.8 $(1.8) $(23.7)

January 1, 2006 to July 1, 20
Current
Deferred
Total

2005

Current
Deferred

Total
2004

Current
Deferred

Total

66

Predecessol

$ 9 $(79 $(1) $((7)
9 9

$ 9 500 $(1 $69

$ — $38 $.5 $@33I
— 5 — 5
$ — $(3B3 $ 5 $(9
$ — $64d $— $64
— 2 — 2
$ — $62 $— $62
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A reconciliation between the (provision) benefit iocome taxes and the amount computed by appiyiag

federal statutory income tax rate to income (I&&sfpre income taxes and minority interests (exclgdliscontinued
operations and cumulative effect of change in acting principle) is as follows:

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006
Year Ended
December 31 to December 31,
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Amount of federal income tax benefit (expense) base
the statutory rat $ a7.5) | $ (1,100.)) $388.t $301.i
Decrease (increase) in valuation allowar — 1,099.: (379.9 (304.%)
Percentage depletic — — — 5.1
State income taxes, net of federal ber (1.2 — —
Foreign income taxe 4.7 (.5) 3.6 (6.3
Other (.3) (4.9 (15.4) (2.0)
Provision for income taxe $ (23.9) | $ 62 $ (28 $ (6.2

The table above reflects a full statutory U.S.feovision despite the fact that the Company is qalying
AMT in the U.S. Sedax Attributesabove.

In connection with fresh start accounting, the Camprecognized deferred tax liabilities of approaiaty
$4.6. Such liabilities primarily relate to an exee$ financial statement basis over the U.S. taishhat is not
expected to turn-around in the 20-year U.S. netaipey loss (“NOL”) carry-forward period.

Deferred Income TaxesDeferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeEtemporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and amounts used for i ctx purposes.
The components of the Company’s net deferred indamassets (liabilities) are as follows:

Predecessor
December 31 December 31,
2006 2005
Deferred income tax asse
Postretirement benefits other than pens $ — | $ 398.¢
Loss and credit carryforwards( 442.¢ 348.(
Pension benefit 7 170.t
Other liabilities 19.1 168.:
Inventories and othe 61.¢ 39.C
Assigned intercompany claim for benefit of certaiaditors — 443.¢
Valuation allowance (503.9) (1,527.)
Total deferred income tax ass— net 20.2 41.F
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Property, plant, and equipme (5.8 (41.9)
VEBA (16.0) —
Other (3.0 (2.5)
Total deferred income tax liabilitie (24.8) (43.8)
Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities, $ (4.6) | $ (2.9
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(1) The above assumes that the net federal operatisgcbrryforwards are ultimately determined to b24$D
which is the Company’s current best estimate. H@aneas discussed above, the amount of NOLs is atgin
to be between $875 and $925, and until the Compampletes certain additional tax analyses, the Goyip
estimates are subject to chan

(2) These deferred income tax liabilities are inclugdethe Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decemh&(®6
and 2005, respectively, in the caption entitledd-term liabilities.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sseanagement considers whether it is “more likien not”
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assdtsiot be realized. The ultimate realizationduferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxialoleme during the periods in which those tempodiiferences
become deductible. Management considers taxabbenadn carryback years, the scheduled reversadfefriced tax
liabilities, tax planning strategies and projechetire taxable income in making this assessmenbfA¥cember 3.
2006, due to uncertainties surrounding the reatimaif the Company’s deferred tax assets inclutlimgcumulative
federal and state net operating losses sustaim@tgdhe prior years, the Company has a valuatilawance of
$503.8 against its deferred tax assets. When ré&zedjrthe tax benefits relating to any reversahefvaluation
allowance will be recorded as an adjustment of IStolders’ equity rather than as a reduction of medax
expense.

Other. The Company and its subsidiaries file incomertéurns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and vaso
states and foreign jurisdictions. The Company’&fatlincome tax return for the 2004 tax year isentty under
examination by the Internal Revenue Service. They@my does not expect that the results of this eéxation will
have a material effect on its financial conditiarr@sults of operations. Certain past years allesgtiject to
examination by taxing authorities. The last yeaamaked by major jurisdiction is as follows: Canati97; State
and local- generally 1996. However, use of NOLBiimre periods could trigger review of attributeslather tax
matters in years that are not otherwise subjeek&mination.

No U.S. federal or state liability has been recdrfite the undistributed earnings of the Companyas&tlian
subsidiaries at December 31, 2006. These undistdbearnings are considered to be indefinitelyvested.
Accordingly, no provision for U.S. federal and statcome taxes or foreign withholding taxes has\h@evided on
such undistributed earnings. Determination of tbeptial amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. inedax
liability and foreign withholding taxes is not ptmable because of the complexities associated itgittlypothetical
calculation.

In accordance with the requirements of SOP 90&/ (tbmpany adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on duly
2006. The Company was not required to recognizeadditional liability for unrecognized tax benefits a result of
the implementation of FIN 48. From July 1, 200®&cember 31, 2006, the Company did not recognige an
additional liabilities for unrecognized tax bengfit

The Company recognizes interest accrued for unréeed tax benefits and penalties in the income tax
provision. During the year ended December 31, 26@6Company recognized approximately $.5 in irsieaad
penalties. The Company had approximately $4.0 dnsl &ccrued at July 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006,
respectively, for interest and penalties. Additibnaleductions taken in the Company’s tax retusasnot reflected
in the Company’s financial statements were $14Beatember 31, 2006. No material amounts were paidspect
of such deductions during 2006 or are expectedrioih the next twelve months.

Income tax matters of the Predecessor are discus$éate 18.

7. Employee Benefit and Incentive Plans

Equity Based CompensationUpon the Company’s emergence from chapter 112006 Equity and
Performance Incentive Plan (which we refer to hrees the “Equity Incentive Plan”) became effectiggecutive
officers, other key employees and directors ofGoenpany are eligible to participate in the Equitgdntive Plan.
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The Equity Incentive Plan permits the grantingwéeds in the form of options to purchase the Comm@ommoil
Stock, stock appreciation rights, shares of norteceand vested stock, restricted stock units, pedoce shares,
performance units and other awards. The Equityritiee Plan will expire on July 6, 2016. No grantd e made
after that date, but all grants made on or pricguoch date will continue in effect thereafter sabje the terms
thereof and of the Equity Incentive Plan. The ConypmBoard of Directors may, in its discretion,rténate the
Equity Incentive Plan at any time. The terminatidthe Equity Incentive Plan will not affect thghits of
participants or their successors under any awartisamding and not exercised in full on the dateeohination.

Subject to certain adjustments that may be requied time to time to prevent dilution or enlargeref the
rights of participants under the Equity Incentivar® up to 2,222,222 shares of the Company’s Com&iook were
reserved for issuance under the Equity Incentia@ FDuring the period from July 1, 2006 through ®&aber 31,
2006, the following shares were issued to, or keskfor future issuance pursuant to restrictedkstmit
agreements.

« The Company issued 515,150 shares of non-vestedroarstock to executive officers and other key
employees. Of the 515,150 shares issued, 480,%0éshre subject to a three year cliff vesting irequent
that lapses on July 6, 2009. The remainder veabiabver a three year period. The fair value efghares
issued, after assuming a 5% forfeiture rate of 32)being amortized to expense over a three ye@ogpon
a roughly ratable basis. Additionally, in NovemB606, the Company granted 3,699 restricted stok tm
certain of its employees to complete its emergealzded compensation. The restricted stock unis hiae
same rights as non-vested shares of Common Stactharemployee will receive one share of Common
stock for each restricted stock unit upon the westif the restricted stock unit. The restricteatktonits vest
one third on the first anniversary of the granedatd one third on each of the second and thirtyarsaries
of the date of emergence, July 6, 2006. The fdirevaf the non-vested shares and restricted stoit& u
issued, after assuming a 5% forfeiture rate, ofi$ling amortized to expense over the vestinpgem a
ratable basis

« In early August 2006, the Company granted 6,23 7vested shares of Common Stock to its non-employee
directors. The shares vest in August 2007. The murobshares issued was based on the approximate
$43.00 per share average closing price betweenl®,I2006 and July 31, 2006. The fair value ofrthe-
vested stock grant ($.3), based on the fair vafukeoshares at date of issuance, is being amdrnae
earnings on a ratable basis over the vesting pefincdditional 4,273 shares of vested Common Stostle
issued to non-employee directors electing to recehares of Common Stock in lieu of all or a portd
their annual retainer fee. The fair value of tharsk ($.2), based on the fair value of the shardata of
issuance, was recognized in earnings in the quaniged September 30, 2006 as a period exp

At December 31, 2006, 1,692,863 shares of CommackSemained available for issuance under the Equit
Insurance Plan.

Cash and other Compensation.

« A short term incentive compensation plan for managrg payable in cash and which is based primarily o
earnings, adjusted for certain safety and perfooadactors. Most of the Company’s locations alseeha
similar programs for both hourly and salaried ergpls. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company
recorded charges of $7.9, $5.7 and $1.7, respégtiedated to these plans. Of the total charge0io6, 200!
and 2004, $2.9, $3.3 and $1.2, respectively, wesleided in Cost of products sold and $5.0, $2.4%Ad
respectively, were included in Selling, administratresearch and development and gen

» Certain employment agreements between the Compahynambers of management became effective.
Additionally, other members of management contittueetain certain pre-emergence contractual
arrangements. In particular, the terms of the sswa@r and change in control agreements implemestad a
part of
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the key employee retention plan (the “KERBUyvive after the Effective Date for a period okorear and fc
a period ending two years following a change inte@nrespectively, in each case unless superseged
another agreement (see Note :

Pension and Similar Plans. Pensions and similar plans include:

« The Company will make monthly contributions of at@lar per hour worked by each bargaining unit
employee to the appropriate multi-employee penplans sponsored by the United Steelworkers (“USW”)
and certain other unions in respect of six faeiitiThis arrangement came into existence in DeceRiis
for three locations upon the termination of foued®cessor defined benefit plans (see Note 8). The
arrangement for the other three locations cameerigtence during the first quarter of 2005. Thenpany
currently estimates that contributions in this extpange from $1 to $3 per ye

A defined contribution 401(k) savings plan for Hgurargaining unit employees (which we refer todieras
the “Hourly DC Plan”) at five of the Company’s pradion facilities. The Company will be requirednake
contributions to the Hourly DC Plans for activedrining unit employees at these locations thatnailige
from eight hundred dollars to twenty-four hundrexdlars per employee per year, depending on the
employee’s age. This arrangement came into existenDecember 2004 for three locations upon the
termination of three Predecessor deferred benlefiisp(see Note 19). The arrangement for the other t
locations came into existence during December 2006.Company currently estimates that contributions
such plans will range from $1 to $3 per ye¢

« A defined benefit plan for our salaried employeetha Company'’s facility in London, Ontario withraral
contributions based on each salaried emplayagé and years of service. Also, a defined bepefision pla
for one inactive operation with three remainingiier employees covered by that pl

» A defined contribution savings plan for salaried @mon-bargaining unit hourly employees (which wieréo
herein as the “Salaried DC Plan”) providing for atam of certain contributions made by employees plu
contribution of between 2% and 10% of their comp¢ins depending on their age and years of servVice.
Company currently estimates that contributionsuchsplans will range from $1 to $3 per ye

« The Company has a non-qualified defined contribugitan (the “Restoration Plan”) for key employedsow
would otherwise suffer a loss of benefits underGoenpany’s defined contribution plan as a resuthef
limitations by the Internal Revenue Co

Postretirement Medical Obligations.As a part of the Company’s reorganization effaie Predecessor’s
postretirement medical plan was terminated in 26@4ticipants were given the option of COBRA cogerar
participation in the applicable (Union or Salari&BBA. All past and future bargaining unit emplogese covered
by the Union VEBA. The Salaried VEBA covers all ethietirees including employees who retired priothte 2004
termination of the prior plan or who retire withethequired age and service requirements so lottgeas
employment commenced prior to February 2002. Timefits paid by the VEBAs are at the sole discretibthe
respective VEBA trustees and are outside the Cogipaontrol.

At emergence, the Salaried VEBA received right$,8210,100 shares of the Company’s newly issued Gamm
Stock. However, prior to the Company’s emergertoe Salaried VEBA sold its rights to approximately
940,200 shares and received net proceeds of apmatedy $31. The remaining approximately 999,900ehaf the
Company’s Common Stock held by the Salaried VEBAu#y 1, 2006 were unrestricted. The Salaried VEBA
its remaining shares during the second half of 2006

At emergence, the Union VEBA received rights to4B9,900 shares of the Company’s newly issued Common
Stock. However, prior to the Company’s emergeroe Union VEBA sold its rights to approximately
2,630,000 shares and received net proceeds ofxdpiely $81. The Union VEBA is subject to an agneat that
limits its ability to sell or otherwise transfer nechan approximately 2,518,000 shares of the Corgipa
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Common Stock owned at emergence during the twasyfedowing the emergence date without certain apals by
the Company (see Note 12).

Going forward, the Company’s only obligation to MEBAs is an annual variable cash contribution. The
amount to be contributed to the VEBAs will be 10#4he first $20.0 of annual cash flow (as definiedgeneral
terms, the principal elements of cash flow are iagsbefore interest expense, provision for inceaxes and
depreciation and amortization less cash paymentsufioong other things, interest, income taxes apital
expenditures), plus 20% of annual cash flow, amddf in excess of $20.0. Such annual paymentswilexceed
$20.0 and will also be limited (with no carryoverftture years) to the extent that the paymentdavcause the
Company’s liquidity to be less than $50.0. Such am® will be determined on an annual basis andigeyw later
than March 31st of the following year. During themucse of the reorganization process, $49.7 of dmrttons were
made to the VEBAs, of which $12.7 is availabledgduce post emergence payments that may becomeuduept
to the annual variable cash requirement.

For accounting purposes, after discussions wittstaff of the Securities and Exchange Commissiom, t
Company has concluded that the postretirement raEld@nefits to be paid by the VEBAs and the Comjsany
related annual variable contribution obligationsigdd be treated as defined benefit postretiremkamt with the
current VEBA assets and future variable contrimgidescribed above, and earnings thereon, operateap on the
benefits to be paid. As such, while the Companyly obligation to the VEBAs is to pay the annuatiahble
contribution amount, the Company must account &meriodic postretirement benefit costs in accocdavith
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.,IB@ployers’ Accounting for Postretirement Beneaditser
than Pension§'SFAS No. 106”) and record any difference betwdanassets of each VEBA and its accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation (“APBQO”) in th@@pany'’s financial statements. Such informatior halve to be
obtained from the Salaried VEBA and Union VEBA opaiodic basis. In general, as more fully desctibelow,
given the significance of the assets currently exmpkcted to be available to the VEBAs in the futamd the current
level of benefits, the cap does not impact the agaton of the APBO. However, should the benefitrfalas being
used by the VEBASs increase and/or if the assets teesubstantially decrease, it is possible thatieg assets may
be insufficient alone to fund such benefits and tha benefits to be paid in future periods cowdddduced to the
amount of annual variable contributions reasonakfyected to be paid by the Company in those y@anrgsuch
limitations would also have to consider any renrairamount of excess pre-emergence VEBA contribstinade.

Key assumptions made in computing the net obligatioeach VEBA and in total at the Effective Datela
December 31, 2006 include:

With respect to VEBA assets:

* The 6,291,945 shares of the Company’s Common Steltkby the Union VEBA that were not transferable
have been excluded from assets used to computettesset or liability of the Union VEBA, and will
continue to be excluded until the restrictions &aBuch shares are being accounted for similairéasury
stocl’ in the interim (see Notes 1 and 1

» The unrestricted shares of stock held by each VER#e valued at emergence at the fair value of BB
share. At December 31, 2006 the fair value of threstricted shares of stock held by each VEBA was
$55.98 per shar

< At emergence, the Company assumed that each VEBAdvazhieve a long term rate of return of
approximately 5.5% on its assets. At December 8Q62the Company assumed that each VEBA would
achieve a long term rate of return of approxima%526 on its assets. The long-term rate of return
assumption is based on the Company’s expectatitimeahvestment strategies to be utilized by th&BXE
trustees
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« The annual variable payment obligation is beingted as a funding/contribution policy and not cedrds a
VEBA asset

With respect to VEBA obligations:

« The APBO for each VEBA has been computed baseti@tetel of benefits being provided by each VEBA
at July 1, 2006 and December 31, 2006, which wasaime at each peric

« The present value at the Effective Date was contpuséng a discount rate of return of 6.25%. Thes@né¢
value at December 31, 2006, was computed usingcaulit rate of 5.75%

» Since the Salaried VEBA was paying a fixed annoabant to its constituents at both the EffectiveeDand
December 31, 2006, no future cost trend rate iserbas been assumed in computing the APBO for the
Salaried VEBA.

« For the Union VEBA, which is currently paying centgrescription drug benefits, an initial cost wenate of
12% has been assumed and the trend rate is assomecline to 5% by 2013 at both the Effective Datd
December 31, 2006. The trend rate used by the Caynpas based on information provided by the Union
VEBA and industry data from the Compi’s actuaries

The following recaps the net assets of each VEB&fa¥ecember 31, 2006 and July 1, 2006 (such inéion
is also included in the tables required under GAwskw which roll forward the assets and obligatjons

December 31, 2006 July 1, 2006
Union VEBA Salaried VEBA Total Union VEBA Salaried VEBA Total
APBO $ (2266 $ (515 $(278.) $ (2110 $ (50.8)  $(262.0
Plan asset 241.¢ 77.4 318.¢ 213.% 81.¢ 295.2
Net asse $ 14.¢ $ 25.¢ $ 407 $ 2.1 $ 311 $ 33.

The Company’s results of operations will include thllowing impacts associated with the VEBAs: ¢aarges
for service rendered by employees; (b) a chargadoretion of interest; (c) a benefit for the ratan plan assets;
and (d) amortization of net gains or losses ontaspaor service costs associated with plan amemdsrand
actuarial differences. The VEBA-related amountduded in the results of operations are shown irtabhées below.

Future payments of annual variable contributionfist be applied to reduce any individual VEBA
obligations recorded in the Company'’s balance shiethiat time. Any remaining amount of annual Valga
contributions in excess of recorded obligationd kaél recorded as a VEBA asset in the balance sNeediccounting
recognition has been accorded to the $12.7 of expesemergence VEBA contributions at this time.

The Company does not anticipate any annual varizdsh contribution payments will be required wibkpect
to 2006, however, the Company has not yet detedrtio&v much, if any, of the excess contribution pagta of
$12.7 will be utilized to offset annual variablentdbutions that would otherwise have been duegpect of 2006.

Financial Data.
Assumptions

The following recaps the key assumptions used la@a@imounts reflected in the Companiihancial statemen
with respect to the Successor’s and Predecesperision plans and other postretirement beneaiitsplin accordan:
with generally accepted accounting principles, iotp®f the changes in the Company’s pension arer oth
postretirement benefit plans discussed above hesr keflected in such information.

The Company uses a December 31 measurement datk dbits plans.
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Weightedaverage assumptions used to determine benefitatigitgs as of December 31 and net periodic be

cost for the years ended December 31 are:

Benefit obligations assumptior
Discount rate

Rate of compensation incree

Net periodic benefit cost assumptio
Discount rate

Expected return on plan ass

Rate of compensation incree

Pension Benefits(2)

Medical/Life Benefits(1)

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
520% 5.50% 5.75% 6.25% 5.7%%
3.00#4 3.00% 3.00% — 4.0(%
520% 5.75% 5.75% 6.25% 6.0(%
6.00% 8.50% 8.50% 5.5(% —
3.00% 3.00% 3.00% — 4.0(%

(1) Medical /Life Benefits percentages for 2006 retatthe VEBAs and for 2004 relate to the Predece3swr

Compan’s obligations with respect to the Predece’s plans were fixed as of December 31, 2(

(2) Pension Benefits for 2006 primarily represent tered benefit plan of the Canadian facility. Pensi
Benefits for 2005 and 2004 primarily representRnedecessor’s defined benefit plans that were texted in

December 2006 as more fully discussed ab

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status

The following table presents the benefit obligasi@md funded status of the Company’s pension adret ot
postretirement benefit plans as of December 316 20@ 2005, and the corresponding amounts thanbeleded in

the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Change in Benefit Obligatiol
Obligation at beginning of ye:i
Service cos

Interest cos

Curtailments, settlements and amendm— Predecessor plai

Actuarial (gain) los:

Benefits paic— Predecessor plai
Creation of VEBA

Benefits paid by VEB/

Obligation at end of yes

Change in Plan Assel

FMV of plan assets at beginning of y«
Actual return on asse

Employer contributions(1

Assets for which contributions transferred to tBGE
Benefits paid(2

FMV of plan assets at end of ye
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Pension Benefits

Medical/Life Benefits

2006 2005 2006 2005
$321  $27.C  $1017.C  $1,042.(
1.1 1.2 6 —
1.6 1.6 7.9 —
(28.2) (2)  (1,005.9 —
(1.9) 3.4 14.¢ —
[ ) (11.49) (25.0)
— — 262.( —
— — (7.3) —
4C 321 278.1  1,017.(
21F 14z — —
1.0 2. 30.¢ —
1.8 6.4 306.€ 25.C
(20.0) — — —
(7 (LD (18.7) (25.0)
3.6 21F 318.¢ —




KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Obligation in excess of (less than) plan as
Unrecognized net actuarial lo

Unrecognized prior service co

Adjustment required to recognize minimum liabil

Estimated net liability to PBGC in respect of Temated Plan: —

Intangible asset and oth
Accrued (prepaid) benefit liabilit

Pension Benefits

Medical/Life Benefits

2006 2005 2006

2005

4 10.€
— (9.6)
— (1.1)
— 8.9
619.C
_ 1.1

(40.7)

1,017.(

$ 4 96285 $

(40.7)

$1,017.(

(1) Employer contributions to Medical/Life benefit ptam 2006 consist of $11.4 paid by the VEBAs before

emergence and $295.2 of value associated withsassegived by the VEBA at the Effective De

(2) Benefits paid by Medical/Life benefit plans in 20€@hsist of $11.4 paid by the VEBAS prior to emegge
and $7.3 paid by the VEBAs after the Effective D

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmhefit pension plans (other than the Terminated$)lwas
$3.6 and $3.4 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, risglgc

The projected benefit obligation, aggregate accated|benefit obligation and fair value of plan &s$er
continuing pension plans with accumulated bendfigations in excess of plan assets were $3.8, &3#3$3.1,

respectively, as of December 31, 2005.

The amount of benefit/(loss) which is recognizethim balance sheet (in Accumulated other compréhens
income) associated with the Company’s defined bepefsion plans and the VEBAs that have not beeognized
in earnings as of December 31, 2006 is $(.2) andl, $8spectively. The portion of the pension plad ¥EBA
amounts not recognized in earnings at Decembe2(816 that is expected to be recognized in earnmg®07 is na

material.

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost —

The following table presents the components ofpeeibdic benefit cost for the years ended DecerBheP006

2005 and 2004:

Service cos

Interest cos

Expected return on plan ass
Amortization of prior service co:
Amortization of net los

Net periodic benefit cos

Less discontinued operations reported separ
Defined benefit plan

Defined contribution plan

Pension Benefits

Medical/Life Benefits

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
$11 $12 $ 47 $ 6 $— $ 7.0
16 1.6  30& 7. 58.¢
L7 (15 (229 (7.9 —
— 1 26  — (21.7)
3 4 50 — 24.€
12 1.8 20z 6 68.€
- (18 — (10.2)
12 1.8 124 6 58.¢
81 7.2 — —
$94 $9C $124 $ 6 $— $58¢
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The above table excludes pension plan curtailmestsattlement costs of $6.3 and $142.4 in 20062864,
respectively, and pension plan curtailment andesetint credits of $.7 in 2005. The above table alsudes a post
retirement medical plan termination charge of agpnately $312.5 in 2004.

The periodic pension costs associated with the TFerted Plans were $1.1, $1.6 and $19.0 for thesyeaded
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The amount gfereidic medical benefit costs in 2004 relateddntinuing
operations that related to the Fabricated prodsegsnent was $25.2 with the remaining amounts heliaged to the
Corporate segment.

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost and Caslwend Charges.The following tables present the
components of net periodic pension benefits costhie years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006 Year Ended
December 31 to _ December 31,
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
VEBA:
Service cos $ 6 |$ - $ - $ —
Interest cos 7.9 — — —
Expected return on plan ass (7.9 — — —
.6 — — —
Defined benefit pension plans (including servicsts®f $.5,
$.6, $1.2 and $4.7 5 .8 1.8 12.4
Defined contributions plar 4.C 4.1 7.2 —
Retroactive impact of defined contribution plansgtibn
included in Other operating charges, 4 — 6.€ —
$ 55 | $ 4¢ $15.& $12./
The following tables present the allocation of thebarges:
Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006 Year Ended
December 31 to _ December 31
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Fabricated products segme $ 49 | $ 45 $87 $ 823
Corporate segme! 2 4 3 4.1
Other operating charges, net (Note 4 — 6.€ —
$ 55 | $ 4¢  $15.8 $12./

For all periods presented, substantially all of aéricated products segment’s related chargeis &est of
products sold with the balance being in Sellingnenistrative, research and development and geegpdnse.

The amount related to the retroactive implememntadiothe remaining hourly DB Plans will be paidtire early
part of 2007. The estimated amount to be paidedltd the retroactive implementation of $.8 waswaed at
December 31, 2006 in Accrued salaries, wages, éated expenses. Of the $.8, $.4 was recordedshdafo
products sold and $.4 was recorded in Other opgratiarges, net (Note 10). The amount recordedherO
operating charges, net represents a one time payfrtemamount related to the retroactive implemténeaof the
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Salaried DC Plan was paid in July 2005. In Septer@be5, the Company and the USW amended a prie@eagent
to provide, among other things, for the Compangdwtribute per employee amounts to the Steelworknssion
Trust totaling approximately $.9. The amended agesd was approved by the Bankruptcy Court and suobunt
was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005.

The Successor also paid benefits applicable t&®thdecessor (s&ash and other Compensatiabove).

Employee benefit and incentive plans of the Presiemeare discussed in Note 19.

8. Commitments and Contingencie:

Commitments. The Company and its subsidiaries have a variefpnancial commitments, including purchase
agreements, forward foreign exchange and forwdes$ smntracts (see Note 9), letters of credit amatantees. The
also have agreements to supply alumina to andrchpee aluminum from Anglesey (see Note 3). Dutiregthird
quarter of 2005 and August 2006, orders were plémedertain equipment and/or services intendealigment the
heat treat and aerospace capabilities at the Tomhdacility in Spokane, Washington in respect bich the
Company expects to become obligated for costsyliteetotal in the range of $105.0. ApproximatelypgBof such
costs was incurred in 2005 and 2006. The balanergscted to be incurred primarily in 2007.

Minimum rental commitments under operating leasd3egember 31, 2006, are as follows: years ending
December 31, 2007 — $3.0; 2008 — $2.4; 2009 — $010 — $1.0; 2011 — $.7; thereafter — $.1. Rental
expenses, after excluding rental expenses of disemd operations, were $4.0, $3.6 and $3.1 foy#as ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectivelytaRerpense of discontinued operations was $4.¢hfoyear
ended December 31, 2004.

Environmental ContingenciesThe Company and its subsidiaries are subjectiangber of environmental
laws and regulations, to fines or penalties assefssalleged breaches of the environmental lawd,ta claims and
litigation based upon such laws and regulations.

A substantial portion of the Company’s pre-emergeutaligations, primarily in respect of non-owneddtions,
was resolved by the chapter 11 proceedings (see N9t The remaining environmental accruals amaaily
related to potential solid waste disposal andawil groundwater remediation matters. The followalge presents
the changes in such accruals, which are primardiuded in Long-term liabilities, for the perioein July 1, 2006
through December 31, 2006 (see Note 21 for a thbkepresents the changes in the environmentabalscfor the
period from January 1, 2006 to July 1, 2006 and/tees ended December 31, 2005 and 2004).

July 1, 2006
through
December 31
2006
Balance at July 1, 20( $ 10.4
Additional accruals e
Less expenditure (2.7
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 8.4

These environmental accruals represent the Compasyimate of costs reasonably expected to beraatur
based on presently enacted laws and regulationgntly available facts, existing technology, and €Company’s
assessment of the likely remediation action tcelsert. In the ordinary course, the Company expéetsthese
remediation actions will be taken over the nexesalyears and estimates that expenditures to rget to these
environmental accruals will be approximately $h2007, $1.7 in 2008, $1.1 in 2009, $2.9 in 201d $h0 in
2011 and thereatfter.

76




KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIE S
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

As additional facts are developed and definitiveediation plans and necessary regulatory apprdwals
implementation of remediation are established @riahtive technologies are developed, changesesetand other
factors may result in actual costs exceeding theentienvironmental accruals. The Company beli¢gvasit is
reasonably possible that costs associated witle thegronmental matters may exceed current acchyadgnounts
that could range, in the aggregate, up to an ethbl5.2. As the resolution of these matters ligest to further
regulatory review and approval, no specific asstearan be given as to when the factors upon whatbatantial
portion of this estimate is based can be expectée resolved. However, the Company is currentlyking to
resolve certain of these matters.

Other Environmental Matters.The Company has been working with regulatory auities and performing
studies and remediation pursuant to several comsdats with the State of Washington relating @ lhifstorical use
of oils containing PCBs at our Trentwood facility$pokane, Washington before 1978. During April2Qte
Company was served with a subpoena for documedtianbeen notified by Federal authorities that tre
investigating certain environmental compliance ésswith respect to the Company’s Trentwood facititgpokane,
Washington. The Company undertook its own inteimadstigation of the matter through specially ne¢ai counsel
to ensure that it had all relevant facts regardirentwood’s compliance with applicable environméfgws. In
early 2007, the Company received a letter fronrdigrilatory authorities confirming that their invigation had bee
closed.

Resolution of Contingencies with respect to the B&\s more fully described in Note 19, in resporséhe
January 2004 Debtors’ motion to terminate or suttisthy modify substantially all of the Debtors’ fileed benefit
pension plans, the Bankruptcy Court ruled thatGbenpany had met the factual requirements for distre
termination as to all of the plans at issue. Th&EBBappealed the Bankruptcy Cosrtuling. However, as more fu
discussed in Note 19, while the PBGGppeal was pending, the Company and the PBGGeadacsettiement unc
which the PBGC agreed to assume the Terminated RPéandefined below). The Bankruptcy Court apprahést
settlement in January 2005. The Company believatl slubject to the Plan and the Liquidating Plaomapying
with the terms of the PBGC settlement, all issmegspect of such matters were resolved. Howeespite the
settlement with the PBGC, the intermediate appetaurt proceeded to consider the PBGC's earlipealpand
issued a ruling dated March 31, 2005 affirmingBa@kruptcy Court’s rulings regarding distress teration of all
such plans. In July 2005, the Company and the PBfa€hed an agreement, which was approved by thier@atay
Court in September 2005, under which the PBGC ageet previously approved by the Bankruptcy Cours wa
amended to permit the PBGC to further appeal ttegrimediate appellate court ruling. Under the teofrithe
amended PBGC agreement, if the PBGC were to prevdik further appeal, all aspects of the previoapproved
PBGC agreement would remain the same. On the bdret, under the amended agreement, if the inteateedi
appellate court ruling was upheld on further apptsal PBGC would be required to: (a) approve tis&res
termination of the remaining defined benefit pengitans; and (b) reduce the amount of the admatisé claim to
$11.0 (from $14.0). Under the amended agreemetit,the Company and the PBGC agreed to take upntieefu
appeals. Pending a final resolution of this matter,Company’s settlement with the PBGC remainédillrforce
and effect. Upon consummation of the two separatespof liquidation (collectively, the “Liquidatinglans”) in
December 2005, the $11.0 minimum was paid to the ®B

In July 2006, the United States Third Circuit CanfrAppeals affirmed the intermediate appellatertsuuling
upholding the Bankruptcy Court’s finding that tleetual requirements for distress termination otlafined benefit
plans had been met. Accordingly, four of the figenaining plans were terminated by the PBGC on Déeer29,
2006. These four pension plans, together with #resjpn plans terminated by the PBGC in 2004 an@® 26€e
Note 19) are herein after collectively referredsothe“Terminated Plans'The Terminated Plans were replaced
defined contribution plans as described in NotAs7a result of the July 2006 ruling, the $3.0 ahpously recorded
administrative claim included in the Company’s dpgrbalance sheet was credited to Other operatiagges, net
(see Note 10). The termination of the Terminateth®In 2006 resulted in a non-cash benefit of apprately $4.2
(reflected in Other operating charges, net — sete N0).
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Other Contingencies.The Company and its subsidiaries are involvedhiious other claims, lawsuits, and
other proceedings relating to a wide variety ofteratrelated to past or present operations. Whiéedainties are
inherent in the final outcome of such matters, imspresently impossible to determine the actwets that
ultimately may be incurred, management currentlielies that the resolution of such uncertainties the
incurrence of such costs should not have a mataiadrse effect on the Company’s consolidated &izduposition,
results of operations, or liquidity.

Commitment and contingencies of the Predecessatiscassed in Note 21.

9. Derivative Financial Instruments and Related Hedgig Programs

In conducting its business, the Company uses vaiimatruments, including forward contracts andapsj to
manage the risks arising from fluctuations in alwm prices, energy prices and exchange rates. hgény has
historically entered into derivative transactiorani time to time to limit its exposure resultingrn (1) its
anticipated sales of primary aluminum and fabridatiminum products, net of expected purchase éosteems
that fluctuate with aluminum prices, (2) the enepgige risk from fluctuating prices for natural gased in its
production process, and (3) foreign currency regu@nts with respect to its cash commitments witbigm
subsidiaries and affiliates. As the Company’s hedgictivities are generally designed to lock-ipeacified price or
range of prices, realized gains or losses on theative contracts utilized in the hedging actiegi(excluding the
impact of mark-to-market fluctuations on those cacts discussed below) generally offset at leastriion of any
losses or gains, respectively, on the transactieirsy hedged.

The Company’s share of primary aluminum producfrom Anglesey is approximately 150,000,000 pounds
annually. Because the Company purchases alumin@niglesey at prices linked to primary aluminum psgconly a
portion of the Company’s net revenues associatéu Aviglesey are exposed to price risk. The Comestiynates
the net portion of its share of Anglesey productaposed to primary aluminum price risk to be agnately
100,000,000 pounds annually (before consideringrmetax effects).

As stated above, the Company'’s pricing of fabridatleiminum products is generally intended to latlei
conversion margin (representing the value added ftee fabrication process(es)), and to pass meta psk on to
its customers. However, in certain instances the@my does enter into firm price arrangementsutisnstances,
the Company does have price risk on its anticipptedary aluminum purchase in respect of the custtsrorder.
Total fabricated products shipments during 2004 20@b, the period from January 1, 2006 to July0D62and the
period from July 1, 2006 through December 31, 20@6 contained fixed price terms were (in milliafgpounds)
119.0, 155.0, 103.9 and 96.0, respectively.

During the last three years, the volume of fabedgiroducts shipments with underlying primary atwm
price risk were at least as much as the Compangt exposure to primary aluminum price risk aglésey. As sucl
the Company considers its access to Anglesey ptiotuaverall to be a “natural” hedge against aryrizated
products firm metal-price risk. However, since Yodume of fabricated products shipped under firmags may not
match up on a month-to-month basis with expecteglésey-related primary aluminum shipments, the Camp
may use third party hedging instruments to elimaraty net remaining primary aluminum price expogxisting at
any time.

At December 31, 2006, the fabricated products lassiteld contracts for the delivery of fabricatieadnénum
products that have the effect of creating prick ois anticipated purchases of primary aluminuntiierperiod
2007 — 2011 totaling approximately (in millionsgdunds): 2007: 149.0, 2008: 111.0, 2009: 83.0, 282M and
2011: 77.0.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s mateterivative positions at December 31, 2006:

Notional
Amount of Carrying/
Contracts Market
Commaodity Period (mmlbs) Value
Aluminum —
Option purchase contrac 1/11 througt12/11 48¢ $ 5§
Fixed priced purchase contra 1/07 througt12/1z2 104.¢ 6.1
Fixed priced sales contrac 1/07 througt12/0¢ 58.7 (6.2)
Notional
Amount of Carrying/
Contracts Market
Foreign Currency Period (mm) Value
Pounds Sterlin—
Option sales contrac 1/07 througt12/07 420 $ —
Fixed priced purchase contra 1/07 througt12/07 42.C 9.C
Euro Dollars—
Fixed priced purchase contra 1/07 through 1/0 2.8 A
Notional
Amount of Carrying/
Contracts Market
Energy Period (mmbtu) Value
Natural gas—
Fixed priced purchase contracts 1/07 through 3/C 1,440,000 $ (2.9

(@ As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s exposuircreases in natural gas prices has been sitiadita
limited for approximately 81% of the natural gasghases for January 2007 through March 2007 and
approximately 27% of the natural gas purchaseg\oil 2007 through June 2007 and 14% of natural gas
purchases for July 2007 through September 2

As more fully discussed in Note 1, the Companyenity reflects changes in the market value of @svétive
instruments in Net income (rather than deferringhsgains/losses to the date of the underlying &etitns to which
the related hedges occur). Included in Net incoonghfe period from January 1, 2006 to July 1, 2806 for the
period from July 1, 2006 through December 31, 2086e realized gains (losses) of $1.6 and $(4.6peetively,
and unrealized gains of $6.1 and $9.0, respectivietyuded in Net income for the year ended Decerfithe 2005
were realized gains of $1.0 and unrealized losE84.4.
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10. Other Operating Benefits (Charges), Ne

The income (loss) impact associated with other atpeg benefits (charges), net, after deductingrodiperating
charges, net related to discontinued operation2d64, was as follows:

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006 Year Ended
December 31 to _ December31
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Pension benefit (charge) related to terminatedipandans —
Corporate (Notes 7 and 1 $ 42 |$ — $ — $310.0
Post emergence Chapter 11 — related items — Cdmp(see
below) (4.5) — — —
Resolution of a “pre-emergence” contingency — Coam
(Note 8) 3.C — — —
Charges associated with retroactive portion of riloations to
defined contribution plans upon termination of defi
benefit plans (Note i—
Fabricated Produc (-4 — (6.3 —
Corporate — — (.5) —
Charge related to settlement with United Steelw'kenfair
labor practice allegatior— Corporate (Note 21 — — — (175.0
Settlement charge related to termination of poterment
medical benefits plar— Corporate (see belov — — — (312.5
Other (.1) (.9) (1.2) 4.3
$ 22 | $ (9 $B.0) $(793.9)

The above table excludes other operating benefisr{es), net related to discontinued operatio$956f2 in
2004.

Post-emergence Chapter 11-related items for 2086da primarily professional fees and expensesriedu
after emergence which related directly to the Camyfsareorganization.

In 2004, in connection with the termination of thempany’s postretirement medical plans (see Nqtth@&)
Company recorded a $312.5 non-cash charge, whichigimvas included in Other operating benefits (ghs), net.

11. Segment and Geographical Area Informatior

The Company’s primary line of business is the potida of fabricated aluminum products. In addititme
Company owns a 49% interest in Anglesey, which ommaluminum smelter in Holyhead, Wales.

The Company’s continuing operations are organizeirmanaged by product type and include two opegatin
segments of the aluminum industry and the corp@adenent. The aluminum industry segments includbrifated
products and Primary aluminum. The Fabricated petedgroup sells value-added products such as et t
aluminum sheet and plate, extrusions and forgingsiware used in a wide range of industrial apglces,
including for automotive, aerospace and generaineging end-use applications. The Primary alumitwsiness
unit produces commodity grade products as wellahseradded products such as ingot and
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billet, for which the Company receives a premiunerovormal commodity market prices and conducts imgdg
activities in respect of its exposure to primamynainum price risk. The accounting policies of tegments are the
same as those described in Note 1. Business suitseare evaluated internally by management befoye
allocation of corporate overhead and without arargh for income taxes, interest expense or Otheratipg
charges, net.

Financial information by operating segment, exatgdiliscontinued operations, at December 31, 200@5 2
and 2004 is as follows:

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006 January 1, 2006 Year Ended
through to December 31,
December 31, 200 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Net Sales
Fabricated Produc $ 567.2 | $ 590.¢ $ 939.C $809.:
Primary Aluminum 100.: 98.¢ 150.7 133.1
$ 667.F | $ 689.6  $1,089. 7 $942.
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliai
Primary Aluminum $ 18.2 | $ 110 $ 48 $ 8t
Segment Operating Income (Los
Fabricated Products(. $ 60.t |$ 61z $ 87z $ 33«
Primary Aluminum 10.¢ 12.4 16.4 13.¢
Corporate and Oth (25.5) (20.9) (35.9) (71.9)
Other Operating Benefits (Charges)
Net— Note 10 2.2 (.9) (8.0 (793.2)
$ 48.2 | $ 52.4 $ 59.t  $(817.¢

(1) Operating results for 2006, 2005 and 2004 inclubdOLinventory charges of $25.0, $9.3 and $12.1,
respectively

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006 Year Ended
December 31 to _ December 31
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Depreciation and amortization(
Fabricated Produc $ 52 | $ 9.7 $19.¢ $21.¢
Primary Aluminum — — — 2
Corporate and Oth .3 1 3 3
$ 5 | $ 9.8 $19.¢ $22.:
Capital expenditures:(
Fabricated Produc $ 29.7 | $ 27.z $30.€6 $7.¢
Corporate and Oth 4 .9 4 —
$ 30.1 ($ 28.1 $31.C $ 7.€
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(1) Depreciation and amortization expense excludesegégiron and amortization expense of discontinued
operations of $13.1 in 200

(2) Capital expenditures excludes capital expenditafeiscontinued operations of $3.5 in 20

Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedaddfi
Primary Aluminum

Segment asset

Fabricated Produc
Primary Aluminum
Corporate and Oth

Income taxes paid:(;
Fabricated Produc—

United State!
Canade

Predecessor
December 31 December 31,
2006 2005
$ 18.€ | $ 12.€
$ 4342 | $ 403.¢
87.¢ 62.2
133.2 1,072.¢
$ 655.2 | $ 1,538.¢
Predecessol
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 200€ Year Ended
December 31 to _December 31
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
$ — |$ 2 $— $—
7 1 34 —
$ 713 1.2 $34 $—

(1) Income taxes paid excludes income tax paid by dismoed operations of $18.9 in 2005 and $10.7 42
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Geographical information for net sales, based amtryg of origin, and long-lived assets follows:

Predecessol
Year Ended December 31, 200
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006 Year Ended
December 31 to December 31,
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Net sales to unaffiliated custome
Fabricated Produc—
United State! $ 517.C | $ 532.¢ $ 836.1 $705.7
Canade 50.2 58.1 102.¢ 103.¢
567.2 590.¢ 939.( 809.:
Primary Aluminum—
United State! — — 2.€ —
United Kingdom 100.: 98.¢ 148.1 133.]
100.< 98.¢ 150.7 133.1
$ 6675 | $ 689.¢ $1,089.° $942.¢
Predecessor
December 31 December 31,
2006 2005
Long-lived assets:(1
Fabricated Produc—
United State: $ 155.¢ | $ 204.C
Canads 10.€ 17.€
166.2 221.¢
Primary Aluminum—
United Kingdom 18.€ 12.€
Corporate and Oth«—
United State! 4.1 2.1
$ 188.¢ | $ 236.<

(1) Long-lived assets include Property, plant, and mgeint, net and Investments in and advances to
unconsolidated affiliate:

The aggregate foreign currency gain included iemheining net income was immaterial for the yeardeeh
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Sales to the @wyiglargest fabricated products customer accountestfes
of approximately 18%, 19%, and 18% of total revemu2006, 2005 and 2004. The loss of the custonmeddvhave
a material adverse effect on the Company takenndsote. However, in the Company’s opinion, the tielaship
between the customer and the Company is good andsthof loss of the customer is remote. Expddswere less
than 10% of total revenue during the years endezk®éer 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

12. Subsequent Event:

During the first quarter of 2007, 6,281,180 sharfethe Company’s common stock were sold by existing
stockholders pursuant to a registered offering. Campany did not sell any shares in, and did ncgive any
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proceeds from, the offering. The Union VEBA was of¢he selling stockholders and, after the offgyinow owns
approximately 26.7% of the Company’s outstandireyes of common stock. Approximately 819,280 ofghares
sold by the Union VEBA were previously subject toagreement with the Company that limited the UN&BA' s
ability to sell or otherwise transfer these shakswvever, during the first quarter of 2007 the Un\éEBA received
approval from the Company to include such shardisdroffering.

As more fully explained in Note 7, the 819,280 riettd shares were treated as a reduction of stdd&rs’
equity (at the $24.02 per share reorganizatione)atuthe December 31, 2006 balance sheet sinileasury
stock. As a result of the relief of the restricBpduring the first quarter of 2007: (i) the 819 2Mares previously
considered restricted will be added to VEBA asaéthe approximate $58.19 per share realized bitlien VEBA
(totaling $47.7); (ii) approximately $19.7 of the@mber 31, 2006 reduction in stockholdexgiity associated wi
the restricted shares will be removed and (iii)difeerence between the two amounts (approximakel million)
will increase stockholders’ equity.

Also, during the first quarter of 2007, the Companitled the $5.0 claim by the purchaser of theéor
Gramercy facility and Kaiser Jamaica Bauxite Conydfan a payment of $.1. The settlement was suligeapprove
by the Bankruptcy Court which was received in Fabyit?007. The settlement of this matter will resulthe
recognition of a non-recurring, non-cash benefambroximately $4.8 during the first quarter of 200

PREDECESSOR

13. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeintise Predecessor were prepared on a “going cohcer
basis in accordance with SOP 90-7, and do notdectbe impacts of the Plan including adjustmeritgirg to
recorded asset amounts, the resolution of liabdigubject to compromise, or the cancellation @inkerests of the
Company’s pre-emergence stockholders.

In most instances, but not all, the accountinggiedi of the Predecessor were the same or simithoge of the
Successor. Where accounting policies differed emRtredecessor applied methodologies differentiis thnancial
statement information than that which is used &ppring and presenting Successor financial stateimf@nmation,
discussion has been added to this Report in theoppate section of the Successor notes.

14. Reorganization Proceeding:

Background. Kaiser and 25 of its subsidiaries filed sepavalentary petitions in the Bankruptcy Court for
reorganization under chapter 11 of the Code; theamy and 16 of its subsidiaries (the “Original ey filed in
the first quarter of 2002 and nine additional sdiasies (the “Additional Debtors”) filed in the §ir quarter of 2003.
The Company and its subsidiaries continued to matfagjr businesses in the ordinary course as
debtors-in-possession subject to the control andradtration of the Bankruptcy Court. The Origimaébtors and
the Additional Debtors are collectively referrechierein as the “Debtors”. For purposes of this Refhe term
“Filing Date” means with respect to any Debtor, tta¢e on which such Debtor filed its chapter 11lcpealing.

The Original Debtors found it necessary to file thapter 11 proceedings primarily because of ligwiahd
cash flow problems of the Company and its subsihahat arose in late 2001 and early 2002. Theg2omynwas
facing significant near-term debt maturities ait@etof unusually weak aluminum industry businegsditions,
depressed aluminum prices and a broad economialelewthat was further exacerbated by the events of
September 11, 2001. In addition, the Company hadrhe increasingly burdened by asbestos litigati@hgrowing
legacy obligations for retiree medical and pensiosts. The confluence of these factors creategrtapect of
continuing operating losses and negative cash floggsilting in lower credit ratings and an inakitib access the
capital markets. The chapter 11 proceedings filethb Additional Debtors were commenced, amongratsons,
to protect the assets held by these Debtors agaissible statutory liens that might have arisethtagen enforced
by the PBGC.
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Reorganizing Debtors; Entities Containing the Falted Products and Certain Other Operation®n
February 6, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court enteredrearqthe “Confirmation Order”) confirming the Pla@n
May 11, 2006, the District Court for the Distridt@elaware entered an order affirming the ConfirieaOrder and
adopting the Bankruptcy Court’s findings of factiaonclusions of law regarding confirmation of flan. On
July 6, 2006, the Plan became effective and wastanbally consummated, whereupon the Company esddrgm
chapter 11.

Pursuant to the Plan, on the Effective Date, tieegmnergence ownership interests in the Company were
cancelled without consideration and all materiahpetition claims against the Company and its raingidebtor
subsidiaries, including claims in respect of dglefision and postretirement medical obligations,asfkstos and
other tort liabilities (totaling approximately $4bdlion in the June 30, 2006 consolidated finahstatements), were
resolved as follows:

(a) Claims in Respect of Retiree Medical ObligagidAursuant to settlements reached with represesgat
of hourly and salaried retirees:

» an aggregate of 11,439,900 shares of the Comp&@ymmon Stock were delivered to the Hourly VE
trust and entities that prior to the Effective Datgjuired from the Union VEBA rights to receive a
portion of such shares (see Note

» an aggregate of 1,940,100 shares of Common Stoak dedivered to the Salaried Retiree VEBA trust
and entities that prior to the Effective Date acgdifrom the Salaried Retiree VEBA rights to reeeiv
portion of such shares (see Note 7);

» the Company became obligated to make certain ageninannual cash payments of up to $20.0 annually
to the VEBAs that fluctuate based on earnings,sdgufor certain cash flow items (see Note

(b) Priority Claims and Secured Claims. All preifpen priority claims, pre-petition priority tax @ms and
pre-petition secured claims were paid in full istca

(c) Unsecured Claims. With respect to pre-petitiosecured claims (other than the personal injuayrd
specified below):

« all pre-petition unsecured claims of the PBGC agjdime Company’s Canadian debtor affiliates were
satisfied by the delivery of 2,160,000 shares aih@mwn Stock and $2.5 in cash; ¢

« all pre-petition general unsecured claims agahesiGompany and its remaining debtor subsidiaries,
other than Canadian debtor subsidiaries, includiagns of the PBGC and holders of public debt, were
satisfied by the issuance of 4,460,000 shares ofrian Stock to a third-party disbursing agent, with
such shares to be delivered to the holders of sladims in accordance with the terms of the Plarii{#&o
extent that such claims do not constitute conver@eriaims that have been or will be satisfied wibkh
payments). Of such 4,460,000 shares of Common Sapgkoximately 197,000 shares continue to be
held by the thirdsarty disbursing agent as a reserve pending résolaf disputed claims; to the exter
holder of a disputed claim is not entitled to skaeserved in respect of such claim, such shailebevi
distributed to holders of allowed clain

(d) Personal Injury Claims. Certain trusts (the TRUists”) were formed to receive distributions frime
Company, assume responsibility from the Companyéssonal injury liabilities (including those reting from
alleged pre-petition exposures to asbestos, slichcoal tar pitch volatiles and noise-induced ingar
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loss), and to make payments in respect of suctopalinjury claims. The Company contributed to the
PI Trusts:

« the rights with respect to proceeds associated pathonal injury-related insurance recoveries wWeae
reflected on the Company’s financial statementkiae 30, 2006 as a receivable having a value of
$963.3 (see Note 21

» $13.0in cash, less approximately $.3 advanced twithe Effective Date, which was paid on the
Effective Date;

« the stock of a subsidiary whose primary assetsappsoximately 145 acres of real estate located in
Louisiana and the rights as lessor under a leaseangnt for such real property that produces modest
rental income; an

* 75% of a pre-petition general unsecured claim agane of the Company’s subsidiaries in the amount
of $1.1 hillion entitling certain of the PI Trudtsa share of the 4,460,000 shares of Common Stock
distributed to unsecured claimholde

The PI Trusts assumed all liability and responijbibr the past, pending and future personal yglaims
resulting from alleged pre-petition exposures toeatos, silica and coal tar pitch volatile, anddieg noise induced
hearing loss personal injury claims. As of the Efffee Date, injunctions were entered prohibiting @erson from
pursuing any claims against the Company or anysdfffiliates in respect of such matters.

Cash payments on the Effective Date for priority aacured claims, payments to the PI Trusts, badk a
professional fees totaled approximately $29.0 aackvfunded using existing cash resources.

Liquidating Debtors. As previously disclosed in prior periods, the Qamy generated net cash proceeds of
approximately $686.8 from the sale of its interéstand related to Queensland Alumina Limited (“QGA&nd
Alumina Partners of Jamaica (“Alpart”). The Compannterests in and related to QAL and Alpart wevened by
four of its debtor subsidiaries (the “Liquidatingtssidiaries”) that were subsidiary guarantors af ohthe
Company’s subsidiaries’ senior and senior subotdthaotes. Throughout 2005, the proceeds wereihalgparate
escrow accounts pending distribution to the creslitd the Liquidating Subsidiaries.

On December 20, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court entanegrder confirming the two separate joint plans of
liquidation (the “Liquidating Plans”) for the Ligdiating Subsidiaries. On December 22, 2005, theid#jing Plans
became effective and all restricted cash and @tbsets held on behalf of or by the Liquidating Rliases,
consisting primarily of approximately $686.8 of wash proceeds from the sale of interests in daterkto QAL
and Alpart, were transferred to a trustee for sgbsat distribution to holders of claims against ltiguidating
Subsidiaries in accordance with the terms of thlyidating Plans. In connection with the Liquidatiigns, the
Liguidating Subsidiaries were dissolved and thenporate existence was terminated.

When the Liquidating Plans became effective, suitistidy all amounts were to be paid to (or receitgil the
Company from/to the creditors of the LiquidatingoSidliaries pursuant to the Intercompany SettlerAgnéement
(the “Intercompany Agreement™ther than certain payments of alternative minimarpaid by the Company. T
Company expects to receive any amounts ultimatetgrahined to be due from two of the Liquidating Sidtaries
(Kaiser Alumina Australia Corporation — “KAAC” anidaiser Finance Corporation — “KFC”) under the
liquidating plan for KAAC and KFC (hereafter refedrto as the “KAAC/KFC Plan”) during the first half 2007 in
connection with the completion of its 2005 tax rat(see Note 6). The Intercompany Agreement alsolved
substantially all pre- and post-petition intercompalaims among the Debtors.

The effectiveness of the Liquidating Plans anddissolution of the Liquidating Subsidiaries did mesolve a
dispute between the holders of senior notes antdlukers of senior subordinated notes regardinig thepective
entitlement to certain of the proceeds from thesaly the Liquidating Subsidiaries of interest®#L and Alpart
(the “Senior Note-Sub Note Dispute”). On DecembarZ005, the Bankruptcy Court issued a decision in
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connection with the Senior Note-Sub Note Disputalifg (in favor of the senior notes) that the sesubordinated
notes were contractually subordinate to the sevtes in regard to certain subsidiary guarantaastiularly the
Liguidating Subsidiaries) and that certain partiese not due certain reimbursements. The Bankruptayt's
ruling has been appealed. The Company cannot prédiwever, the ultimate resolution of the SeniotédNSub
Note Dispute on appeal, when any such resolutidoatur, or what impact any such outcome will hawe
distributions to affected note holders under thguidating Plans. However, given the Company’s nomgleted
emergence from the chapter 11, the Company dodsavetany continuing liability in respect of theni Note-
Sub Note Dispute.

Classification of Liabilities as “Liabilities Notubject to Compromise” Versus “Liabilities Subjeot t
Compromise.” Liabilities not subject to compromise include thBowing:

(1) liabilities incurred after the date each entilyd for reorganization (i.e., its Filing Date);

(2) pre-Filing Date liabilities that were expectedoe paid in full, including priority tax and enogke
claims and certain environmental liabilities; and

(3) pre-Filing Date liabilities that were approvied payment by the Bankruptcy Court and that were
expected to be paid (in advance of a plan of ravrg#ion) over the next twelve-month period in tindinary
course of business, including certain employededldgems (salaries, vacation and medical bengéitalms
subject to a currently existing collective bargaghagreements, and certain postretirement medichbther
costs associated with retirees.

Liabilities subject to compromise refer to all atipee-Filing Date liabilities of the Debtors.

The amounts subject to compromise at June 30, @0@®ecember 31, 2005 consisted of the followiam4:

Predecessc Predecessor
June 30, December 31

2006(1) 2005(1)
Accrued postretirement medical obligati $ 1,005.¢ $ 1,017
Accrued asbestos and certain other personal itiplilities (Note 21) 1,115.( 1,115.(
Assigned intercompany claims for benefit of cerizieditors 1,131t 1,131.f
Debt 847.¢ 847.€
Accrued pension benefi 625.5 626.2
Unfair labor practice settlement (Note : 175.( 175.(
Accounts payabl 31.¢ 29.¢
Accrued interes 44.7 447
Accrued environmental liabilities (Note 2 29.2 30.7
Other accrued liabilitie 36.7 37.2
Proceeds from sale of commodity intere (654.€) (654.6)

$ 4388.( $ 4,400.:

(1) The above amounts exclude $73.5 at June 30, 2aD66&85 at December 31, 2005 of liabilities subfect
compromise related to discontinued operations. &xiprately $42.1 of the excluded amounts at Jun€30¢
and December 31, 2005 relate to a claim settl¢ddriourth quarter of 2005 (see Note 15). The lwdaof the
amounts at June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005pnierarily accounts payabl
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Reorganization Items.Reorganization items are expense or income itbatsvere incurred or realized by the
Company because it was in reorganization. Thesgsitaclude, but are not limited to, professionaisfand similar
types of expenses incurred directly related tar#tmeganization proceedings, loss accruals or gaihgsses resultir
from activities of the reorganization process, amdrest earned on cash accumulated by the Deltaause they
were not paying their pre-Filing Date liabilitigsor the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
reorganization items were as follows:

Predecessor
Year Ended December 31, 2006

July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006
Year Ended
December 31 to December 31
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Gain on plan implementation and fresh s $ — |$ (3,110.9) $ — $ —
Professional fee — 21.2 35.2 39.C
Interest incom — (1.4 2.0 (.8)
Assigned intercompany claims for benefit of certain
creditors — — 1,131t —
Other — 2 (2.5) .8
$ — | $ (3,090.) $1,162..  $39.C

At June 30, 2006, approximately $15.0 of professidees were accrued (included in Other accrudditi@s)
pending Bankruptcy Court approval to pay such artmukpproximately $2.0 of the professional fees hatlbeen
paid as of December 31, 2006. It is anticipated Iégal and certain other costs related to the Gomis emergence
from chapter 11 will continue for a period of tiratter the Effective Date and such costs, when necljwill be
included in Selling, administrative, research aadadopment, and general expenses. Additionallyacer
professionals were contractually due certain “ssgtéees due upon the Company’s emergence fromehap and
Bankruptcy Court approval. Approximately $5.0 o€samounts were borne by the Company and werededdry
the Predecessor in connection with emergence ast tart accounting. The $5.0 was paid in JarRG0y.

Financial Information. SOP 90-7 requires separate disclosure of Debtatsion-Debtors amounts.
Substantially all of the financial information ae&mber 31, 2005 and for the two years then emiduldied in the
consolidated financial statements relates to thet@e or non-Debtors discontinued operations. Assalt,
condensed combined balance sheet information aidheDebtor subsidiaries included in the consoéiddinancial
statements as of December 31, 2005 and condensdureE income statement and cash flows informaticthe
non-Debtor subsidiaries for the two years then dngl@ot presented because such amounts weregnificant.

15. Discontinued Operations

As part of the Company’s plan to divest certaiit®tommodity assets, as more fully discussed iteN@, the
Company sold its interests in and related to Algheg Company’s Gramercy, Louisiana alumina refiner
(“Gramercy”), Kaiser Jamaica Bauxite Company (“KJB®olta Aluminium Company Limited (“Valco”), anthe
Company’s Mead, Washington aluminum smelter anthterelated property (the “Mead Facility”) in 2084d
QAL in April 2005. All of the foregoing commoditysaets are collectively referred to as the “Comnyolditerests”.
In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountandards No. 144ccounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Lon-Lived Asset§'SFAS No. 144"), the assets, liabilities, opergtiesults and gains from sale of the
Commaodity Interests have been reported as disagedimperations in the accompanying financial statem
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The following recaps key information in respectted disposition of commodity interests.

On April 1, 2005, the Company sold its interestarinl related to QAL for net cash proceeds totaling
approximately $401.4. The buyer also assumed tmep@ay’s obligations for approximately $60.0 of
QAL debt and the Company'’s obligation to pay itsgmrtionate share (20%) of debt, operating expeasds
certain other costs of QAL. In connection with #ade, the Company also paid a termination fee afth1
After considering transaction costs (including tlemination fee and a $7.7 deferred charge assakvith a
back-up bid fee), the transaction resulted in a,gagt of estimated income tax of $7.9, of appratity
$366.2. As described in Note 14, a substantial mgjof the proceeds from the sale of the Company’s
interests in and related to QAL were held in escfomthe benefit of the creditors under the liquidg trust
for the KAAC/KFC Plan until the KAAC/KFC Plan wasmfirmed by the Bankruptcy Court and became
effective in December 200

On July 1, 2004, with Bankruptcy Court approvag tompany completed the sale of its interests ¢h an
related to Alpart for $315.0. The transaction reehiin a pre-tax gain of approximately $101.6. étiag the
cash proceeds were approximately $14.5 of paymmeatke by the Company to fund the prepayment of the
Company’s share of the Alpart-related debt and $8tBansaction-related costs. The balance of theqeds
were held in escrow primarily for the benefit ofteén creditors as provided in the Alpart Jamaia |

(“AJdI") and Kaiser Jamaica Corporation (“KJC"), tvab the Companys subsidiaries, joint plan of liquidatic
(the “AJI/KJC Plan”). A net benefit of approximate$1.6 was recorded in December 2004 in respettteof
Alpart-related purchase price adjustments. Such amoumésaeiected during the second quarter of 2(

In October 2004, with Bankruptcy Court approvaé @ompany sold its interests in and related to the
Gramercy facility and KIBC. Net proceeds from take svere approximately $23.0. The transaction was
completed at an amount approximating its remaibiogk value (after a 2003 non-cash impairment chafge
approximately $368.0). A substantial portion of fieceeds was used to satisfy transaction relats$ and
obligations.

In October 2004, with Bankruptcy Court approvak @ompany completed the sale of its interests ¢h an
related to Valco with the Government of Ghana (“GpGhe Company collected $18.0 ($13.0 in

October 2004 and $5.0 in December 2003), The Coynfrarded certain end of service benefits of Valco
employees (totaling approximately $9.8). As a restlclosing there was no material gain or loss on
disposition. However, in the first quarter of 20€# Company had recorded a non-cash impairmengeha
of $31.8 to reduce the carrying value of its inéésen and related to Valco to the amount of theeeted
proceed:

In June 2004, with Bankruptcy Court approval, tlempany completed the sale of the Mead Facility for
approximately $7.4 plus assumption of certain stated liabilities. The sale resulted in net pesteof
approximately $6.2 and a pre-tax gain of approxalye$23.4. The pre-tax gain includes the impaatifthe
sale of certain non-operating land in the firstrigraof 2004 that was adjacent to the Mead Facilibye pre-
tax gain on the sale of this property had beenrdedgpending the finalization of the sale of theadé-acility
and transfer of the site-related liabilities. Pred® from the sale of the Mead Facility totalingd®dere held
in escrow as Restricted proceeds from sale of caditijnmterests until the value of the secured clainthe
holders of the 7.6% solid waste disposal revenuel®avas determined by the Bankruptcy Court. The
remaining obligations were ultimately resolved amgection with the Plai

Under SFAS No. 144, only those assets, liabilitied operating results that are being sold or disroad are

treated as “discontinued operations”. In the cdshensale of Gramercy and the Mead Facility, thedos did not
assume such items as accrued workers compengaiosion or postretirement benefit obligations spext of the
former employees of these facilities. As discugsede fully in Note 14, these retained obligatiorervresolved in
the context of the Plan.
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As previously disclosed during the fourth quarte@05, the official committee of unsecured credit@ihe
“UCC") negotiated a settlement with a third pattathad asserted an approximate $67.0 claim foadamagainst
Kaiser Bauxite Company (“KBC") for rejection of alxite supply agreement. Pursuant to the settleraering
other things, the Company agreed to (a) allow hirel fparty an unsecured pre-petition claim in theant of $42.1,
(b) substantively consolidate KBC with certain loé tother debtors solely for the purpose of tredtiag claim, and
any other pre-petition claim of KBC, under the Péand (c) modify the Plan to implement the settletmin
consideration of the settlement, the third pantgoag other things, agreed to not object to the.Plae settlement
was approved by the Bankruptcy Court in Januanb20@ the Company recorded a charge of $42.1 ifotitéh
quarter of 2005 in Discontinued operations ancecdfld an increase in Discontinued operations itasilsubject to
compromise by the same amount.

The carrying amounts of the liabilities in respefcthe Companyg interest in and related to the sold Commc
Interests as of December 31, 2005 are shown sepaimathe accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheeteme
statement information in respect of the Companyterest in and related to the sold Commodity Irstisréor the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004cwe@d in income from discontinued operations wafdows:

Predecesso
Year Ended December 31, 2006
July 1, 2006
through January 1, 2006
Year Ended
December 31 to December 31,
2006 July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Net sales $ — |$ —  $42¢ $546.C
Operating income (los! — (3.2 (20.0 (6.2
Gain on sale of commodity intere: — — 366.2 126.€
Income before income taxes and minority inter — 4.3 364.1 122.t
Net income — 4.3 363.7 121.2

During the second quarter of 2006, the Companyrdetba $5.0 charge as a result of an agreemenebastthe
Company and the Bonneville Power Administration®/) related to a rejected electric power contract
(see Note 21). This amount is included in Discardithoperations for the period from January 1, 2008ly 1,
2006.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company reedia $7.5 payment from an insurer in settlemectedfin
residual claims the Company had in respect of & 20€ident at its Gramercy, Louisiana alumina refin(which
was sold in 2004). This amount is included in Diggoued operations for the period from January0D&2to July 1,
2006.

Operating activity during the year ended Decemtle2B05 consisted almost exclusively of the Comfmany
interests in and related to QAL, which was soldpril 2005, and related hedging activity. Operatawivities
during the year ended December 31, 2004 consisteasaexclusively of the Company’s investmentsnd aelated
to QAL and Alpart, which was sold in July 2004, aethted hedging activity. Operating activitie2d04 to a less:
degree included the Company’s investments in aiadiedto Gramercy and the Mead facility.

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

In the ordinary course of business, the Company soh-operating real estate and certain miscellameo
equipment for total proceeds of approximately $Ilese transactions resulted in pre-tax gains & @dcluded in
Other income (expense) — see Note 1). Also, see Notfor a recap of the disposition of Commoditefasts
during 2005 and 2004.
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17. Debt and Credit Facilities

On February 1, 2006, and again on May 11, 2006BHr&kruptcy Court approved amendments to the
Company’s Secured Super-Priority Debtor-In-PossesRevolving Credit and Guaranty Agreement (theP'DI
Facility”) extending its expiration date ultimatdly the earlier of the Company’s emergence fronptaral 1 or
August 31, 2006. The DIP Facility terminated on Hifective Date.

Under the DIP Facility, which provided for a sealreevolving line of credit, the Company and certai its
subsidiaries were able to borrow amounts by mefarevolving credit advances and to have issueéref credit
(up to $60.0) in an aggregate amount equal toetbsel of $200.0 or a borrowing base comprisedigibé account
receivable, eligible inventory and certain eligibt@chinery, equipment and real estate, reduceetigio reserves,
as defined in the DIP Facility agreement. At JuBe2®06, there were no outstanding borrowings utigebDIP
Facility and there were outstanding letters of itretlapproximately $17.7 (which on the Effectivate were
converted to outstanding letters of credit underRievolving Credit Facility).

The DIP Facility, which was implemented during finst quarter of 2005, replaced a p@etition credit facility
(the “Replaced Facility”) that the Company and ohés subsidiaries entered into on February 19220 he
Replaced Facility was amended a number of timesglits term as a result of, among other thingstganization
transactions, including disposition of the Compangbmmodity Interests.

During the first quarter of 2005, the Company déedscash of $13.3 as collateral for the Replacatllity’s
letters of credit and deposited approximately $if.@ollateral with the Replaced Facilisylenders until certain oth
banking arrangements were terminated. As of Jun2@B, all of the collateral for the Replaced kats letters of
credit and the collateral for other certain bankamgingements (of which $1.5 was received durir@60ad been
refunded to the Company.

18. Income Tax Matters

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, the indarprovision for continuing operations includefbeeign
income tax provision of approximately $7.0. Theome tax provision for continuing operations relgpednarily to
foreign income taxes. The six months ended Jun2@5 include an approximate $1.0 benefit assatiatth a
U.S. income tax refund. While the Company considé¢he July 2006 emergence from chapter 11 for mepof
estimating impacts on the effective tax rate, thenBany’s provisions for income taxes as of June2806 did not
include any direct impacts from the Company’s erapog from chapter 11. Such impacts are reflectpaiiimds
following emergence as more fully discussed in Note

In connection with the sale of the Company’s irg&sén and related to QAL, the Company made paysnent
totaling approximately $8.5 for AMT in the Uniteda®es (approximately $8.0 of Federal AMT and appnaxely
$.5 of state AMT). Such payments were made in dloethh quarter of 2005. Upon completion of the Conys
2005 Federal income tax return, the Company detemhtihat approximately $1.0 of AMT was overpaid @
refundable. The Company applied for the refunch@2005 Federal income tax return filed in Septer@gbé6 and
received the refund in October 2006. The Compatig\es that remainder of the Federal AMT amountid pa
respect of the sale of interests should, in accmelavith the Intercompany Agreement, be reimbutsdte
Company from the funds held by the liquidating teesfor the KAAC/KFC Plan. A claim was made in Jary2007
for $7.2. However, at this point, as this has pdie agreed, the Company has not recorded a rbdeifca the
amount. The Company expects to resolve the maittiwei second quarter of 2007.

19. Employee Benefit and Incentive Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries historically pdedi (a) postretirement health care and life instedenefits
to eligible retired employees and their dependants(b) pension benefit payments to retirementspl8abstantiall
all employees became eligible for health care dadrisurance benefits if they reached retiremeet &hile still
working for the Company or its subsidiaries. Therpany did not fund the liability for these
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benefits, which were expected to be paid out ofi ggenerated by operations. The Company reservertpthte
subject to applicable collective bargaining agreasieo amend or terminate these benefits. Retineplans were
generally non-contributory for salaried and howyployees and generally provided for benefits basefdrmulas
which considered such items as length of serviceeamnings during years of service.

In January 2004, the Company filed motions withBlaakruptcy Court to terminate or substantially mfypod
postretirement medical obligations for both sath@ed certain hourly employees and for the distessrmination
of substantially all domestic hourly pension plafise Company subsequently concluded agreementsawith
committee appointed in the Company’s reorganizgpi@ceedings that represented salaried employekaraan
representatives that represented the vast mapfritye Company’s hourly employees. The agreementaged for
the termination of existing salaried and hourlytpetirement medical benefit plans, and the ternomadf existing
hourly pension plans. Under the agreements, sdland hourly retirees were provided an opportufaitycontinued
medical coverage through COBRA or the VEBAs anivactalaried and hourly employees were provided ait
opportunity to participate in one or more replacetreension plans and/or defined contribution pldiee
agreements were approved by the Bankruptcy Coutrtwbre subject to certain conditions, includingiBaiptcy
Court approval of the Intercompany Agreement inranfacceptable to the Debtors and UCC.

On June 1, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court entered derpsubject to certain conditions including final
Bankruptcy Court approval of the Intercompany Agneat, authorizing the Company to terminate its q@disemen
medical plans as of May 31, 2004 and to make advaagments to the VEBAs. As previously disclosehding
the resolution of all contingencies in respecthaf termination of the existing postretirement madbenefit plan,
during the period June 1, 2004 through Decembe2@04, the Company continued to accrue costs baséke
existing plan and treated the VEBA contribution@asduction of its liability under the plan. Hoveeybecause the
Intercompany Agreement was approved in Februar 20@ all other contingencies had already beentinet,
Company determined that the existing postretiremeadical plan should be treated as terminated as of
December 31, 2004.

The PBGC assumed responsibility for the Comparhyrae largest pension plans, which representedasie v
majority of the Company’s net pension obligatioaliding the Company’s Salaried Employees RetirerRéam (in
December 2003), the Inactive Pension Plan (in 2084) and the Kaiser Aluminum Pension Plan (in Saper
2004), collectively referred to as the TerminatéahB (see Note 8). The PBGC’s assumption of thenirexted
Plans resulted in the Company recognizing non-pasision charges of approximately $121.2 in 2003%81®.0 in
2004. Pursuant to the agreement with the PBGQOCtmpany and the PBGC agreed, among other thingss, th
(a) the Company would continue to sponsor the Calyipaemaining pension plans (which primarily ameéspect
of hourly employees at four Fabricated productdifess) and paid approximately $5.0 minimum funglin
contribution for these plans in March 2005; (b) BH&GC would have an allowed post-petition admiatste claim
of $14.0, which was expected to be paid upon tmswmmation of a plan of reorganization for the Campor the
consummation of the KAAC/KFC Plan, whichever caimngt;fand (c) the PBGC would have allowed pre-fatit
unsecured claims in respect of the Terminated Riatiee amount of $616.0, which would be resolvethie
Company’s plan or plans of reorganization provitteat the PBGC's cash recovery from proceeds oCihvmpanys
sale of its interests in and related to Alpart &#d_ was limited to 32% of the net proceeds distidinle to holders
of the Company’s senior notes, senior subordinatgds and the PBGC. However, certain contingerariese in
respect of the settlement with the PBGC which wdtienately resolved in the Company’s favor. Seed\®t—
Resolution of Contingencies with respect to the BE

Cash Flow and Charges

Domestic Plans. During the first three years of the chapter 1dcpedings, the Company did not make any
further significant contributions to any of its destic pension plans. However, as discussed abox@nimection
with the PBGC settlement agreement, which was agarbdy the Bankruptcy Court in January 2005, thengany
paid approximately $5.0 in March 2005 and approxétye$1.0 in July 2005 in respect of minimum furglin
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contributions for retained pension plans and paitl&in respect of post-petition administrativarasof the PBGC
when the KAAC/KFC Plan became effective in Decent@d5. An additional $3.0 was pending the resotutib
the ongoing litigation with the PBGC (see NoteA&)y other payments to the PBGC were limited to vecies
under the Liquidating Plans and the Plan.

Prior to the Effective Date, the Company agreechéde the following contributions to the VEBAS:

a) an amount not to exceed $36.0 and payable orgeme from the chapter 11 proceedings so lonbe
Company’s liquidity (i.e., cash plus borrowing daahility) was at least $50.0 after considering spagments;
and

b) advances of $3.1 in June 2004 and $1.9 per nmbatkafter until the Company emerged from the
chapter 11 proceedings. Any advances made pursuaath agreement constitute a credit toward ti6e0$3
maximum contribution due upon emergence.

In October 2004, the Company entered into an amentlto the USW agreement (see Note 21) to pay an
additional $1.0 to the VEBAs in excess of the aradly agreed $36.0 contribution described aboveckvbamount
was paid in March 2005. Under the terms of the aledragreement, the Company was required to continomake
the monthly VEBA contributions as long as it rengadnn chapter 11, even if the sum of such montalynpents
exceeded the $37.0 maximum amount discussed abbgenonthly amounts paid during the chapter 11g8®86n
excess of the $37.0 limit will offset future varalzontribution requirements after emergence. Theraled
agreement was approved by the Bankruptcy Courebrirary 2005. VEBA-related payments prior to thie&fve
Date totaled approximately $49.7. As a result, $12available to the Company to offset future VE8ztribution:
of the Successor (see Note 7).

Total charges associated with the VEBAs in 2006rgn the Effective Date and the year ended Dece®be
2005 were $11.4 and $23.8, respectively. These ataaovere reflected as a reduction of Liabilitiebjeat to
compromise.

Key Employee Retention PlarlJnder the KERP, approved by the Bankruptcy CouBeptember 2002,
financial incentives were provided to retain certeey employees during the chapter 11 proceediFiys.
KERP included six key elements: a retention plagg\eerance plan, a change in control plan, a cdiaplancentive
plan, the continuation for certain participantsanfexisting SERP and a long-term incentive plardedithe KERP:

« Pursuant to the retention plan, retention paymeete paid between September 2002 and March 31, 2004
except that 50% of the amounts payable to certaiios officers were withheld until the Company’s
emergence from chapter 11 proceedings or as otse@greed pursuant to the KERP (see Not

» The severance and change in control plans gengnailyided for severance payments of between nine
months and three years of salary and certain ksndépending on the facts and circumstances anlevke|
of employee involved (see Note

* The completion incentive plan lapsed without anyanis being due

« The SERP generally provided additional non-qualifiension benefits for certain active employedhet
time that the KERP was approved, who would sufflasa of benefits based on Internal Revenue Code
limitations, so long as such employees were nasegiently terminated for cause or voluntarily temted
their employment prior to reaching their retiremagé. The Successor’s board of directors termintaied
SERP and funded payments totaling $2.3. Such aradwaat been fully accrued by the Predecessor arel wer
included in the Succes¢s opening balance she

* The long-term incentive plan generally providedifarentive awards to key employees based on ansannu
cost reduction target. Payment of such long-teranitive awards generally will be made: (a) 50% upon
emergence and (b) 50% one year from the date theoBeemerged from the chapter 11 proceedings. At
December 31, 2006, approximately $3.4 which wasipusly accrued by the Predecessor remaine
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current liabilities in respect of the KERP longrteincentive plan which will be paid in February Zagy the
Successol

Foreign Plans. Contributions to foreign pension plans (excludingse that are considered part of discontir
operations — see Note 15) were nominal.

20. Minority Interests

Kaiser Aluminum & Chemical Corporation, one of tiempany’s subsidiaries, had four series of $100 par
value Cumulative Convertible Preference Stock (GPoeference Stock”) outstanding with annual dinitie
requirements of between'4g% and 43/ 4%. At December 31, 2005, outstanding shares of $¥8frence Stock
were 8,669. In accordance with the Code and DIRifgathe Company was not permitted to repurchaiseedeem
any of its stock. Further, the equity interestshef holders of the $100 Preference Stock were dadogithout
consideration pursuant to the Plan.

21. Commitments and Contingencie:

Impact of Reorganization Proceedingfuring the chapter 11 proceedings, substantélipending litigation,
except certain environmental claims and litigatiagainst the Debtors was stayed. Generally, claigasnst a
Debtor arising from actions or omissions priorttoRiling Date were resolved pursuant to the Plan.

Environmental ContingenciesThe Company and one of its subsidiaries wereestiltp a number of
environmental laws and regulations, to fines orgitéas assessed for alleged breaches of the emvaotal laws,
and to claims and litigation based upon such lavgsragulations. The Company was also subject tanzber of
claims under the Comprehensive Environmental Resddompensation and Liability Act of 1980, as adeehby
the Superfund Amendments Reauthorization Act 06198ERCLA”), and, along with certain other ent#jevas
named as a potentially responsible party for reaiedists at certain third-party sites listed onXfagional Priorities
List under CERCLA.

Based on the Company’s evaluation of these and ethgronmental matters, the Company established an
environmental accrual, primarily related to potahsiolid waste disposal and soil and ground waterediation
matters. The following table presents the changasich accruals, which are primarily included imggerm
liabilities, for the period from January 1, 2006Jtdy 1, 2006 and the years ended December 31, 2002004

January 1, 200¢€ Year Ended
to December 31,
July 1, 2006 2005 2004
Balance at beginning of peric $ 46.8 $58.: $82t
Additional accrual 3 .5 8.4
Less expenditure (7.0 (12.9) (32.€)
Less amounts resolved in connection with the | (29.9 — —
Balance at end of peric $ 104 $46.E $58.C

As of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 $29.4304, respectively, of the environmental accvad
included in Liabilities subject to compromise ($¢ate 14). These amounts related to non-owned lmesitind were
resolved as part of the Plan.

Asbestos and Certain Other Personal Injury Clainfhe Company was one of many defendants in a nuaf
lawsuits, some of which involved claims of multiplersons, in which the plaintiffs allege that ciertaf their
injuries were caused by, among other things, exjeasuasbestos or exposure to products contairibgsios
produced or sold by the Company or as a resulimpl@yment or association with the Company. The latss
generally related to products the Company had aldtfer more than 20 years. As of the initial FjiDate,
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approximately 112,000 asbestos-related claims peneling. The Company also previously discloseddgetin
other personal injury claims had been filed in ex$f alleged pre-Filing Date exposure to silind aoal tar pitch
volatiles (approximately 3,900 claims and 300 climnespectively).

Due to the reorganization proceedings, holdersbéstos, silica and coal tar pitch volatile claimese stayed
from continuing to prosecute pending litigation drain commencing new lawsuits against the Debtssa result,
the Company did not make any asbestos paymentgher payments) during the pendency of the reorgdion
proceedings. However, the Company continued touguirssurance collections in respect of asbesteder|
amounts paid prior to its Filing Date and, as déescr below, to negotiate insurance settlementganskecute
certain actions to clarify policy interpretatiomsrespect of such coverage.

While a formal estimation process was never coragdleghe Company believed it had obtained sufficient
information to project a range of likely asbestod ather tort-related costs. The Company estiméiatits total
liability for asbestos, silica and coal tar pitablatile personal injury claims was expected to esvieen
approximately $1,100.0 and $2,400.0. However, asipusly disclosed, the Company did not think thtaer
constituents would necessarily agree with this casge. In particular, the Company was aware thaain informal
assertions made by representatives for the asbegitoa and coal tar pitch volatiles claimantsgesfed that the
actual liability might exceed, perhaps significgnthe top end of the Company’s expected rangeléNhe
Company could not reasonably predict what the altéramount of such claims might be determined tahee
Company believed that the minimum end of the ramgg both probable and reasonably estimatable. Aougly,
the Company reflected an accrued liability of $5,01for the minimum end of the expected range oABuch
amounts (which were included in Liabilities subjectompromise) were resolved as a part of the @lea
Note 14).

As previously disclosed, the Company believed i imsurance coverage available that would recover a
substantial portion of its asbestos-related céttsvever, the timing and amount of future insurarezmveries were
dependent on the resolution of disputes regardivgrage under certain of the applicable insuraotieips through
the process of negotiations or further litigatidhe Company previously stated that it believed shidstantial
recoveries from the insurance carriers were pr@babt had estimated the amount of remaining solusatance
coverage (before considering the contingent setifgragreements discussed below) to be in the rainge
$1,400.0 — $1,500.0. Further, the Company previodsiclosed that, assuming that actual asbest@s and coal
tar pitch volatile costs were to be the $1,115.@am accrued (as discussed above) the Companyéeitaat it
would be able to recover from insurers amountditafapproximately $965.0, which amount was refielcas
“Personal injury-related insurance recoveries madge” (reduced to $963.3 at June 30, 2006 duelti@io
subsequent recoveries).

Throughout the reorganization process, the Companiinued its efforts with insurers to make cldwsr t
amount of insurance coverage expected to be alailalbespect of asbestos, silica and coal tahgtersonal injury
claims. Part of such efforts focused on certaigdiion in San Francisco Superior Court. The Comfsaefforts in
this regard were also intended to provide certaastyo the amounts available to the Pl Trusts amddolve certain
appeals by insurers to the confirmation order speet of the Plan.

During the latter half of 2005 and the first hallf2006, the Company entered into conditional seitet
agreements with insurers (all of which were appdaye the Bankruptcy Court) under which the insusgggeed (in
aggregate) to pay approximately $1,246.0 in respestibstantially all coverage under certain peldiaving a
combined face value of approximately $1,460.0. Mafthe agreements provided for multi-year payauns for
some of the settlement amounts to be accessemscladuld have to be made against the PI Trustsatbaltd
aggregate well in excess of the approximate $101l&hility amount reflected by the Company at J30e2006.
There are no remaining policies that are expedsfkeld any material amounts for the benefit of @@mpany or th
Pl Trusts.
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The Company did not provide any accounting recagmitor the conditional settlement agreements @ th
June 30, 2006 financial statements given: (1) tralitional nature of the settlements; (2) the fhat, if the Plan di
not become effective as of June 30, 2006, the Cagpanterests with respect to the insurance pediciovered by
the agreements were not impaired in any way; apth€8Company believed that collection of the agpnate
$963.3 amount of Personal injury-related insuraecevery receivable was probable even if the coonit
agreements were ultimately approved.

Hearing Loss Claims.During February 2004, the Company reached segetiht in principle in respect of 400
claims, which alleged that certain individuals where employees of the Company, principally at difgc
previously owned and operated by KACC in Louisiandfered hearing loss in connection with their &spment.
Under the terms of the settlement, the claimantgw#owed claims totaling up to $15.8 (included.iabilities
subject to compromise, Other accrued liabilitiesee Note 14). At emergence, these claims werefénaed to the
PI Trusts along with certain rights against certagurance policies of the Company. While the Comydaelieved
that the insurance policies were of value, no artowere reflected in the Compansyfinancial statements in resp
of such policies as the Company could not withigivel of certainty necessary determine the amofirdaoveries
that were probable.

During the chapter 11 proceedings, the Companywedapproximately 3,200 additional proofs of claim
alleging pre-petition injury due to noise induceghhing loss. It was never determined how manynyf af such
claims had merit or at what level such claims mugylrlify within the parameters established by theva-
referenced settlement in principle for the 400rmkiHowever, under the Plan all such claims wenesfierred, alor
with certain rights against certain insurance pesicto the Pl Trusts and resolved in that manaitier than being
settled prior to the Company’s emergence from tiapter 11 proceedings.

Labor Matters. In January 2004, as part of its settlement withWSW with respect to pension and retiree
medical benefits, the Company and the USW agreedttte a case pending before the National LabtatiRas
Board in respect of certain unfair labor practitéL(P”) claims made by the USW in connection witi 208
USW strike and subsequent lock-out by the Complnger the terms of the agreement, solely for thpgaes of
determining distributions in connection with themganization, an unsecured pre-petition claim éamount of
$175.0 was allowed. Also, the Company agreed tpaposition of neutrality regarding the unioniaatof any
employees of the Company. The settlement was apgrby the Bankruptcy Court in February 2005. Then@any
recorded a $175.0 non-cash charge in the fourthteyuaf 2004 associated with the ULP settlemene @bligations
in respect of the ULP claim were resolved on thedive Date.

Pacific Northwest Power MattersAs a part of the reorganization process, the Gompejected a contract
with the BPA that provided power to fully operate fTrentwood facility, as well as approximately 468the
combined capacity of the Company’s former Mead Bacbma aluminum smelting operations, which had been
curtailed since the last half of 2000. The BPAdike proof of claim for approximately $75.0 in coatien with the
contract rejection. In June 2006, the Bankruptcyr€Capproved an agreement between the Companyhand t
BPA which resolved the claim by granting the BPAuaisecured preetition claim totaling approximately $6.1 (i.
$5.0 in addition to $1.1 of previously accrued pedition accounts payable). The Company recordeshacash
charge for the incremental $5.0 amount in the sgécprarter of 2005 (in Discontinued operations —Nete 15).
This claim was resolved as a part of the Plan asdno impact on the Successor.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

Quarter Ended
December 31,

Predecessor
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended July 1 through
March 31, June 30, July 1, | September 30
(In millions of dollars, except share amounts)
2006
Net sales $ 336.5 % 353t % — $ 331.¢
Operating income (los! 44.C 8.4 — 21.7
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 31.1 .5 3,105.41) 14.c
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations 7.3 (3.0 — —
Net income (loss 38.4 (2.5) 3,105. 14.2
Earnings per sha— Basic: (4)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations .39 .01 38.9¢ 72
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations .0¢ (.04) — —
Net income (loss A8 (.03  38.9¢ 72
Earnings per share Biluted (same ¢
basic for Predecesso
Income from continuing operatiol 72
Income from discontinued operatic —
Net income(loss 72
Common stock market price:(
High .07 .2€ — 44.5C
Low .03 .04 — 37.5(
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Predecessor

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30

September 3C December 3.

2005
Net sales $ 281 $262¢ % 271 $
Operating income (los! 15.1 10.7 19.7
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 2.4 (2.5 8.€
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 10.€  368.33) 8.C
Cumulative effect on years prior to 2005 of adaptecounting

for conditional asset retirement obligatic 4.7 — —
Net income (loss 8.3 365.¢ 16.€
Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operatic .03 (.03 A1
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic A3 4.6z AC
Loss from cumulative effect on years prior to 2@@%dopting

accounting for conditional asset retirement oblays (.0€) —
Net income (loss A0 4.5¢ 21
Common stock market price:(
High A2 .0¢ .07
Low .05 .0€ .01

273.
14.2
(1,121.)(2)
(23.2)

(1,144.)
(14.09)
(.29)
(14.30

.08
.03

(1) Includes a non-cash gain of $3,110.3 related tantipdementation of the Plan and application ofliretart

accounting (see Note 14 of Notes to Consolidatedrigial Statements

(2) Includes a non-cash reorganization charge of $15i@lated to assignment (for the purposes of oeténg
distribution under the KAAC/KFC Plan) of the valokan intercompany claim to certain third partyditers

(see Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financigk&tants)

(3) Includes a gain of approximately $366.2 in respéthe sale of the Company’s interests in and eellab

QAL.

(4) Earnings (loss) per share and market price for 20@bthe first two quarters of 2006 may not be riregunl
because the equity interests of the Company’siegistockholders were cancelled without considerati

pursuant to the Pla
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL DATA
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS(1)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivable:
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Discontinued operatio’ current assel
Total current asse
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate dodf
Property, plant, and equipmeé— net
Restricted proceeds from sale of commodity intsi
Personal injur-related insurance recoveries receive
Intangible assets including goodw
Net assets in respect of VEB.,
Other asset
Discontinued operatio’ long-term asset

Total

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Liabilities not subject to compromi—
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accru
Accrued postretirement medical benefit obligatiorcurrent
portion
Payable to affiliate
Long-term debt+— current portior
Discontinued operatio’ current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Long-term debr
Discontinued operations’ liabilities, includingidities subject to
compromise and minority interes

Liabilities subject to compromis

Minority interests

Stockholder’ equity:

Common stocl

Additional capital

Retained earnings (defic

Common stock owned by Union VEBA subject to transfe
restrictions, at reorganization val

Accumulated other comprehensive income (I

Total stockholder equity
Total

Predecessor
December 31,
2006 | 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In millions of dollars)

$ 50.C [$ 49t $ 554 % 358 $ 774
106.C 101.5 111.C 80.t 62.5
188.1 115.¢ 105.¢ 92.t 103.¢
40.¢ 21.C 19.€ 23.¢ 27.C
— — 30.€ 193.% 245 ¢
384.¢ 287.: 321.¢ 426.( 516.€
18.€ 12.€ 16.7 13.1 15.2
170.: 223.¢ 214.¢ 230.] 255.:
— — 280.¢ — —
— 965.t 967.( 465.¢ 484.(
— 11.4 11.4 11.4 11.4
40.7 — — — —
40.€ 38.7 31.1 43.7 126.:
— — 38.C 433.¢ 816.¢€
$655.« ($1,538.¢ $1,882.: $1,623.! $2,225.«
$160.2 [$ 149.¢ $ 175: % 984 $ 93.7
— — — 32t 60.Z
16.2 14.¢ 14.7 11.4 11.2
— 1.1 1.2 1.2 9
— 2.1 57.1 177.5 167.€
176.¢ 167.¢ 248.¢ 321.1 333.¢
58.2 42.C 32.€ 59.4 55.7
50.C 1.2 2. 2.2 20.7
— 68.5 26.4 208.7 226.4
284.7 279.: 311.C 591.¢ 636.4
— 4,400.: 3,954.¢ 2,770.; 2,673.¢
— V4 T 7 T
.2 .8 .8 .8 .8
487.t 538.( 538.( 539.1 539.¢
26.2 (3,671.9) (2,917.H (2,170.) (1,382.9)
(151.7) — — — —
7. (8.9) (5.5 (107.9 (243.9
370.7 (3,141.9) (2,384.) (1,738.) (1,085.6)
$655.« ($1,538.¢ $1,882.: $1,623.! $2,225¢

(1) The Selected Consolidated Financial Data shouleaé in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion a
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems” and the consolidated financial statementsthe
notes thereto. The consolidated financial datableas derived from the audited consolidated findncia

statements
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL DATA
UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME (LOSS)( 1)

Predecesso
Year Ended December 31,
2006
July 1, 2006 January 1,
through 2006
December 31 to July 1, Year Ended December 31
2006 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In millions of dollars)
Net sales $ 667.5 $ 689.6 $1,089. $ 942« $ 710.z $ 709.C
Costs and expense
Cost of products sol 580.4 596.4 951.1 852.2 681.2 671.2
Depreciation and amortizatic 5.5 9.8 19.¢ 22.¢ 25.% 32.2
Selling, administrative, research and developmesmd, genere 351E 30.5 50.¢ 92.2 92.t 118.¢
Other operating charges (audits), (2.2) .9 8.C 793.2 141.¢ 31.¢
Total costs and expens 619.2 637.4 1,029.¢ 1,760.( 941.( 854.1
Operating income (los: 48.2 52.4 59.¢ (817.6) (230. (145
Other income (expense
Interest expense (excluding unrecorded contraattedest expense
of $47.4 for the period from January 1, 2006 ty 1yl2006,$95.!
in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and $842D0R) (1.7 (.8 (5.2) (9.5 9.9 (29.0
Reorganization item — 3,090.: (1,162.) (39.0 (27.0) (33.2
Other— net 2.7 1.2 (2.4) 4.2 (5.2) (.9)
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontiropedtatior 49.¢ 3,143..  (1,109.9 (861.9 (272.1) (198.9)
Provision for income taxe (23.7) (6.2) (2.€) (6.2) (1.5) (4.4)
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 26.2 3,136.¢ (1,112.) (868.1) (273.¢) (202.%)
Discontinued operation —
Loss from discontinued operation, net of incomessaand minority
interests — 4.3 (2.5) (5.3) (514.7) (266.0
Gain from sale of commodity intere: — — 366.2 126.€ — —
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic — 4.3 363.7 121.% (514.7)  (266.0)
Cumulative effect on years prior to 2005 of adog@tcounting for
conditional asset retirement obligatic — — (4.7) — — —
Net income (loss $ 26.2 $ 3,141 $ (753.7) $ (746.f) $(788.75) $(468.7)
Earnings (loss) per sha— Basic:(3)
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 1.31 $ 39.37 $ (13.97) $(10.8¢)) $ (3.41) $ (2.5
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $ — $ .05 $§ 457 $ 152 $ (642 $ (3.30
Loss from cumulative effect on years prior to 2@d%adopting
accounting for conditional asset retirement oblazt $ — $ — $ (068 — $ — 8 —
Net income (loss $ 1.31 $ 394: $ (946 $ (9.36) $ (9.89) $ (5.8
Earnings (loss) per sha— Diluted (same as basic for predecess
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 1.3C
Income (loss) from discontinuing operatic $ =
Loss from cumulative effect on years prior to 2@®%&dopting
accounting for conditional asset retirement oblays $ —
Net income (loss $ 1.3C
Dividends per common sha $ — $ — — $ — % — % —
Weighted average shares outstanding (000
Basic 20,00: 79,67: 79,67¢ 79,81¢ 80,17¢ 80,57¢
Diluted 20,08¢ 79,67: 79,67¢ 79,81¢ 80,17¢ 80,57¢

(1) The Selected Consolidated Financial Data shouleaé in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion a
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” and the consolidated financial statementsthe
notes thereto. The consolidated financial datableas derived from the audited consolidated findncia

statements

(2) Earnings (loss) per share and share informatiothfoPredecessor may not be meaningful becaussamirt
the Plan, the equity interests of the Comy's existing stockholders were cancelled without m@ration.
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdietesigned to ensure that information requivdukt
disclosed in our reports under the Securities ExghaAct of 1934 ( or the “Exchange Act”), is prosed, recorded,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipd in the Securities and Exchange Commissionlas and
forms and that such information is accumulated@mmunicated to management, including the prinagakutive
officer and principal financial officer, to alloveff timely decisions regarding required disclosimedesigning and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedunasiagement recognizes that any controls and proegduo
matter how well designed and operated, can prostidie reasonable assurance of achieving the desetiol
objectives, and management is required to appjpdgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relatiopsif possible
controls and procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure&n evaluation of the effectiveness of the desigd
operation of our disclosure controls and procedwas performed as of the end of the period covbyettiis Report
under the supervision of and with the participatibour management, including the principal exeautfficer and
principal financial officer. Based on that evaloati our principal executive officer and principalancial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and proasiuere not effective as of December 31, 2006.

Last year as part of the final reporting and clgginocess relating to the preparation of the Deezr8h, 2005
financial statements, we concluded that our cosimold procedures were not effective as of DeceBihe2005
because a material weakness in internal contral fin@ncial reporting existed relating to our acoting for
derivative financial instruments under Statemerfiofncial Accounting Standards 12®;counting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activiti(“SFAS No. 133"). This matter is fully discussedNiote 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in IBefirinancial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Having identified this matter prior to the end loéffirst quarter of 2006, we changed our accourfting
derivative instruments from hedge treatment to nmtarknarket treatment in our financial statementdifst quarter
of 2006 and subsequent periods in order to comfily @GAAP. While this change in our accounting farigdative
instruments technically resolves the material weakrfrom a GAAP perspective, the Company belidvatshtedge
accounting treatment is more desirable than mairkddket accounting treatment and, accordingly Gbmpany
will not, from its own perspective, consider thigtter to be fully remediated until it completesth# steps outlined
above and requalifies its derivatives for hedgeanting treatment under GAAP.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Repogti We did not have any change in our internal cdsitro
over financial reporting during the fourth quard€2006 that have materially affected, or are raabty likely to
affect, our internal controls over financial repogt

As previously announced, in January 2006, the Caoryipd/ice President (“VP”) and Chief Financial Q@ffir
(“CFQO”) resigned. The resignation was in no wayted to the Company’s internal controls, finanstatements,
financial performance or financial condition. Ther@any formed the “Office of the CFO” and split tBEO’s
duties between the Company’s Chief Executive Offared two long tenured financial officers, the YReasurer ar
VP-Controller. In February 2006, a person withgn#icant corporate accounting role resigned. Hgssons duties
were split between the VP-Controller and other ikenagers in the corporate accounting group. Thepaagalso
used certain former personnel to augment the catp@ccounting team. In May 2006, the Company taradw
CFO, and over the balance of 2006, the Companylesugnted its corporate accounting and financidfsstaith
respect to certain key roles, including with respgge¢he Corporate Controller who is expected tmteate his
employment at the end of March 2007 pursuant tagtras of his employment agreement.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registra

The information called for by this Item is incorpted by reference to our definitive proxy statenrelating to
our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which kéllfiled with the Securities and Exchange Comnaissiot later
than 120 days after the end of the Company’s figeat.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item is incorp@dby reference to our definitive proxy statemueititich will
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiat later than 120 days after the end of the Gays fiscal
year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this Iltem is incorp@eby reference to our definitive proxy statemeidting to
our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which kéllfiled with the Securities and Exchange Comnaissiot later
than 120 days after the end of the Company’s figeat.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to our definitive proxy statemeidting to
our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which kaéllfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commissiot later
than 120 days after the end of the Company’s figeat.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to our definitive proxy statemetdting to
our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders, which kaéllfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commissiot later
than 120 days after the end of the Company’s figeat.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedult

_Page
1. Financial Statemen
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 47
Consolidated Balance She 48
Statements of Consolidated Income (Lc 49
Statements of Consolidated Stockhol’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Lo 50
Statements of Consolidated Cash Flt 51
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 52
Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudite 97
Five-Year Financial Dat 99

2. Financial Statement Schedu

All schedules are inapplicable or the requirediimfation is included in the Consolidated Financiat&nents
or the Notes thereto included in Item 8. “Finan&&dtements and Supplementary Data” and are incatgub
herein by reference

3. Exhibits

Reference is made to the Index of Exhibits immedljgbreceding the exhibits hereto (beginning onephgy),
which index is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 29, 2007

KAISER ALUMINUM CORPORATION

By: /sl Jack A. Hockem

Jack A. Hockema
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Jack A. Hockem

Jack A. Hockema

/sl Joseph P. Bellin

Joseph P. Bellino

/s/ Daniel D. Maddo:

Daniel D. Maddo»

Carl B. Franke

/sl Teresa A. Hop

Teresa A. Hop|

William F. Murphy

/sl Alfred E. Osborne, Jr., Ph.

Alfred E. Osborne, Jr., Ph.C

/sl Georganne Proct

Georganne Proctc

Jack Quinr

/s/ Thomas M. Van Leeuwe

Thomas M. Van Leeuwe

/s/ Brett E. Wilcox

Brett E. Wilcox

President, Chief Executive Officer,
Chairman of the Board and Director
(Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer (Principal Financial

Officer)

Vice President and Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6
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211

212
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INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Description

Third Amended Joint Plan of Liquidation for Alpdidmaica Inc. (‘AJI”) and Kaiser Jamaica Corporation
(*KJC"), dated February 25, 2005 (incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Report on

Form 1(-K for the period ended December 31, 2004, filed leyGompany, File N0.-9447).

Modification to the Third Amended Joint Plan of uidation for AJl and KJC, dated April 7, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to th@&&Form 8-K, dated December 19, 2005, filed tey th
Company, File No.-9447).

Second Modification to the Third Amended Joint Rééhiquidation for AJl and KJC, dated

November 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference talitxh.3 to the RepoiForm 8-K,dated December 1
2005, filed by the Company, File Nc-9447).

Third Modification to the Third Amended Joint PlafLiquidation for AJl and KJC, dated December 19,
2005(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 ® Report Form 8-K, dated December 19, 2005, fiked b
the Company, File N0.-9447).

Third Amended Joint Plan of Liquidation for Kaigdumina Australia Corporation (‘KAAC™and Kaise
Finance Corporation (‘KFC"), dated February 25, 20@corporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the
Report orForm 1(-K for the period ended December 31, 2004, filed leyGompany, File N0.-9447).
Modification to the Third Amended Joint Plan of lidation for KAAC and KFC, dated April 7, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.6 to thep&éeon Form 8-kdated December 19, 2005, filed by
Company, File No.-9447).

Second Madification to the Third Amended Joint Rtéihiquidation for KAAC and KFC, dated
November 22, 2005 (incorporated by reference taliixR.7 to the Report oForm 8-K dated

December 19, 2005, filed by the Company, File M-9447).

Third Modification to the Third Amended Joint PlafLiquidation for KAAC and KFC, dated

December 19, 2005 (incorporated by reference tolixh 8 to the Report on Form 8-K dated
December 19, 2005, filed by the Company, File M9447)

Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization fobmpany, KACC and Certain of Their Debtor
Affiliates, dated as of September 7, 2005 (incoapedt by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Report on
Form ¢-K, dated September 8, 2005, filed by the Company,Nrile1-9447).

Modifications to the Second Amended Joint Plan efiganization for the Company, KACC and Certain
of Their Debtor Affiliates Pursuant to Stipulatiand Agreed Order between Insurers, Debtors, Cormpe
and Future Representatives (incorporated by referemExhibit 2.2 to the Report on Form 8-K, dated
February 1, 2006, filed by the Company, File N-9447).

Modification to the Second Amended Joint Plan obfganization for the Company, KACC and Certain
of Their Debtor Affiliates, dated as of November 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.&1®
Report orForm ¢-K, dated February 1, 2006, filed by the Company, Rive 1-9447).

Third Modification to the Second Amended Joint RéfReorganization for the Company, KACC and
Certain of Their Debtor Affiliates, dated as of Baetber 16, 2005 (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 2.4 to the Report cForm &K, dated February 1, 2006, filed by the Company, Nibe 1-9447).
Order Confirming the Second Amended Joint Planexdrganization of the Company, KACCand Certain
of Their Debtor Affiliates (incorporated by refemnto Exhibit 2.5 to the Report on Form 8-K, dated
February 1, 2006, filed by the Company, File N-9447).

Order Affirming the Confirmation Order of the SedoAmended Joint Plan of Reorganization of the
Company, KACC and Certain of Their Debtor Affiliateas modified (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.6 to the Registration Statement on Ford, 8lated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File
No. 1-9447).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

2.1t Special Procedures for Distributions on AccounloRB Claim, as agreed by the National Labor

31

3.2

10.1

10.2

**10.3

**10.4

**10.5

**10.6

**10.7

10.8

10.9

Relations Board, the United Steel, Paper and FgrdRubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Induskria
and Service Workers International Union, AFL-CIQ,&(formerly known as the United Steelworkers
of America, AFL-CIO, CLC) (the ‘USW") and the Compapursuant to Section 7.8e of the Second
Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of the Comp&ACC and Certain of Their Debtor Affiliates,
modified (incorporated by reference to Exhibit fbthe Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated
July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File No. -52105).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Report cForm ¢&-A, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File 8@(-52105).
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incatpd by reference to Exhibit 3.2 Registration
Statement olForm ¢-A, dated July 6, 20086, filed by the Company, File BlaC-52105).

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dateaf dsly 6, 2006, among the Company, Kaiser
Aluminum Investments Company, Kaiser Aluminum Featéd Products, LLC (“KAFP”), Kaiser
Aluminum International, Inc., certain financial fitstions from time to time thereto, as lenders,

J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., The CIT Group/Busin@eedit, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent (incorporated by referencéxbibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K, dated July
2006, filed by the Company, File No. (-52105).

Term Loan and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of@ludp06, among KAFP, the Company and certain
indirect subsidiaries of the Company listed as "@ators' thereto, certain financial institutionsrin

time to time party thereto, as lenders, J.P. Moigecurities, Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent, and Wilmington Trust Compaasg/collateral agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Report cForm &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File 8@C-52105).
Description of Compensation of Directors (incorpgedaby reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on
Form &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File BaC-52105).

2006 Short Term Incentive Plan for Key Managersdiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Report orForm &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File B@C-52105).

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2006yéen the Company and Jack A. Hockema
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to tlep®t on Form 8-K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the
Company, File No. 0(-52105).

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2006yéeh the Company and Joseph P. Bellino
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to tlep®&t on Form 8-K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the
Company, File No. 0(-52105).

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2006ydeh the Company and Daniel D. Maddox
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to tlep®t on Form 8-K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the
Company, File No. 0(-52105).

Form of Director Indemnification Agreement Employmhégreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Report cForm &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File 8@C-52105).
Form of Officer Indemnification Agreement (incorpted by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Report on
Form &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File BlaC-52105).

10.1C Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

the Report oiForm &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File Bla(-52105).

10.11 Kaiser Aluminum Corporation 2006 Equity and Perfanoe Incentive Plan (incorporated by referen:

Exhibit 99.1 to the Registration Statement on F&#8, Filed by the Company with the SEC on July 6,
2006, File No. 00-52105).

**10.12 Form of Executive Officer Restricted Stock Awardd@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the

Report orForm €K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File B2C-52105).

**10.12 Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Agvéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to

the Report oiForm &K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File Bla(-52105).
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Exhibit
Number Description

**10.14 Kaiser Aluminum Fabricated Products Restoratiom Rilacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 t&
Report orForm ¢-K, dated July 6, 2006, filed by the Company, File Bl2C-52105).

10.1E Stock Transfer Restriction Agreement, dated asllyf@, 2006, between the Company and National City
Bank, in its capacity as the trustee for the ttinat provides benefits for certain eligible retsed Kaiser
Aluminum & Chemical Corporation represented by WV, the International Union, United
Automobile, Aerospace and Agricultural Implementérs of America and its Local 1186, the
International Association of Machinists and Aeraspslorkers, the International Chemical Workers
Union Council of the United Food and Commercial W&os, and the Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical
and Energy Workers International Union, AFL-CIO,Chnd their surviving spouses and eligible
dependents (the “Union VEBA") (incorporated byeegnce to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement
on Form &A, filed by the Company with the SEC on July 6, 208i& No. 00(-52105).

10.1€ Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of JuB066, between the Company and the Union VEBA
the other parties thereto (incorporated by refexdndExhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement on
Form &A, filed by the Company with the SEC on July 6, 208i&e No. 00(-52105).

10.17 Director Designation Agreement, dated as of JuB(86, between the Company and the USW
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to thgiReation Statement on Form 8-A, Filed by the
Company with the SEC on July 6, 2006, File No.-52105).

**10.1€ Key Employee Retention Plan (effective Septemb@082) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26
to the Report on Form 10-K for the period endeddddoer 31, 2002, filed by the Company, File
No. 1-9447).

**10.1¢ Form of Retention Agreement for the KACC Key EmmeyRetention Plan (effective September 3,
2002) for Jack A. Hockema and John Barneson (iraratpd by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Report
on Form 1(-K for the period ended December 31, 2002, filed leyGompany, File N0.-9447).

**10.2C Severance Plan (effective September 3, 2002) (reecated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Report
on Form 1(-K for the period ended December 31, 2002, filed leyGompany, File N0.-9447).

**10.21 Form of Severance Agreement for the Severance(Effattive September 3, 2002) for John Barneson,
John M. Donnan and Daniel D. Maddox (incorporatgeddierence to Exhibit 10.31 to the Report on
Form 1(-K for the period ended December 31, 2002, filed leyGompany, File No.-9447).

**10.22 Form of Change in Control Severance AgreementdbnBarneson (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.32 to the Report on Form 10-K for theipé ended December 31, 2002, filed by the
Company, File No.-9447).

**10.22 Form of Change in Control Severance AgreementdbnM. Donnan and Daniel D. Maddox
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 toReport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2002, filed by the Company, File M-9447).

**10.24 Description of Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorpeaby reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Report on
Form 1(-K for the period ended December 31, 2004, filed lgyGompany, File N0.-9447).

10.2E Settlement and Release Agreement dated Octob@08, By and among the Debtors (as defined therein)
and the Creditors’ Committee (as defined therémjdrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period enfledtember 30, 2004, filed by the Company, File
No. 1-9447).

10.2€ Amendment, dated as of January 27, 2005, to Sedtieend Release Agreement dated as of October 5,
2004, by and among the Debtors (as defined theagid)the Creditors’ Committee (as defined therein)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 toReport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2004, filed by the Company, File M9447).

10.27 Settlement Agreement dated October 14, 2004, betW@&C and the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit3lto the Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2004, filed by the Company, File1-9447).

**10.2€ Release between KACC and Kerry A. Shiba (incormatdiy reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on
Form &K, dated as of March 14, 2006, filed by the Compaiilg, Fo. 1-9447).

*21  Significant Subsidiaries of Kaiser Aluminum Corptima
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Exhibit

Number Description
*23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
*31.1 Certification of Jack A. Hockema pursuant to Set862 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
*31.2 Certification of Joseph P. Bellino pursuant to #8802 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
*32.1 Certification of Jack A. Hockema pursuant to Sec806 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
*32.2 Certification of Joseph P. Bellino pursuant to 88006 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagerequired to be filed as an exhibit to this Aain
Report orForm 1(-K.
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries andtgdnvestments of Kaiser Aluminum Corporation, the
jurisdiction of their incorporation or organizaticand the names under which such subsidiaries siondss. Th
Companys ownership is indicated for its equity investméZertain subsidiaries are omitted which, considanettie
aggregate as a single subsidiary, would not cansté significant subsidiary.

Place of

Incorporation or
Name Organization
Kaiser Aluminum Investments Compa Delaware
Kaiser Aluminum Fabricated Products, LI Delaware
Kaiser Aluminium International, Inc Delaware
Kaiser Aluminum & Chemical Corporation, LL Delaware
Anglesey Aluminium Limited (49% United Kingdom
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Principal Domestic Operations and

Administrative Offices

Principal Worldwide Operations

Arizona
Chandler
Fabricated Produc
California
Foothill Ranch
Corporate Headquarte

Los Angeles (City of Commerce)
Fabricated Produc
Michigan
Detroit (Southfield)
Automotive Product
Development and sali
Ohio
Newark
Fabricated Produc
Oklahoma
Tulsa
Fabricated Produc
Canada
Kaiser Aluminum & Chemical
of Canada Limited (100%)
Fabricated Produc
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South Carolina
Greenwood
Fabricated Produc
Tennessee
Jackson
Fabricated Produc
Texas
Sherman
Fabricated Produc

Virginia
Richmond
Fabricated Produc
Washington
Richland
Fabricated Produc

Trentwood
Fabricated Produc

Wales, United Kingdom
Anglescy Aluminum Ltd. (49)%
Primary Aluminun






Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to incorporation by reference in Regfisin Statement No. 333-135613 on Form S-8 of eport dated March 29, 2007, relating
to the consolidated financial statements of Kafdaminum Corporation, which report expresses anuatified opinion and includes an

explanatory paragraph regarding Kaiser Aluminump@aation emerging from bankruptcy on July 6, 2Cfpearing in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K of Kaiser Aluminum Corporation for theayeended December 31, 2006.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Costa Mesa, California
March 29, 2007






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Jack A. Hockema, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10fKaiser Aluminum Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doésaptain any untrue statement of a material factnit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information includedtiis report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officamd | are responsible for establishing and maiirtgidisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15feRt omitted in accordance with SEC transition insructions set forth in SEC Release
No. 34-47986For the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) [paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transitia instructions set forth in SEC Release No. -47986]

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and promsias of the end of the period covered by thusntebased on such evaluation; ¢

d) disclosed in this report any changes inréggstrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officmd | have disclosed, based on our most recenta&i@h of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairoebaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 29, 20C
/sl Jack A. Hockema
Jack A. Hockeme
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 302 has been provided to Kaiser AlumirCorporation and will be retained by
Kaiser Aluminum Corporation and furnished to the8&ies and Exchange Commission or it staff upsuest.






Exhibit 31.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Joseph P. Bellino, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10fKaiser Aluminum Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doésaptain any untrue statement of a material factnit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information includedtiis report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officamd | are responsible for establishing and maiirtgidisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15feRt omitted in accordance with SEC transition insructions set forth in SEC Release
No. 34-47986For the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) [paragraph omitted in accordance with SEC transitio instructions set forth in SEC Release No. -47986]

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and predéntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and promsias of the end of the period covered by thusntebased on such evaluation; ¢

d) disclosed in this report any changes inréggstrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officmd | have disclosed, based on our most recenta&i@h of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internairoebaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 29, 2007 /s/ Joseph P. Bellinc
Joseph P. Bellinc
Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 302 has been provided to Kaiser AlumirCorporation and will be retained by
Kaiser Aluminum Corporation and furnished to the8&ies and Exchange Commission or it staff upsuest.






Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

March 29, 2007

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKLby Kaiser Aluminum Corporation, a Delaware amgtion (the “Company”), for the
year ending December 31, 2006 (“Report”), as filed on the date hereof with the @é@es and Exchange Commission, the undersigned,
Jack A. Hockema, Chief Executive Officer of the Qamy, does hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.601& adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thauch officer’'s knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirerteeof Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshzxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)); anc
The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finamadition and results of operations of the

Company as of the dates and for the periods exgniéashe Repor
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has exatthis certification as of the date firs abovetteri.

2)

/sl Jack A. Hockema
Jack A.Hockema
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®ey Section 906 has been provided to Kaiser AlumirCorporation and will be retained by
Kaiser Aluminum Corporation and furnished to the8#&ies and Exchange Commission or its staff upgzyuest.






Exhibit 32.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

March 29, 2007

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKLby Kaiser Aluminum Corporation, a Delaware amgtion (the “Company”), for the
year ending December 31, 2006 (“Report”), as filed on the date hereof with the @é@es and Exchange Commission, the undersigned,
Joseph P. Bellino, Principal Financial Officer b&tCompany, does hereby certify, pursuant to 18QJ.8350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thauch officer’'s knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirerteeof Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshzxge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or

780(d)); anc
The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finamadition and results of operations of the

Company as of the dates and for the periods exgniéashe Repor
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the date firs above written.

2)

/sl Joseph P. Bellinc
Joseph P. Bellinc
Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®ey Section 906 has been provided to Kaiser AlumirCorporation and will be retained by
Kaiser Aluminum Corporation and furnished to the8&ies and Exchange Commission or its staff upgzyuest.



